!Llow Investors,
i year was one of the most challenging in our history. We would like to express our
!pest gratitude to you, our shareholders, for the loyalty and support you have provided
N e have executed the recovery from the disaster of May 22,2011. We are also extremely
nkfd for the ovenruhelming generosity of all those who came, and continue to come, to
aid of our customers, co-workerr, and communities,
! EF-5 tornado that tore through Joplin and Duquesne packed winds in excess of 200
e5 per hour and left a path of destruction thirteen miles long and up to threequarters of

nile wide. More than 160 lives were lost, making it the deadliest tornado in the United
ites since 1950. Empire employees didn't escape the impact. Some last family members
d more than 20 lost their homes.
e damage to our system was extensive. More than 4,000 poles and over 100 miles of h e
!re down. Six substations were impacted, with one being completely destroyed, and 31
60 circuits in Joplin were out, leaving approximately 20,000 customers without power.

e initial assessment was chilling, yet our mission was clear- provide the power to rebuild
plin. 'Through it all, our employees displayed a resolve that is nothing short of amazing.
ithin ten days of the event, service to virtually all customers who were able to receive
iwer had been restored. An estimated 8,000 customers were not able to return to setvice
the immediate aftermath.
Jr initial estimates placed the storm costs at $20 to $30 million. As the damage toll
intinued to ri5e in the early days, the board made the difticuk, yet necessary, decision to
mporarily suspend the dividend, We recognized the hardship it cawed, however,we also
alized this would be an important step in our ability to recover from the most devastating
eather event in our history and emerge more favorably positioned for the future. We
tank you for weathering this trying time with us.
le are actively pursuing all avenues of recovery for costs related to the tornado. In June,
re filed an Accounting Authority Order (AAO) with the Missouri Public Senrice Commission
vlPSC). A stipulation and agreement related to the AAO was approved by the MPSC in
ecernber which allows Empire to defer actual incremental operating and maintenance
xpenses associated with the repair, restoration, and rebuilding activities resulting from
i e tornado.
:econstruction is progressing at a healthy pace. After the initial ten-day restoration period,
u r customer count was down by 8,000. By August, the number was reducedto 3,900. As
d the end of 2011, our system-wide customer count is down by approximately 1,800.

'n late December, the city of loplin announced that half of all affected property owners had
ecured permits to repair or rebuild homes that were damaged or destroyed by the tornado.
\long the Range Line Road commercial corridor several major retailers including Walmart,
lome Depot, Academy Sports+Outdoors, and Aldi's have reopened along with numerous
ither restaurants and businesses. SL John's Mercy Hospital, currently operating out of a
nodular facility, broke ground on a new 261-bed hospital on January 29, with targeted
:omp!etion in 2015,
My prederessoc Bill Cipson, said many times, "We impact the lives of everyone in the
impire service territoty every single day and, when we've done our jobs right, they
don't even notice." Never has this been more evident than during the tornado recovery.
Tremendous media attentionwas focused upon this event, with barely a mention of Empire.
We take pride in that fact because it means we did our jobs right Ar each milestone in the
community was met, pnwer was there, Power was available t o open the temporary schools,
to sewe the FEMA temporary housing units, t o light the Extreme Makeover and Habitatfor
Humanity homes, and to power Walgreens after it opened in record time. We have been
and will continue to be an important part of the recovery.

While there has been much Progress, the recovery is not limited to the devasta
area. Many residents and businesses within the path of the tornado have retocatei
vacant properties or begun new construction in other parts of Joplin and the surrount
communities we serve. In short, the recovery is going better than we had expected,
slower than we want.
While the tornado dominated the headlines this year, we could not delay the planr
and execution of other critical tasks to keep your Company strong. We continued
focus on initiatives to address future environmental issues, system reliability enhanceme
enterprise level resource and asset management solutions, and a host of other projects
In 201 1, we focused heavily upon our existing generation fleet. As we reported last y
the Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) filed with the MPSC identified potential sbategiez
comply with new regulations put forth by the 11.5. Environmental Protection Agency. A F
for operational changes at our Asbury and Riverton generating facilities was develol
to address the Cross State Air Polhtion Rule (CSAPR), limiting NOx and SO2 emissil
which was scheduled to take effect January I, 2012. Then, in late December, a last-min
stay was issued by a federal court delaying the implementation of CSAPR. Separ
regulations will requiremaximum achievab te control techno fogy for mercuty and acidgase
existing generating units in early 2015. After extensive analysis, we are moving few,
with the preferred planto meetthis requirement as identified in the IRE The plan calls for.
addition of air quality control systems at the Asbury Power Plant, exclusive use of nath
gas fue1 for Riverton Units 7 and 8, and the upgrade and conversion of the existing Riveri
Unit 12 simple cycle gas turbine to combined cycle configuration.

Progress continued in 2011 on Operation Toughen Up, our reliability initiative introduc
in 2010. Engineering and design work is under way in advance of the full-scale launch
the initiative that calls for $10 million per year for ten years beginning in 2012. Operati
Toughen Up focuses on enhancements to our transmission and difiribution system thatv
improve service reliability for our customers.
Power plans substations,gas lines, wires, and poles arethevisual elements of our business, t
to effectively manage those resources in today's environment requires advanced, integrat
software solutions. After laying the groundwork in 2010, a project team began rolli
out the transformation to new enterprise level solutions for resource planning and ass
management systems, The effort has been dubbed "Project Overhaul." Ultimately, tl
project will improve the way we record, transfer, and manage information, as well
provide us with advanced analysis and financial reporting capabilities. Every employ
in the Company will experience the benefia of this complete overhaul of our busine
information and reporting systems.
On the regulatory front, we finalized the rate recovery process related to the histo[
construction cycle completed in 2010. New rates went into effect in our Missot
jurisdiction in June providing 518.7 million in additional annual revenue. In Kansas, rat1
reflecting an additional $1-25 million in annual revenue became effective January 1,201
Rates already being collected under a Capital Reliability Rider, became permanent fi
Oklahoma customers on January 6,2012.

A number of other notable accomplishments rounded out the year far our Company. I
November, the Southwest Power Pool Regional Entity conducted an on-site aud
and found Empire to be in compliance with the North American Electric Reliabilit
Corporation's (NERC) standards to ensure the reliability of the bulk power system. Th
installation of new movable gates took place at our Orark Beach hydroelectricfadlity.Aftt
severeflooding impactedthe area in 2010 and 201 1, the gates are a welcome improvemen
In addition, we posted positive results from efforts to educate customers about our energ
efficiency programs, with a 19 percent increase in program utilization fmm the prior yea
Current information about all of our energy efficiency programs can be found :

www,empircdisttict.com.

he natural gas business, we completed the largest constructionproject since acquisition
the property with the replacement of six miles of high pressure line in Nevada, Missouri.
other positive development is the increase in our certificated service area, which grew
20 square mites with the addition of territory in eastern Nodaway County, The new area
I1be served by our Maryville Service Center.
ianges in financial leadership took place on August I, as Laurie Delano became vice
esident -finance and chief financial officer,following the retirement of Greg Knapp. Also
I August 1, Rob Sager became controller, assistant secretaly, and assistant treasurer.

espite the loss of customers due to the tornado, extremely warm temperatures in July and
ugust culminated in a new summer peak demand record of 1,198 megawarn on August
. She warm weather, along with activity related to the debris removal, FEMA temporary
owing development, and the rebuilding process helped to partially offset revenue toss.
le closed 2011 with consolidated earnings of $54.9 million, or $1.31 per share. This
smpares to 2010 earnings of $47.4 million, or $1.I 7 per share. In 2012, commencing with
ur February 2,201 2, earnings release, we began providing annual earnings guidance. In
ddition, as reported in that earnings release, the board reestablished the dividend a t a
qte of $0.25 per share.
1s we move beyond a year forever defined by the May 22 tornado, we see many promising
igns on the horizon. The rebuilding efforts have cushioned our region from the economic
lowdown that has affectedmuch of the nation. We know there are still Ehallenges ahead of
s on many fronts, yet we remain focused. Meeting our customers' expectations, increasing
due to our shareholders, providing a safe and positive work experience for our employees,
lemonstrating environmental stewardship, and being a respected leader in the region
hese are our goals, and our focus never wavers.

-
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain matters discussed in this quarterly report are “forward-looking statements” intended to
qualify for the safe harbor from liability established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Such statements address or may address future pIans, objectives, expectations and events or
conditions concerning various matters such as capital expenditures, earnings, impacts from the 2011
tornado, pension and other costs, competition, litigation, our construction program, our generation pIans,
our financing plans, potentid acquisitions, rate and other regulatory matters, liquidity and capital
resources and accounting matters. Fonvard-looking statements may contain words like “anticipate”,
“-believe”, “expect”, “project”, “objective” or similar expressions to identify them as forward-looking
statements. Factors that could cause actual results to d 8 e r materially from those currently anticipated in
such statements indude:
weather, business and economic conditions, recovery and rebuilding efforts relating to the 2011
tornado and other factors which may impact sales volumes and customer growth;
the amount, terms and timing of rate retief we seek and related matters;
the cost and avdability of purchased power and fuel, and the resuIts of our activities (such as
hedging) to reduce the voIatility of such costs;

.volatilityinand

the credit, equity and other financial markets and the resulting impact on our short term
debt costs
our ability to issue debt or equity securities, or othenrise secure funds to meet our
capital expenditure, dividend and liquidity needs;

the results of prudeacy and similar reviews by regulators of costs we incur, including capital
expenditures, fuel and purchased power costs and Southwest Power Pool (SPP) regional
transmission organization (RTO) expansion costs;
operation of our electric generation facilities and electric and gas wansmission and distribution
qstems, including the performance of our joint owners;

.

the costs and other impacts resulting from natural disasters, such as tornados and ice storms;
the periodic revision
estimates;

of our consmction and capital expenditure plans and cost and timing

legislation and regulation, including environmentai regulation (such as NO& SO, mercury, ash and
COJ and health care reguhtion;

.competition,

including the SPF Energy Imbalance Senices Market;

electric utility restructuring, including ongoing federd activities and potential state activities;

the impact of electric deregulation on off-system sales;

changes in accounting requirements (includmg the potential consequences of being required to
report in accordance with LFRS rather than U. S. GAAP);
the timing of accretion estimates, and integration costs relating to completed and contemplated
acquisitions and the performance of acquired businesses;

rate regulation, growth rates, discount rates, capital spending rates, terminat value calculations and
other factors integral to the dculations utilized to test the impairment of goodwill, in addition to
market and economic conditions which could adversely affect the analysis and ultimately negatively
impact earnings;

the effect of changes in our credit rating on the availability and cast of funds;
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+

the performance of our pension assets and other post employment benefit pIan assets and the
resulting impact on our related funding commitments;

intemptions or changes in our wa1 deIivery, gas transportation or storage agreements or
arrangements;
the success of efforts to invest in and deveIop new opportunities;
costs and effects of

+

legal and administrative proceedmgs, settlements, investigations and cIaims;

our exposure to the credit risk of our hedging counterparties;

acts of terrorism, including, but not fimited to, cyber-terrorism; and

other circumstances affecting anticipated rates, revenues and costs.
All such factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties that may materially affect actual results,
and may be beyond our control. New factors emerge fiom time to time and it is not possible for
management to predict all such factors or to assess the impact of each such factor on us. A n y fonvardlooking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and we do not undertake
any obligation to update any forward-lookingstatement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on
which such statement is made.

We caution you that any forward-lookingstatements are not guarantees of future performance and
involve known and unknown risk, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to differ materialIy from the facts, results, performance or achievements we
have anticipated in such forward-lookingstatements.
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Genera1
We operate our businesses as three segments: electric, gas and other. The Empire District Elechic
Company (EDE),a Kansas corporation organized in 1909, is an operating public utility engaged in the

generation, purchase, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity in parts of Missouri, Kansas,
Oklahoma arid Arkansas. As part of our eIectric segment, we also provide water service to three towns in
Missouri. The Empire District Gas Company (EDG) is our wholly owned subsidiary engaged in the
distribution of natural gas in Missouri. Our other segment consists of OUT fiber optics business.
Our gross operating revenues in 2011 were derived as folIows:

........................................
............................................
.........................................

EIectric segment sales*.
Gas segment sdes
Other segment sales..

90.9%
8.0
1.1

Sales from our electric segment include 0.3% fiom the sale of water.

T h e territory served by our electric operations embraces an area of about 10,000square miles, located
principalry in southwestern Missouri, and aIso includes smaller areas in southeastern Kansas, northeastern
Oklahoma and northwestern Arkansas. The principal economic activities of these areas include light
industry, agriculture and tourism. As of December 31,2011, our eIectric operations served approximately
166,500customers.
Our retail electric revenues for 2011 by jurisdiction were derived as follows:

Missouri ...................................................
Kansas ....................................................
Arkansas...................................................
Oklahoma

..................................................

38.8%
5.3
2.8
3.1

We supply electric service at retail to 120 incorporated communities as of December 33,2011, and to
various unincorporated areas and at wholesale to four municipally owned distribution systems. The largest
urban area we sene is the city of JopIin, Missouri, and its immediate Vicinity, with a population of
approximately 157,000. We operate under franchises having original terms of twenty years or Ionger in
Virtually all of the incorporated communities. Approximately 50% of our electric operating revenues in
2011 were derived from incorporated communities with franchises having at least ten years remaining and
approximately 20%were derived from incorporated communities in which our franchises have remaining
terms of ten years or Iess. Although our hnchises contain no renewal provisions, in recent years we have
obtained renewals of alI of our expiring electric h c h i s e s prior to the expiration dates.

Our electric operating revenues in 2011 were derked as follows:

.................................................
42.4%
...............................................
30.1
15.1
..........................................
3.7
..........................................
4.5
......................................... 2.6
........................................
1.6

Residential
Commercial.,
lndustriaf...................................................
Wholesaleon-system
Wholesale off-system
Miscellaneous sources*
Other electric revenues.

primarily public authorities
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Our largest single on-system whoIesde customer is the city of Monett, Missouri, which in 2011
accounted for approximately 3% of electric revenues. No single retail customer accounted for more than
2% of electric revenues in 2011.

Our gas operations seme customers in northwest, north central and west central Missouri. As of
December 31, 2011,our gas operations served approximately 44,000 customers. We provide n a W gas
distribution to 45 communities and 315 transportation customers as of December 31, 2011. The largest
urban area we serve is the city of Sedalia with a population of over 20,000.We operate under h c h i s e s
having original t e r n of twenty years in vktually all of the incorporated communities. Seventeen of the
h c h i s c s have IO years or more remaining on their term. Although our franchises contain no renewal
provisions, since our acquisition we have obtained renewals of all our expiring gas franchises prior to the
expiration dates.
Our gas operating revenues in 2011 were derived as follows:

.................................................
...................................................
...............................................

Residential
Commerci. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Indusaial
Miscellaneous

62.5%
26.9

1.5
9.1

No single retail customer accounted for more than 1% of gas revenues in 2011.
Our other segment consists of our fiber optics business. As of December 31,2011, we have 97 fiber
~storners.
EIectric Generating Facilities and Capacity
At December 31, 2011, our generating plants consisted of:
Capacity
(megawatts)(‘’

Plant

Asbu r y . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

..........................................
......................................
.....................
.....................
......................................
.....................................
.............................................
TOTAL ................................................

Riverton-&Coal
lZivertoa-NaturalG .......................................
ratan (12% ownership)
Plum Point Energy Station (7.52% ownership)
State Line Combined Cycle (60% ownership).
Empire Energy Center
State Line Unit No. I . .
OzarkBeach

Primary Fuel

207

Goa1

92

Cod

187
1870)
50@)
297e)
262
94
16
1,392

-

Natural Gas
Coal
coal

Natural Gas
Natura1 Gas
Natural Gas
Hydro

(1) Based on summer rating conditions as utilized by Southwest Power Pool.

(2) Capacity reff ects our aUocated shares of the capacity of these plants.

See Item 2, “Properties - Electric Segment Facilities” far further information about these plants.

We,and most other electric utilities with interstate transmission facilities, have placed our facilities
under the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) regulated open access tariffs that provide all
whoIesaIe buyers and sellers of electricity the opportunity to procure transmission seIvices (at the same
ratcs) that the utilities provide themsehes. We are a member of the Southwest Power Pool Regional
Transmission Organization (SPP RTO).See Item 7, “Managemcnt’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Cundition and Results of Operations - Competition.”
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We currently suppIement our on-system generating capacity with purchases of capacity and energy
from other sources in order to meet the demands of our customers arid the capacity margins applicable to
us under current pooling agreements and National Electric Reliability Council rules. The SPP requires its
members to maintain a minimum 12%capacity margin. Our long-term contract with Westar Energy for the
purchase of 162 megawatts of capacity and energy ended May 31, 2010. In order to replace this 162
megawatts of capacity and energy,we‘entered into contracts to add 202 megawatts of power to our system.
This energy is fiom two new plants that became operational in 2010,with 100 megawatts from the new
Plum Point Energy Station (50 megawatts of owned capacity and 50 megawatts of purchased power) and
102 megawatts from the new Iatan 2 generating facility, each of which is described below.
The Plum Point Energy Station is a 665-megawatt, coal-fired generating facility near Osceoltt,
Arkansas which entered commercial operation on September 1, 2010. Wb own, through an undivided
interest, 50 megawatts of the unit’s capacity. Our share of the Plum Point initial construction costs through
December 31,2011 was approximately $853 million PIUS $16.5 million of allowance for funds used during
construction (AFUDC). Recovcry of these costs is reflected in o w current rates. We also have a long-term
(30 year) ,purchased power agrcernent for an additional 50 megawatts of capacity and have the option to
purchase the undivided ownership interest in the 50 megawatts covered by the purchased power agreement
in 2015.
We also own an undivided ownership interest in the cod-ked Iatan 2 generating facility operated by
Kansas City Power & Light Company (KCP&L) and located at the site of the existing Iatan Generating
Station (Iatan I) near Weston, Missouri. We own 12%, or approximately 102 megawatts, of the
850-megawatt unit, which entered commercial operation on December 31,2010. Our share of the latan 2
initial construction costs through December 31,2011 was $233.3 miltion plus AFUDC of $19.1 miltion.
Recovery of these costs is reflected in our current rates.
W e have a 20-year purchased power agreement, which began on December 15, 2008, with Cloud
County Windfarm, LLC, owned by EDP Renewables North America LLC (formerly Horizon Wind
Energy], Houston, %xas to purchase the energy generated at the approximately 105-megawatt Phase 1
Meridian Way Wmd Farrn located h Cloud County, Kansas. We also have a 20-year contract, which began
on December 15,2005,with Elk River Windfarm,LLC,owned by IBERDROU RENEWABLES, Inc., to
purchase the energy generated at the 150-megawatt Elk River W
i
n
d
f
a
r
m located in Butler County, Kansas.
We do not own any portion of either windfarm.
The following chart sets forth our purchase commitments and our anticipated owned capacity (h
megawatts) during the indicated years. The capacity ratings we use for our generating units are based on
summer rating conditions under SPP guidelines. The portion of the purchased power that may be counted
as capacity from the Elk River Windfarm, LLC and the Cloud County Windfarm,LLC is included h this
chart. Because the wind power is an intermittent, non-firm resource, SPP rating criteria does not allow us
to count a substantial amount of the wind power as capacity. See Item 7, “Managements’ Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources.” .

-

Purchased
Power

Year
-

Commitment[‘’

..............................................
.............................................
2014 .............................................
2015 ..............................................
2016 .............................................
2012

2013

65
65

65
65
15

,

Anlidpated
Owned

Total

Capadty

Mqamtts

1392
1392
1392
1368

1457
1457

1422

1437c3)

1457
1433c)

(1) Includes 7 megawatts for the Elk River Windfarm, LLC and 8 megawatts for the Cloud County
Windfarm, LLC.
(2) Reflects the planned retirement of Asbury Unit 2.
(3) Reflects the planned retirement of Riverton Units 7, 8 and 9, conversion of Plum Point purchased
power agreement to ownership and conversion of Riverton Unit 12 to a combined cycle.
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The maximum hourIy demand on our system reached a record high of 1,199 megawatts on January 8,
2010. Our previous winter peak of 1,100 megawatts was established on December 22,2008. Our maximum
hourly summer demand of 1,198 megawattswas set on August 2,2011.Our previous summer record peak
of 1,173 megawatts was estabIished on August Is’, 2007.
Gas Facilities
At December 31, 2011, our principal gas utility properties consisted of approximately 87 miles of
transmission mains and approximatdy 1,130 miles of distribution mains,

The following table sets forth the three pipelines that sewe our gas customers:
Name o f PipeIIne

Service Area

.......................... Southern Star Centra1 Gas Pipeline
Northwest.. ..................... ANR Pipdine Company

South

North .......................... Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company
Our alI-time peak of 73,280 mcfs was established on January 7,2010, replacing the previous record of
70,820 mcfs which was set on January 4, 2010.
Construction Program

Total property additions (including construction work in progress but excluding AFUDC) for the
three years ended December 31,2031, amounted to $341.8 million and retirements during the same period
amounted to $48.0 million. Please refer to Item 7, “Management‘sDiscussion and AnaIysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources” for more information.
Our totaI capital expenditures, excIuding AFUDC and expenditures to retire assets, were
$99.8 million in 2011 and for the neb three years are estimated for planning purposes to be as follows:
Estimnted Capftal Expenditurn

(amounts In mlllioos)

New clectric generating facilities:

...........................................

$
Iatan2
Additions to existing dectric generating facilities:
ksbury...................
........................
Environmental upgrades - Asbury ......................
Other ............................................
EIectric transmission facilities ............................
EIcctric distribution system additions. ......................
Non-regulated additions ................................
General and other additions
Gas system additions ..................................

.............................

2.8 $

5.0
30.1
11.2
15.0

63.7
2.0

11.8
50.4
8.4
13.3
52.1

1.5
17.7
13.5
3.9 3.5

5

16.6
35.4
8.7
26.2

39.3
1.5
33.3
3.3
-

--

$ 2.8

33.4
115.9

28.3
54.5
155.1
5.0
64.5

10.7
-

5147.2 5158.7 $1643 $470.2
TOTAL ............................................
=

Our estimated total capital expenditures (excluding AFUDC) for 2015 and 2016 are $286.5 million
and 338.4 million, respectively. Construction expenditures for additions to our transmission and
distribution systems and environmental upgrades at Asbury constitute the majority of the projected CapitaI
expenditures for the three-year period listed above. Expenditures for the combined cycle conversion of
Riverton Unit 12 and the possible purchase, pursuant to our option, of an undivided ownership interest in
50 megawatts of capacity at the Plum Point Energy Station, also SignificantIy contribute to capital
expenditures for 2014 through 2016. No decision has yct been made to exercise this option.
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Total estimated capital expenditures for 2013 and 2014 are lower than the estimates for such years that
were disclosed in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2011, primariIy

as a result of a reduction in the estimated cost of the environmental upgrades at Asbury.
Estimated capital expenditures are reviewed and adjusted for, among other things, revised estimates
of future capacity needs, the cost of funds necessary for construction, costs to recover from natural
disasters and the availability and cost of alternative power. ActuaI capital expenditures may vary
si@cantly from the estimates due to a number of factors including changes in customer requirements,
construction delays, changes in equipment delivery scheddes, ability to raise capital, environmental
matters, the extent to which we receive timely and adequate rate increases, the extent of competition horn
independent power producers and wgenerators, other changes in business conditions and changes in
Iegislation and regulation, including those reIatiag to the energy industry. See
Regulation” below and
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Competition.’’
‘4-

FueI and Natural Gas Supply
Electric Segment

Our total system output for 2011, based on kilowatt-hoursgenerated, was as foUows:

........................................
..............................
...........................................
...................................

Steam generation units.
45.2%
Combustion turbine generation units.
23.9
Hydro generation..
0.8
Purchased power - windfarms
14.9
Purchased power - other ...................................... 15.2
Approximately 65.0% of the total fuel requirements for our generating units in 2011 (based on
Nowatt-hours generated) were supplied by c o d and approximately 34.8% supplied by natural gas with fuel
oil and tire-derived he1 (TDF), which is produced fiom discarded passenger car tires, providing the
remainder. The amount and percentage of electricity generated by natural gas increased in 2011 as
compared to 2010 while the amount of energy we purchased decreased, primarily reflecting that it was
more economical to producc gas-fired generation than to purchase power during this period.
Our Asbuy Plant is fueled primarily by coal with oil being used as start-up fuel and TDF being used
as a supplement fuel. In 2011, Asbury burned a coal b h d consisting of approximately 86.9% Western coal
(Powder River Basin) and 13.1% blend coal on a tonnage basis. Our average coal inventory target at
Asbury is approximately 60 days. As of December 31, 2011, we had sufficient coal on hand to supply full
load requirements at Asbury for 47-94 days, as compared to 56-70 days as of December 31, 2010,
depending on the actual blend ratio.
Our Riverton Plant fuei requirements are primarily met by coal with the remainder supplied by
natural gas, petroIeum cokc and oil. Riverion Unit 12, a Siemens V84.3A2 gas combustion turbine
installed in 2007, and three other smaller units are fueled by natural gas. During 2011, Riverton Units 7
and 8 burned an estimatcd blend of approldmateIy 92.8% Western coal (Fowdcr River Basin) and 7.2%
petroleum coke on a tonnage basis. Our average coal inventory target at Riverton is approximately 60 days.
We had suEcient coal as of December 31,2011 to run 53 days on both units as compared to 40 days as of
December 31,2010. Our future plans are to transition Units 7 and 8 to natural gas and to convert Unit 12
to a combined cycle unit, which will make natural gas the primary fuel at our Riverton PIant.
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The following table sets forth the percentage of our anticipated coal requirements we have secured
through a combination of contracts and binding proposals for the following years:

-

Percentage secured

Year

..............................................
...............................................
2014 ...............................................
2012
2013

87%
61%
43%

All of the Western coal used at our Asbury and Riverton plants is shipped to the Asbury Plant ‘by rad,
a distance of approxhateIy 800 miles, under a six and one-half year contract with the Burlingtan Northern
and Santa Fe Railway Company (BNSF) and the Kansas City Southern Raidway Company which began on
June 30, 2010. Rivcrton receives its Western inventory from the coal transported by train to the Asbury
Plant which is then transported by truck to Riverton. We currentIy Iease one aluminum unit train full time
and a second set is Ieased on a part-time basis to deliver Western coal to the Asbury PIant.
Unit 1 and Unit 2 at the Iatan Plant are coal-fired generating units which are jointly-owned by
KCP&L, a subsidiary of Great Plains Energy, Inc., Missouri Joint MunicipaI Electric Utility Commission,
Kansas Electric Power Cooperative (KEPCO)and us, with our share of ownership being 12% in each
plant. K B & L is the operator of these pIants and is responsible for arranging their fuel supply. KCP&L bas
secured contracts for low sulfur Western coal in quantities sufficient to meet 100%of Jatan’s requirements
for 2012 and approximately95% for 2013,60% for 2014, arid 20% for 2015. The coal is transported bymil
under a contract with BNSF Railway, which expires on December 31, 2013.
The Rum Point Energy Station is a 665-megawat1, coal-fired generating faciIity near Osceola,
Arkansas. The pIant began commercial operation on September 1,2010. We own, through an undivided
interest, 50 megawatts of the plant’s capacity. North America Energy Services is the operator of this plant.
Plum Point Senices Company? U C (PPSC), the project management company actink on behalf of the
joint owners, is responsible for arranging its fucI suppty. PPSC has secured contracts for low s u k Western
cod in quantities sufficient to meet 92% of Plum Point’s requirements for 2012 and approximatery 86% for
2013,85% for 2014 and 57% for 2015. W e have a 15-year Icase agreement, expiring in 2024, for 54 railcars
for our ownership share of Plum Point. In December 2010, we entered into another I5year lease
agreement for an additional 54 railcars associated with our Plum Point purchased power agreement.
Our Energy Center and State Line combustion turbine facilities (not including the State Line
Combincd Cycle (SLCC)Unit,which is fueled 100% by natural gas> are fueled primady by natural gas
with oil also waifable for use primarily as backup. Based on kilowatt hours generated during 2011, Energy
Center generation was 99.5% natural gas with the remainder being fuel oiI, and 100% of thc State Line
Unit 1 generation came from natural gas. As of December 31, 20011, oiI inventories were sufficient for
approximately 2 days of full load operation on Units No. f , 2 , 3 and 4 at the Energy Center and 5 days of
full load opcration for State Line Unit No. 1. As typical oil usage is minimal, these inventories are
sufficient for our current requirements. Additional oil will be purchased as needed.
We have firm transportation agreements with Southern Star Central Pipeline, Inc. with origina1
expiration dates of July 31, 2016,for the transportation of natural gas to the SLCC.This date is adjusted
for periods of contract suspension by us during outages of thc SLCC.This transportation agreement can
also supply natural gas to State Line Unit No.1, the Energy Center or the F5vcrton Plant, as elected by us
on a secondary basis. We also have a precedent agreement with Southern Star, which provides additional
transportation capability until 2022. This contract provides E m transport to the sites listed above that
previousIy were only served on a secondary basis, We expect that these transportation agreements will
serve nearly alI of our natural gas transportation needs for our generating plants over the nex? several
years. Any remaining gas transportation requirements, although small, will be met by utilizing capacity
release on other holder contracts, interruptible transport, or delivered to the plants by others.
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The majority of our physical natural gas supply requirements will be met by short-term fonvard
contracts and spot market purchases. Forward natural gas commodity prices and volumes are hedged
several years into the future in accordance with our Risk Management Policy in an attempt to lessen the
volatility in our fuel expenditures and gain predictability. In addition, we have an agreementwith Southern
Star to purchase one million Dtbs of firm gas storage sexvice capacity for a period of five years beginning in
A p d 2011. The reservation charge for this storage capacity is approximately $1.1 miltion annually- This
storage capacity will enable us to better manage our natural gas commodity and transportation needs for
our electric segment.
The following table sets forth a comparison of the costs, including transportation and other
miscellaneous costs, per million Btu of various types of fueIs used in our electric facilities:
Fuel

1 BdU$

2010

2011

2009

~

cOal--Iatan............................................

..........................................
Cod-Riverton .........................................
Coal-Plum Point .......................................
N a ~...............................................
G
oil ...................................................
Weighted average cost of fuel burned per kilowatt-hour generated .....
Coal-hbUry

$- 1.603
2.315

2.314
1.858
5.475

21.303
2.9558

1.193 $ 1.186
1.877
1.763
1,833
1.768
1.799
6.061
7.376
15.443 14.318
2.9936 3.1698

$

Gus Segment

We have 10,000 MMBtus per day of firm transportation from Cheyenne Plains Pipeline Company.
This provides us with up to 75% of our natural gas purchases from the Rocky Mountain gas area.
Cheyenne Plains interconnects with alt of the interstate piperines listed below that feed our market area.

We have agreements with many of the major suppliers in both the Midcontinent and Rocky Mountain
regions that provide us with both supply and price diversity. We continue to expand our supplier base to
enhance supply reliability as well as provide for increased price competition.
The following table sets forth the current costs, including storage, transportation and other
miscellaneous costs, per m d of gas used in our gas operations:
Service A

m

......
....

Name of Pipeline

Southern Star Central Gas Pipeline
North. ....... Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company
Northwest
ANR Piperine Company
Weighted average cost per mcf
South..

2009
--2011

2010

$6.1619 $6.7063 $7.8475
6.1449 6.1151 7.4055
5.4230
$6.0542

5.3216
$6.3745

7.1160
$7.6395

Employees
At December 31,2011,we had 746 full-time employees, including 51 employees of EDG. 336 of the
EDE empIoyees are members of Local 1474 of The International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
(DEW). On October 17,2011,the Local 1474 IBEW voted to ratify a new two-year agreement which will
extend through October 31,2013. At December 31,2011,34EDG employees were members of Local 1464
of the IBEW. In June 2009, Local 1464 of the IBEW rawed a four-year agreement with EDG effective
June 1,2009.

ELECIlUC OPERATING STATISTICS(')
2013

2010

2009

2008

2007

S 221.687
157.435
78. 925

$ 204.900

$ 179.293

S 174SE4

ma88
67J53
IO.876

129.035
67.712

13.653

S 180.401
135.800
65.983
11.411

19.140

18.199

8;194

6$14
178

18;W
5.703
1?3

Hemic Operating Revenues (0's):
Reidential

...............................

CommerfiaI ..............................
Industrial ................................
Pubtic authoritid .........................

........................
3f ..........................
...............................
Wholesale off-system ........................
%tal eIecaic operating revenued') .................
Wholesale on~ i s o11eaneou
m.........................
Interdepartmentd
'IbtaIsystem

Electricity generated and purchased (OOcUs of kwb):
st

am..,.......,.......................

~ y d m..................................
Combustion turbine .........................
Total gencrated .............................
Purchased ...............................
'Ibtal generated and purchased ....................
Interchange (nct) ............................
Total system output. ..........................
Tnnsmission by others Ios& ...................
'Zbtal system input ............................
Maximum hourly system demand (Kw) ..............
Owncd capacity (end of pcriod) {Kw) ...............
Annual load factor (%) ........................
EIem'e sales (000's of kwh):

201
499. 235
23.271
527506

2,505. 744
43.a98
1,484.472
4335114
1.870301
6210.015

146310

482,910

433.133

1939
6.976
154
416.769
29.697
MA66

2,650. 042

5259304

2,228.716

460.019

U;w

88. 104
1566.074
4.304. 220
%OS5550
639.770

418.789
1434

926.934

32i601
1.480.729

3.262,971

3. 7 4 z w

76.733

2516.702

2,440246

5.779.673

6.182,292

.
1.198.ooo

13922MH)
520

'

...............................
..............................
................................
.........................
........................
TotaI system ...............................
Wholesale off-system ........................
T3alEIcc1ricSalts ...........................
Company we (000's of kWh)(o ...................
kwh losses IOOO's of kwhl ......................
Total System Input ...........................
Customers (avcnge number):
Residcntial ...............................
Commercial ..............................
IndustFiaI ................................
Public authoritid) .........................
Wholesale on-system ........................
'IbtalSystem ...............................
W h o l d e Off-Wtem ........................
Total ....................................
Average annual sales per residential customer (kwb) .....
Average annual revenue pcr residential customer ........
Average residential revcnue per kwh ...............
Aveagc mmmem'd revenue per kWh ...............
Avenge industrial revenue per kwh ................
Rcsidential
Commercial
Industria1
PubIic authontifscs
Wholesale on-system

1.9SL704
1376342

1.199.(XH]
1.409.000

. 53.17

1.022,765

2060.368
1;644;917
1.007.033

126.724

124554

364.866
.~~~ 355.807
..-*~~

~

5,073,401
740.009
5.%UJ10

5,192, 679
798.084
5.990*763

9 271
369339
6.l92, 120

9398

3P- 005
6,3Q366

139.641
24. 155

141.693

r~

357

2021

2r1305
358
2093

9.933

405534

19327

425.161

2,074323
71.360
1,427.298
. .

5.946.263
.

(436)
6.1818 56

(GO)

5.9 45323

.

I

5.779. 105

6.181. 856

5345323

1.085.000
1.257.000

1.173.OOO
1.255. 000

5538

1.152,O MI
1,255.000
54.29

1.866.473

I. 952569

1.930. 493

17275
3441525

115.109
342247

5.115. 067
658203

5.109. 09 1
459.6 65
5,565J56

1379;832
992,165
121.816
332061
.....
4,895347
515.899
5.40SJ 46
9.088
361.771

5339
1.610. 814
1. I 10,328

1.622, 048
1.on30

5@3,270

9209

9.369

140.791
24532
361
1.935
~.

139.E40

369.377

5.779. 105
141.206
24.412

355
1.995

24330
362
1.927

4
4
4
4
4
166.463
167.623
166.178
168563
167.972
22
20
25
22
19
166.483
167.645
166J03
168385
167391
=
13.805
U.871
14.199
14341
13.218
S 1388 $ I.4-46 S IJ78 s 1 3 3 S 1.248
9.18~
9.040
11.18e
994a
9.67~
8.01P
8S9C
9.99c
8.89~
8.60~
[i.IOC
628c
7.72~
6.92~
6.65~

-

.

Sec Itcm 6. "Sclectcd Financial Data" for additional financid information regarding Empire
Includes Public Street 8: Highway Jighting and Public Authorities
(3) Includes tr;msmission service rwcnues. late payment fees, renewable e n e w credit salcs, rent. tic
(4) Before intercompany eliminations
(5) Energy provided in-kind to third party mnsmissionproviders to cornpenarc for Pansmission losses asswciatcd with delivery of
mpadty and encrgy under their transm'ksion tariffs
(6) Includes kwh uscd by Company and Interdepartmental
(1)
(2)

.

.

.

.

.

.
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GAS OPERATING STATISTICS(’I
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
.
.
.
.
.

Gas Operating Revenues (000’s):

.............................
$28. 999
12306
............................
.............................. 682
........................
324
.................... 42,511
..........................
464
3.455
....................
................ 46.430
(ma.................. 67.789

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
PubIic authorities
Total retail sdes revenues
Miscellaneous@)
Transportation revenues
ntal Gas Operating Revenues
Maximum Dairy Flow

Gas delivered to customers (000’s of rncf sales)@)

.............................
Commercid ............................
Industrial ..............................
Public authorities ........................
Total retail sales ...........................
Transportation sales .......................
Total gas operating and transportation sales .......
Company use(9 ..........................
Transportation sales (cash outs) ..............
Mcflosses ..............................
Total Wtem sales ..........................
Residential

Customers (average number):
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Public authorities
Total retail customers
.
Transportation customers

$32.245
13.336

$36.176 $39.639 $39.205
15.552 17.416 16.588

812
342
46.735
436
3.714

2. 066

5.069

752

365
54.159
221

416

50. 885

57314

62340
231
2. 667
65.438

373
56.918
206

73980

70. 046

66.005

6 a j79

2.675

2,687
1 278

2.949
1.397

218

553

30

35
4.934

2,835
1.304
76
30

2. 934

----

2. 560
1.268
102
33

1.265

108
33
4.081
4. 829
8,910
4

3.963
463
8.491
4

.

4.213
4. 330
8543

4. 059
--8.993

(47)
a.448

2.753

59.877

4,245
4,300
8545

4

2

36

140

8.582

9.137

56
8
8.611

3

.

.

70

8.984

.

----~

.............................
38.051 38.277 38.621 39.159 40.315
5.119
5.208
............................
4.951
4. 968
5.038
26
24
..............................
26
26
25
127 124
............... , ........ 136 137 131 ... ................... 43. 164 43.408 43.815 44.431 45.671
...............: ... 311
313
296 272
270
’IbtaI gas customers ........................
43.475 43.721 44. 111 44. 703 45. 941

----~

.

(I) See Item 6. “Selected Financial Data” for additional financial infomation regardhg Empire

.

(2) Primarily includes miscellaneous service revenue and late fees

.

(3) Includes mcf used by Company and Interdepartmental mcf
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Executive Officers and Other Officers of Empire

The names of our officers, their ages and years of sentice with Empire as of December 31, 2011,
positions held during the past five years and effective dates of such positions are presented below. All of
our officers have been empIoyed by Empire for at least the last five years.
Age a!

WWll
Bradley F? B e e c h d ) . . . . 46

Name
-

Laurie A. Delano~)..

..

56

.. ..
Blake Mertcr~s(~).
. .. . . .

34

.. ..

55

Martin 0.Pcr~ning(~). .

..

56

.. .. .

46

. ... .
.. .. .

59

RonaIdE Gatz. ...

Michael E.Palmed4)

Kelly S. Wdters(@.

Janet S. Watson . .
Robert W.Sagefl

61

37

Positions With the Company

President and Chief Executive Officer (2011).
Executive Vice President (2011),Executive
Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer - Electric (ZOlO), Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer - Hlectn'c
(2006)
Vice President - Finance and Chief Financial
Officer, (2011), Controller, Assistant
Secretary and Assistant 'Ileasurer and
Principal Accounting Officer (2005)
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Gas (2006)
Vice President - Energy Supply (ZOll),
General Manager Energy SuppIy (ZOlO),
Director of Strategic Projects, Safety and
EnviromentaI Services (ZOIO),Associate
Director of Strategic Projects (2009),
Manager of Strategic Projects (2006)
Vice President - Transmission Policy and
Corporate Services (201I), Vice President Commercial Opcrations (2001)
Vice President - Commercial Operations,
(ZOll), Director of Commercial Operations
(2006)
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Electric (2011),Vice President Regulatory and Services (2006)
Secretary -Tkeasurer (1995)
Controller, Assistant Secretary and Assistant
Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer
(2011), Director of Financial Services (2006)

-

Withthe
Officer
Company Since S h c e

2001

2001

2002

2005

2001

2001

2001

2011

1986

2001

1980

2011

2001

2006

1994
2006

2011

1995

(1) Bradley E Beccher became President and Chief Executive Officer effective June 1, 2011. Effective
February 4, 2011, Mr. Bcccher was elected executive vice president.
(2) Laurie A. Delano was elected Vice President - Finance and Chief Financial O€6cer effective
August 1, 2011.
(3) Blake Mertens was elected Vice President - Energy Supply effective May I, 2011.
(4) Michael E. Palmer was elected Vice President -Transmission Policy and Corporate Services effective
February 4,2011.
(5) Martin 0. Penning was elected Vice President - Commercial Operations effective February 4,2011.

(6) Kelly S. Wdters was elected Vice President and Chief Operating Officer - EIechic effective
February 4,2011.
(7) Robert W. Sager was elected Controller, Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer and Principal
Accounting Officer effective August 1, 2011.
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Regulation
Electric Segment

GenemL As a public ut%ty, our eIectric segment operations are subject to the jurisdiction of the
M P S C , the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas (KCC), the Corporation Commission of
Oklahoma (OCC) and the Arkansas Public Service Commission (APSC)with respect to services and
facilities, rates and charges, regulatory accounting, valuation of property, depreciation and various other
matters. Each such Commission has jurisdiction over the creation of liens on property located in its state to
secure bonds or other securities. The KCC also has jurisdiction over the issuance of dl securities because
we are a regulated utility incorporated in Kansas. Our transmission and sale at wholesale of electric energy
in interstate commerce knd -our facilities are also subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC, under the
Federal Power Act. FERC jurisdiction extends to, among other things, rates and charges in connection with
such transmission and sale; the sale, lease or other disposition of such facilities and accounting-matters.
See discussion in Item 7, “Management‘s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Competition.”

During 2011, approximately 90.3% of our electric operating revenues was received horn retail
customers. Sales subject to FERC jurisdiction represented approxhately 8.8% of our electric operating
revenues during 2011 with the remaining 0.9% being from miscellaneous sources. The percentage of r e t d
revenues dcrived from each state follows:
Missouri

...................................................88.8%
.....................................................
5.3
..................................................
2.8

Kansas
Oklahoma

Arkansas...................................................

3.1

Rates. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Rate Matters” for information concerning recent electric rate proceeding.
FueZ Adjzrsrmenr Clnuses. Typical fuel adjustment cIauses permit the distribution to customers of
changes in fuel costs, subject to routine. regulatory review, without the need for a general rate proceeding.
Fuel adjustment clauses are presently applicable to our retail electric sales in Missouri, Oklahoma and
Kansas and system whdesale kilowatt-hour sales under FERC jurisdiction. We have an Energy Cost
Recovery Rider in Arkansas that adjusts for changing fuel and purchased power costs on an annual basis.

Gas Segment
Generat As a public utility, our gas segment operations are subject to the jurisdiction of the MFSC
with respect to semices and facilities, rates and charges, regulatory accounting, valuation of property,
depreciation and various other matters. The MPSC aIso has jurisdiction over the creation of liens on
property to secure bonds or other sccuritics.
Purchased Gas Adjustmenf (PGAJ. The PGA clause d o w s EDG to recover fiom our customer^,
subject to routine regulatory review, the cost of purchased gas supplies, including costs associated with our
use of natural gas financial instruments to hedge the purchase prke of natural gas and related carryhg
costs. Thk PGA clause allows us to make rate changes periodically (up to four times) throughout the year
in response to weather conditions and supply demands, rather than in one possibly extreme change per
year.
Environmental Matters
See Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding environmental

matters.
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Conditions Respecting Financing

Our EDE Indenture ofMortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of September 1,1944,as amended and
supplemented (the EDE Mortgage), and our Restated Articles of Incorporation (Rcstated Articles),
specify earnings coverage and other conditions which must be complied with in connection with the
issuance of additha1 first mortgage bonds or cumulative preferred stock, or the incurrence of unsecured
indebtedness. The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under
the EDE Mortgage is limited by terns of the mortgage to $1bdlion. Substantiallyall of the property, plant
and equipment of The Empire District Electric Company @ut not its subsidiaries) is subject to the lien of
the EDE Mortgage. Restrictions in the EDE mortgage bond indenture could affect our liquidity. The EDE
Mortgage contains a requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued, our net earnings (as
defined in the EDE Mortgage) for any hveIve consccutive months within the 5ffeen months preceding
issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements (as defined in the EDE Mortgage) on all hrst
mortgage bonds then outstanding and OD the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds. Our eamings
for the year ended December 31,2011,wouId permit us to issue approxhatcly $511.0 milIion of new first
mortgage bonds based on this test at an assumed interest rate of 6.0%. In addition to the interest coverage
requirement, the EDE Mortgage provides that new bonds must be issued against, among other things,
retired bonds or 60% of net property additions. At December 31, 2011, we had retired bonds and net
property additions which would enable the issuance of at least $697.6 milIion principal amount of bonds if
the annual interest requirements are met. As of December 31, 2011, we arc in compliance with all
restrictive covenants of the EDE Mortgage.

Under our Restated Articles, (a) cumulative preferred stock may be issued only if our net income
availablc for interest and dividends (as defined in our Restated Articles) for a specified twelve-month
period is at Ieast 1%times the sum of the annual interest requirements on all indebtedness and the annual
dividend requirements on dI cumulative preferred stock to be outstanding immediately after the issuance
of such additional shares of cumulative preferred stock, and (b) so long as any preferred stock is
outstanding, the amount of unsecured indebtedness oubtanding may not exceed 20% of the sum of the
outstanding secured indebtedness plus our capita1 and surpIus. We have no outstanding preferred stock
Accordingly, the restriction in our Restated Articles does not currentIy restrict the amount of unsecured
indcbtedness that wc may have outstanding.
The EDG Indenture of Mortgage and Deed oE Trust, dated as of June 1, 2006, as amended and
suppIemented (the EDG Mortgage) contains a requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued,
the amount of such new first mortgage bonds shall not exceed 75% of the cost of property additions
acquired after the date of the Missouri Gas acquisition. The principal amount of all series of first mortgage
bonds outstanding at any one timc under the EDG Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to
$300 million. Substantially all of thc property, plant and equipment of The Empire District Gas Company
is subject to the lien of the EDG Mortgage. The mortgage dso contains a limitation on the issuance by
EDG of debt (including first mortgage bonds, but excluding short-term debt incurred in the ordinary
course under working capital facilities) unless, after giving effect to such issuance, EDG‘s ratio of EB1TDA
(defined as net income plus interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and certain other non-cash charges)
to interest charges for the most rccent four hcaI quarters is at least 2.0 to 1. As of December 31,2011, this
test would allow us to issue approximately $10.7 million principal amount of ncw first mortgage bonds.
See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResuIts of
Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

-

Our Web Site

We maintain a web site at w.empiredistrict.com. Our aanual report on Form 10-K,quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on form 8-K and related amendments are available fiee of charge
through our web site as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with or furnished to the
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SEC electronically. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our Code of 3usiness Conduct and Ethics,our
Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officer, the charters for our Audit
Committee, Compensation Committee and NominatinglCorporate Governance Committee, our
Procedures for Reporting Complaints on Accounting, Internal Accounting Controls and Auditing Matters,
our Procedures for Communicating with Non-Management Directors and our Poky and Procedures with
Respect to Related Person Transactions can also be found on our web site. AIl of these documents are
available in print to any interested party who requests them. Our web site and the information contained in
it and connected to it shaIl not be deemed incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K
ITEM lA. RTSK FAlXORS
Investors should review carefulIy the following risk factors and the other information contained in this
Form IO-K. The risks we face are not limited to those in this section. There may be additional risks and
uncertainties (either currently unknown or not currently believed to be material) that could adversely
affect our financial position, results of operations and liquidity.
Readers are cautioned that the risks and uncertainties described in this Form 10-Kare not the only
ones facing Empire. Additional risks and uncertainties thar we are not presently aware of, or that we
currently consider immaterial, may also affect our business operations. Our business, financial condition or
results of operations (including our ability to pay dividends on our common stock) could suffer if the
concerns set forth below are rcaiized.

We are exposed to increases in costs and reductions in revenue which we cannot control and which
may adversdy affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The primary drivers of our electric operating revenues in any period are: (1) rates we can charge our
customers, (2) weather, (3) customer growth and (4) general economic conditions. Of the factors driving
revenues, weather has the greatest short-term effect on the demand for electricity for our regulated
business. Mild weather reduces demand and, as a result, our electric operating revenues. In addition,
changes in customer demand due to downturns in the economy could reduce our revenues.
The primary drivers of our electric operating expenses in any period are: (1) fuel and purchased power
expenses, (2) maintenance and repairs expense, including repairs following severe weather and plant
outages, (3) taxes and (4)non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization expense. Although we
generally recover thcse expenses through our rates, there can be no assurance that we wilI recover all, or
any part of, such increased costs in future rate cases.

The primary drivers of our gas operating revenues in any period are: (1) rates we can charge our
customers, (2) weather, (3) custorncr growth, (4) the cost of natural gas and interstate pipeline
transportation charges and ( 5 ) general economic conditions. Because natural gas is heavily used for
residential and commercial heating, the demand for this product depends heavily upon weather patterns
throughout our natural gas service territory and a significant amount of our natural gas revenues are
recognized in the first and fourth quarters refated to the heating seasons. Accordingly, our natural gas
operations have historically generated less revenues and income when weather conditions are warmer in
the winter.

The primary driver of our gas operating expense in any period is the price of naturaf gas.
Significant increases in electric and gas operating expenses or reductions in electric and gas operating
revenues may occur and result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.
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We are exposed to factors that can increase our fuel and purchased power expenditures, inchding
disruption in ddiveries of coal or natural gas, decreased output from our power pIants, failure of
performance by purchased power counterparties and market risk in o w fue1 procurement s t m t e a .

Fuel and purchased power costs are our largest expenditures. Increases in the price of coal, natural
gas or the cost of purchased power will result in increased eIectric operating expenditures. Given we have a
fuel cost recovery mechanism in alt of our jurisdictions, our net income exposure to the impact of the risks
discussed above is significantIy reduced. However, cash flow could still be impacted by these increased
expenditures. We are also subject to prudency reviews which could negatively impact our net income if a
regulatory commission would conclude our costs were incurred imprudently.

We depend upon regular deliveries of coal as fuel for our Riverton, Asbury, latan and Plum Point
plants. Substantially dl of this cod comes from mines in the Powder River Basin of Wyoming and is
delivered to the plants by train. Production problems in these mines, railroad transportation or congestion
problems, or unavailability of trains could affect delivery cycle times required to maintain plant inventory
Ievels, causing us to implement coal conservation and supply replacement measures to retain adequate
reserve inventories at our facilities, These measures could include some or aU of the following: reducing
the output of our cod plants, increasing the utilization of our gas-fired generation faditics, purchasing
power from other suppliers, adding additional Ieased
to our supply system and purchasing locally
mined coal which can be delivered without using the railroads. Such measures could resuIt in increased
fuel and purchased powcr expenditures.
We have also established a risk management practice of purchasing contracts for future fuel needs to
meet underlying customer needs and manage cost and pricing uncertainty. Within this activity, we may
incur losses from these contracts. By using physical and h a m i d instruments, we are exposed to credit risk
and market risk. Market risk is the exposure to a change in the vdue of commodities caused by fluctuations
in market variables, such as price. T h e fair value of derivative financial instruments we hold is adjustcd
cumulativeIy on a monthly basis until prescribed determination periods. At the end of each determination
period, which is the last day ofeach caIendar month in the period, any realized gain or loss for that period
related to the contract wilt be reclassified to fuel expensc and recovered or refunded to the customer
through our he1 adjustment mechanisms. Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty might fail to fulfill its
obIigations under contractual terms.

We may be unabIe to recover increases in the cost of natura1 gas from our natura1 gas utiiity
customers, or may lose customers as a result of any price increases.
In our natural gas utiIity business, we are permitted to recover the cost of gas directly from our
customers through the use of a purchased gas adjustment provision. Our purchased gas adjustment
provision is regularly reviewed by the MPSC In addition to reviewing our adjustmcnts to customer rates,
the MPSC reviews our costs for prudency as well. To thc extent the MPSC may determine certain costs
were not incurred prudently, it could adversely affect our gas segment eamkgs and cash flows. In addition,
increases in natural gas costs affect total prices to our customers and, therefore, the competitive position oE
gas relative to dectricity and other forms of energy. Increases in natural gas costs may also result in lower
usage by customers unable to switch to alterntttc fuels. Such disallowed costs or customer losses couId have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and resuIts of operations.
'

We are subject to reguIation in the jurisdictions in which we operate.

We are subject to comprehensive regulation by federal and statc utility regulatory agencies, which
significantly influences our operating environment and our abiIity to recover our costs fiom utility
customers. T h e utility commissions in the states where we operate regdate many aspects of our utility
operations, including the rates that we can charge customers, siting and construction of facilities, pipeline

1s

safety and compliance, customer service and our ability to recover costs we incur, including capital
expenditures and fuel and purchased power costs.
The FERC has jurisdiction over wholesaIe rates for electric msmission service and eIecbic energy
sold in interstate commerce. Feded, state and local agencies also have jurisdiction over many of our other
activities.

Momation concerning recent filings requesting increases in rates and d a t e d matters is set forth
under Item 7, “Management‘s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations -Rate Matters.”

We are unable to predict the impact on our operating results from the regulatory activities of any of
these agencies. Despite our requests, these reguiatory commissions have sole discretion to leave rates
unchanged, grant increases or order decreases in the base rates we charge our utility customers. They have
similar authority with respect to our recovery of increases in o w he1 and purchased power costs. If our
costs increase and we are unable to recover increased costs through base rates or fuel adjustment clauses,
or if we are unable to fully recover our invesbnents in new facilities, our results of operations could be
materially adversely dfected. Changes in regdations or the imposition of additional regulations couId afso
have a materid adverse effect on o w results of operations.
Operations risks may adversely affect our business and financial results.

The operation of our electric generation, and electric and gas transmission and distribution systems
involves many risks, including breakdown or failure of expensive and sophisticated equipment, processes
and persome1 performance; operating limitations that may be imposed by equipment conditions,
environmental or other regulatory requirements; fuel supply or fuel transportation reductions or
interruptions; transmission scheduling constraints;and catastrophic events such as fires, explosions,severe
weather or other simiIar occurrences. In addition, our information technology systems and network
hhstructure may be vulnerable to internal or external cyber attack, unauthorized access, computer
viruses OK other attempts to h a m our systems or misuse our confidential information.

We have implemented training and preventive maintenance programs and have security systems and
related protective infrastructure in place, but there is no assurance that these progmms wilI prevent or
miaimizc future breakdowns, outages or failures of our generation facilities or related business processes.
In those cases, we would need to either produce replacement power fiom our other facilities or purchase
power from other suppliers at potentially voIatiIe and higher cost in order to meet our sales obligations, or
implement emergency back-up business system processing procedures

.

These and othcr operating events may reduce our revenues, increase costs, or both, a d ’may
materially affect our results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

A n y reduction in our credit ratings could materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
Currently, our corporate credit ratings and the ratings for our securities are as follows:

...................
SeniorNotes ...........................
Commercial Paper .......................
Outlook ...............................
Corporate Credit Rating

EDE First Mortgage Bonds. ................

*

Not rated.

19

Firdl

Moa df s

n/r*
BBB+
BBB
F3
Stable

Baa2
A3

Baa2
P-2
Stable

Standard & Poofs

BBB BBB+
BBB A-3
Stable

The ratings indicate the agencies’ assessment of our ability to pay the interest and principal of these
securities. A rating is not a recommendation to purchase, sell or hold securities and each rating should be
evaluated independently of any other rating. The Iower the rating, the higher the interest cost of the
securities when they are sold. In addition, a downgrade in our senior unsecured long-term debt rating
would result in an increase in our borrowing costs under our bank credit facility. If any of our ratings fdI
below investment grade (investment grade is defined as Baa3 or above for Moody’s and B3B- or above for
Standard & Poor‘s and Fitch), our ability to issue short-term debt, commercial paper or other securities or

to market those securities would be impaired or madc more difEicuIt or expensive. merefore, any such
downgrades couId have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, any actual down,mde of our commercial paper rating fmm Moody’s or Fitch, may
make it difficult for us to issue commercial paper. To the extent we are unable to issue commercial paper,
we will need to meet our short-term debt needs through borrowings under our revohing credit faciIitia,
which may result in higher costs.

We cannot assure you that any of our current ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time
or that a rating will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency $ in its judgment,
circumstances in the future so warrant.

We are subject to environmental Iaws and the incurrence of environmenta1 liabilities which may
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We are subject to extensive federal, state and Iocal regulation with regard to air and other
environmental matters. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial position. In addition, new environmental laws and
regulations, and new interpretations of existing environmental laws and regulations, have been adopted
and may in the future be adopted which may substantially increase our future environmental expenditures
for both new facilities and our existing facilities. Compliance with current and future air emission
standards (such as those limiting emission levels of sulfur dioxide (SO,),emissions of mercury, other
hazardous pollutants (HAPS),nitrogen oxide @Ox), and, potentially, carbon dioxide (Cod)has required,
and may in the future require, signscant environmental expenditures, Although we have historically
recovered such costs through our rates, there can be no assurance that we wiIf recover all, or any part of,
such increased costs in future rate cases. The incurrence of additional material environmantaI costs which
are not recovered in our rates may result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.
The cost and schedule OF construction projects may materially change.

Our capital expcnditurc budget for the ncxt three years is estimated to be $470.2 million. This includes
expenditures for environmcntal upgrades to our exjsting fadities and additions to our transmission and
distribution systems. There are risks that actual costs may exceed budget estimates, deIays may occur in
obtaining permits and materids, suppliers and contractors may not perform as required under their
contracts, there may be inadequate availability, productivity or increased cost of qualified craft labor,
start-up activities may take longer than planned, the scope and timing ofprojects may change, and other
events beyond our control may occur that may materially aEFect the scheduIe, budget, cost and
performance of projccts. To the extent the compIetion of projects is delayed, we expect that the timing of
receipt of inmeascs in basc rates reff ecting our investment in such projects will be corrcspondingly dclaycd.
Costs associated with these projects will also be subject to prudency review by regulators as part of future
rate case filings and all costs may not be allowed recovery.
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Financial market disruptions may increase financing costs, limit access to the credit markets or muse
reductions in investment vaIues in our pension plan assets.

We estimate our capital cxpendirures to be $147.2 million in 2012. Although we believe it is unlikely
we will have difficulty accessing the markets for the capital needed to complete these projects (ifsuch a
need arises), financing costs codd fluctuate. Our pension plan and Other Postretirement Benefits (OPEB)
costs increased, resulting in an 58.8 miltion increase in our 2010 net pension and OPEB liability. During
2011, OUT net pension and OPEB liability increased $8.2 million. We expect to fund approximately
$14.3 million in 2012 for pension and OPEB liabilities. Future market changes could result in increased
pension and OPEB liabilities and fundig obligations.

ITEM l3. UNRESOLWD STAFF COMMENTS
Nom.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
EIectric Segment Faciiities

At December 31,2011,we owned generating facilities with an aggregate generating capacity of 1,392
megawatts.

Our principal electric baseload generating plant iS the Asbury Plant with 207 megawatts of generating
capacity. The plant, located near Asbury, Missouri, is a coal-fired generating station with two steam turbine
generating units. T h e plant presently accounts for approximately 14%of our owned generating capacity
and in 2011 accounted for approximately 27.0% of the energy generated by us. Routine plant maintenance,
during which the entire plant is taken out of service, is scheduled annually, normally for approldmateiy
three to four weeks in the spring. Approximately every fifth year, the maintenance outage is scheduled to
be extended to approximately six weeks to permit inspection of the Unit No. 1 turbine. The next such
outage is scheduled to take place in the fall of 2013. The Unit No. 2 turbine is inspected approximately
every 35,000 hours of operations and was Iast inspected in 2001. As of December 31,2011,Unit No. 2 has
operated approximately 3,541 hours since its last turbine inspection in 2001. When the Asbury Plant is out
of service, we typically experience increased purchased power and fuel expenditures associated with
replacement energy, which is now likely to be recovered through our fuel adjustment clauses.
Our generating plant located at Riverton, Kansas, has two steam-ekhc generating units (Units7
and 8) with an aggregate generating capacity of 92 megawatts and four gas-fired combustion turbine units
(Units 9, IO, 11 and 12) with an aggregate generating capacity of 157 megawatts. The steam-electric
generating units burn coal as a primary fuel and have the capability of burning naturd gass.We installed a
Siemens V84.3A2 combustion turbine (Unit 12) at our Riverton plant in 2007. It began commercial
operation on April 10,2007.

W e own a 12%undivided interest hthe coal-fired Unit No. 1 and Unit No.2 at the Iatan Generating
Station located near Weston, Missouri, 35 miIes northwest of Kansas City, Missouri, as well as a 3%
interest in the site and a 12% interest in certain common facilities. Unit No. 2 entered commercial
operation on December 31, 2010. We are entitled to 12% of the units’ available capacity, currently 85
megawatts for Unit No. 1 and 102 megawatts for Unit No.2, and are obligated to pay for that percentage
of the operating costs of thc units. KCP&L operates the units for the joint owners.

We own a 7.52% undivided interest in the cod-fired Plum Point Energy Station located near Osceola,
Arkansas. We are entitled to 50 megawatts, or 7.52% of the unit’s available capacity. The Plum Point
Energy Station entered commercial operation on September 1,2010.
Our State Line Power PIant, which is located west of Joplin, Missouri, consists of Unit No. 1, a
combustion turbine unit with generating capacity of 94 mcgawatts and a Combined Qcle Unit with
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generating capacity of 495 megawatts of which we are entitled to 60%, or 295 megawatts. The Combined
Cycle Unit consists of the combination of ma combustion turbines, two heat recovery steam generators, a
steam turbine and auxiliary equipment. The Combined Cycle Unit is jointly -owned with Westar
Generating Inc., a subsidiary of Westar Energy, Inc., which owns the remaining 40% of the unit. Westir
reimburses us for a percentage of the operating costs per our joint ownership agreement. We are the
operator of the Combined QcIe Unit. All units at our State Line Power Plant bum natural gas as a
primary he1 with Unit No. 1 having the additiooa1 capabiIity of burning oil.

We have four combustion turbine peaking units at the Empire Energy Center in Jasper County,
Missouri, with an aggregate generating capacity of 262 megawatts. These peaking units operate on natural
gas, as well as oil.
Our hydroelectric generating plant (FERC Project No. 2221), located on the White River at Ozark
Beach, Missouri, has a generating capacity of 16 megawatts. We have a long-term license fiom FERC to
operate this plant which forms Lake Ihneycomo in southwestern Missouri. As part of the Energy and
Water Development Appropriations Act of 2006 (the Appropriations Act), a new minimum flow pattern
was established with the intent of increasing minimum flows on.recreational streams in Arkansas. To
accompIish this, the level of Bull Shoals Lake will be increased an average of 5 feet. The increase at Bull
Shoals will decrease the net head waters availabk for generation at Ozark Beach by 5 feet and, thus,
reduce our electrical output. We estimate the lost production to be up to 16% of our average annual
energy production for this unit. The Ioss in this facility would require us to replace it with additional
generation from our gas-hcd and coal-fired units or with purchased power. The Appropriations Act
required the Southwest Power Administration (SWPA), in coordination with us and our relevant public
service commissions, to determine our economic detriment assuming a January 1,2011 implementation
date. On June 17,2010, the SWPA posted a revised Final Determinationthat our customers' damages were
$26.6 million. On September 16, 2010,we rcceived a $26.6 million payment from the SWPA, which was
deferred and recorded as a noncurrent liability. We originalIy increased our current tax Iiability by
approximatcly $10.0 million recognizing that the $26.6 million payment might have been considered
taxabIe income in 2010. During the htst quarter of 2011, we submitted a pre-filing agreement with the
TnternaI Rcvenue Service (IRS) requesting that a determination be made regarding whether or not the
payment could be deferred under certain sections of the Internal Revenue code. The IRS accepted our
position that the payment be deferred for tax purposes and recognized over the next twenty years. As such,
we reduced the current tax liability in accordance with this deferral. The SWPA payment, net of taxes, is
being used to rcduce fuel expense for our customers in all our jurisdictions. h addition, it is our current
understanding that the SWPA has delayed the implementation of the new minimum flows until 2016.
At December 31,2011, our transmission system consisted of approximately 22 d e s of 345 kV lines,
441 miles of 161 kV lines, 745 miles of 69 kV Iines and 81 miles of 34.5 kV lines. Our distribution system
consisted of approximately 6,842miles of Iinc at December 31,2011 as compared to 6,923 miIes of Ibe at
Deccrnber 31,2010. The decrease is due to distribution system lines destroyed during the May 22,2011
tornado that have not yet been replaced.

Our eIcctric generation stations, other than Plum Point Energy Station, are located on land owned in
fee. We own a 3% undivided interest as tenant in common in the Iand for the Iatan Generating Station. We
own a similar interest in 60% of the land used €or the State Line Combined Cycle Unit. Substantidy all of
our electric transmission and distribution facilities are Iocated either (1) on property leased or owned in
fee; (2) over streets, alleys, highways and other public pIaces, under franchises or other rights; or (3) over
private property by virtue of easements obtained from the record holders of titIe. Substantidy AI of our
clectric segment property, plant and equipment are subject to the EDE Mortgage.
We also own and operate water pumping facilities and distribution systems consisting of a total of
approximatdy 87 miles of water mains in three communities in Missouri.
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Gas Segment Facilities

At December 31, 2011, our principal gas utility properties consisted of approximately 87 miles of
Qansrnissioamains and approximately 1,130 miles of distribution mains.

Substantially dl of our gas transmission and distribution facilities are located either (1) on property
leased or owned in fee; (2) under streets, alleys, bighways and other public places, under fraachises or
other rights; or (3)under private property by virtue of easements obtained fiom the record hotders of tide.
SubstantialIy all of our gas segment property, plant and equipment are subject to the EDG Mortgage.

Other Segment
Our other segment consists of our leasing of fiber optics cable and equipment (which we also use in
our own UtiIity operations).

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
See Note 11 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements’’ under Item 8, which description is
incorporated herein by reference.

JTEM 4. MINI% SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART XI
I T E M 5 MARKET
4
FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQRELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATIXRS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUrrY SECURITIES.

Our common stock is Iisted on the New York Stock Exchange. On February 3,2012,there were 4,738
record holders and 28,680 individuaI participants in security position listings. T h e high and Iow sale prices
for our common stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange for composite transactions, and the
amount per share of quarterly dividends declared and paid on the common stock for each quarter of 2011
and 2010 were as follow:
Price of Common Stock
Dividends Paid
2011
2010
Per Shnre
High
Low
High
IAW2011
2010

------

$22.40
............................
..........................
23.26
..........................
21.12
......................... 21.40

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter..
Fourth Quarter..

$20.70

$19.30
20.00
18-10 20.41

18.01

18-41

22.50

$17.75 $0.32 $0.32
17.57 0.32 0.32
18.41 0.00
0.32
20.06 0.00 0.32

HoIders of our common stock are entitled to dividends, if, as, and when declared by the Board of
Directors, out of funds regally available therefore subject to the prior rights of holders of any outstanding
cumulative preferred stock and preference stock. Payment of dividends is determined by our Board of
Directors after considcring all relevant factors, inchding the amount of our retained earnings, which is
essentially our accumulatcd net income less dividend payouts. In response to the expected Ioss of revenucs
resulting fiom the May 22, 2011 tornado, our level of retained earnings and other relevant factors, our
Board of Dircctors suspended our quarterly dividend for the third and fourth quarters of 2011. On
February 2,2012, the Board of Directors re-cstabIishcd the dividend and declarcd a quarterIy dividend of
$0.25 per share on common stock payabIe on March 15,2012 to hoIders of record as of March 1,2012. As
of December 31, 2011, our retained earnings bdance was $33.7 milIion, compared to $5.5 million at
December 31, 2010. A reduction of our dividend per share, partially or in whole, could have an adverse
effect on our common stock price.
See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation - Dividends”for information on limitations on our ability to pay dividends on our common

stock.
During 2011, no purchases of our common stock were made by or on behalf of us.
Participants in our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan may acquire, at a 3% discount,
newly issued common shares with reinvested dividends. Participants may also purchase, at an averaged
market price, newly issued common shares with optional cash payments on a weekly basis, subject to
certain restrictions. We also offer participants the option of safekeeping for their stock certificates.

Our shareholders rights plan, dated July 26, 2000, expired July 25, 2010, pursuant to its terms. See
Note 5 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 for additional information. In
addition, we have stock based compensation programs which are described in Note 4 of “Notes to
ConsoIidated Financial Statements” under Item 8.
Our By-law provide that K S A Sections 17-1286 through 17-1298, the Kansas Control Share
Acquisitions Act, will not appIy to control share acquisitions of our capital stock.
See Note 4 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 €or additional information
regarding our common stock and equity compensation plans.
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The following graph and tabIe indicates the value at the end of the specified years of a $100
investment made on December 31, 2006, in our common stock and similar investments made in the
securities of the companies in the Standard & Poor's 500 Composite Index (S&P 500 Index) and the
Standard & Poois Etectric Utilities Index (S&P Electric Utility). T h e graph and table assume that
dividends were reinvested when received.

TohI Return Analysis
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$ 9733

$8021

$l23,W
$105.49

$913f
$66.46

$92.21
$94.39
$84.05

$116.73 $114.46
$ 97.64 $118.11
$ 96.71 $ 98.76

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(hthousands, except per share amounts)

..............
...............
..................
..
...........
....................
.......
.....

Operating revenues
Operating income
Total allowance for funds used during
construction
h o m e from continuing operations.
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax
Net income
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding - basic
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding - diluted

Earnings from continuing operations
per weighted average share of
common stock - basic and diluted
Loss from discontinued operations per
weighted average share of common
stock - basic and diluted.
Total earnings per weighted average
share of common stock - basic and
diluted
Cash dividends per share
Common dividends paid as a
percentage of net income
AlIowance for funds used during
construction as a percentage of net
income .....................
Book value per common share (actual)
outstanding at end of year

2011

2010

2009

200%

2007

$ 576,870

$ 541,276
$ 80,495

$ 497,168
$ 74,495

$ 518,163
$ 71,012

$ 490,160
$ 65,566

$

96,934

$
$

54,971

$
$

54,971

$

10,174
47,396

$
$

41,296

$

47,396 $

41.296

41,852

40,545

41,887

40,580

5f2 $
-

$

.

$

.......

$

-

$
$

0.64

......................
..........
........
.......

Capitalization:
Common equity .............
Long-term debt.
Ratio of earnings to k e d charges. ...
Total assets
Plant in service at origind cost ......
Capital expenditures (including

.............
....................

m c ) ....................

$

-

131 $
$

1.17 $
-

131 $
$

$

$

39,722 $

63
33,244

34,924

33,821

30,587

34,956

33,860

30,610

$

1.18
-

1.17 $
1.28 $

1.18 0
1.28 $
108.5%

0.9%

21.5%

34.2%

15.82 $

15-75

S 33,151
$

1.17 $

-

$

109.7%

$

-

$

48.6%

16.53

7,665

12,518
39,722

-

$

S

S

14,133 $

$

0.00

1.17 $
1.28 $

1.09

1.28

117.2%

109.0%

23.1%

3 1.5%
$

1.09

15.56 $

16.04

$ 693,989 $ 657,624 $ 600,150 $ 528,872 $ 539,176
$ 692,259 $ 693,072 $ 640,156 $ 611,567 I 541,880
2.87~
2.63~
2.15~
2.19~
2.08~
$2,021,835 $1,921,311 $1,839,846 $1,713,846 $1,473,074

$2,176,650

$2,108,115

$1,718,584

$1,586,152

$1,506,234

$ 101,177

$ 108,157

$ 148,804

$ 206,405

$ 195,568
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AMI
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

We operate o w businesses as three segments: electric, gas and other. The Empire District Electric
Company @DE) is an operating public utility engaged in the generation, purchase, transmission,
distribution and sale of electricity in parts of Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas. As part of our
electric segment, we dso provide water service to three towns in Missouri. The Empire District Gas
Company (EDG) is our wholly owned subsidiary. It provides natural gas distribution to customers in 44
communities in northwest,north central and west central Missouri. Our other segment consists of our fiber
optics business.
During the year ended December 31,2011, our gross operating revenues were derived as follows:
Electric segment sales*.
Gas segment sales
Othcr segment s a l e s . .

........................................

.............................................
.........................................

90.9%
5.0
1.1

SaIes f ~ o mour eIectrk segment include 03% fiom the sale of water.

Electric Segment

The primary drivers of our electric operating revenues in any period are: (1) rates we can charge our
customers, (2) weather, (3) customer growth and (4) general economic conditions. The utility commissions
in the states in which we operate, as we11 as the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), set the
rates which we can charge o w customers.In order to offset expenses,we depend on our abiIity to receive
adequate and timely recovery of our costs (primarily fuel and purchased power) andlor rate relief. We
assess the need for rate relief in all of the jurisdictions we serve and file for such relief when necessary. T h e
effects of timing of rate relief are discussed in detai1 in Note 3 of “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” under Item 8. Of the factors driving revenues, weather has the greatest short-term effect on
the demand for dechicity for our regulated business. Very hot summers and very cold winters increase
electric demand, whiIe mild weather reduces demand. Residential and commercial saIes are impacted
more by weather than industrial sales, which arc mostly affected by business needs for electricity and by
general economic conditions. Customer growth, which is the growth in the number of customers,
contributes to the demand for eIectricity. Our annual customer growth is calculated by comparing the
number of customers at the end of a year to the number of customers at the end of the prior year. Due to
the devastating EF-5 tornado that hit the JopIin, Missouri area on May 22, 2011, damaging or destroying
thousands of homes and businesses (discussed below), we ended 2011 with 1.5% fewer electric customers.
As we continue to add customers back to our system, our customer growth expectations range from
approximately 0.5% to 1.1% over the next several years, We define electric sdes growth to be growth in
k w h d e s period over period excluding the impact of weather. The primary drivers of eIectric sales growth
are customer growth and general economic conditions.
T h e primary drivers of our electric operating expenses in any period are: (I) fuel and purchased power
expense, (2) operating maintenance and repairs expense, including repairs folIowing severe weather and
pIant outages, (3) taxes and (4) non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization expense.
HistoricalIy, fuel and purchased power costs were the expense items that had the most s i m c a n t impact
on our net income. However, with the addition of the Missouri fuel adjustment mechanism in 2008, we
now have a fuel cost recovery mechanism in a11 of our jurisdictions, which significantly reduces the impact
of fluctuating fueI and purchased power costs on our net income.
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Gas Segment

The primary drivers of our gas operating revenues in any period are: (1) rates we can charge our
customers, (2) weather, (3) customer growth, (4) the cost of natural gas and interstate pipeline
transportation charges and (5) general economic conditions.The MPSC sets the rates which we can charge
OUT customers. In order to offset expenses, we depend on our ability to receive adequate and timely
recovery of our costs (primarily commodity natural gas> andlor rate relief. We assess the need for rate
relief and file for such relief when necessary. A Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA)clause is included in our
gas rates, which allows us to rccover our actual cost of natural gas from customers through rate changes,
which are made periodically (up to four times) throughout the year in response to weather conditions,
natural gas costs and supply demands. Weather affects the demand for natural gas. Very mid winters
increase demand €or gas, while miId weathcr reduces demand. Due to the seasonal nature of the gas
business, revenues and earnings are typically concentrated in the November through March period, which
generally corresponds with the heating season. Customer growth, which is the growth in the number of
customers, contributes to the demand for gas. Our annual customer growth is calculated by comparing the
number of customers at the end of a year to the number of customers at the end of the prior year. Our gas
segment customer contraction for the year ended December 31,2011 was 0.9%, which we believe was due
to depressed economic conditions. We expect gas customer growth to be flat during the next severd years.
We define gas sales growth to be growth in mcf sales excluding the impact of weather. The primary drivers
of gas sales growth are customer growth and general economic conditions.
The primary driver of our gas operating expense in any period is thc price of natura1 gas. However,
because gas purchase costs for our gas utility operations are normally recovered from our customers, any
change in gas prices does not have a corresponding impact on income udess such costs are deemed
imprudent or cause customers to reduce usage.
Earnings

For the year ended December 31, 2011, basic and diIuted earnings per weighted average share of
common stock were $1.31 on $54.9 miIlion of net income compared to $1.17 on $47.4 million of net income
for the year ended December 31, 2010. The primary positivc driver for 2011 as compared to 2010 was
increased electric revenues due primarily to rate increases. These increases were partially offset by a
decrease in sates due to the loss of customers resulting from the May 22,2011 tornado. Other negative
drivers for 2011 as compared to 2010 were increased eIectric segment operation and maintenance
expenses, increased depreciation and amortization amounts resulting horn the compIetion of our
construction program and changes in AFUDC amounts. A portion of the increase in depreciation and
amortization expense reflects the effect of additional regulatory amortization colIected in revenues in our
Missouri rate case effective September 2020. The regulatory amortization expense ended effective June 15,
201 1.

The tabre below sets forth a reconciliation of basic and diIuted earnings per share between 2010 and
2011, which is a non-GAAP presentation. The economic substance behind our aon-GAAP earnings per
share (EPS)measure is to present the after tax impact of signibcant items and components of the
statement of income on a per share basis before the impact of additional stock issuances.
We bcIieve this prescntation is useful to invcstors because the statement of income does not readily
show the EPS impact of the various components, including the effect of new stock issuances. This could
I i t the readers’ understanding of the reasons for the EPS change from previous years. This information is
useful to management, and we believe this information is useful to investors, to better understand the
reasons for the fluctuation in EPS between the prior and current years on a per share basis.

This reconciliation may not be cornpaable to other companies or more useful than the G M
presentation included in the statements of income. We also note that this presentation does not purport to
be an afternative to earnings per share determined in accordance with GAAP as a measure of operating
performance or any other measure of financial performance presented in accordance with G N
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Management compensates for the limitations of using non-GAAP financial measures by using them to
suppIement GAAP results to provide a more complete understanding of the factors and trends af€ecting
the business than GAAP results alone. The dilutive effect of additional shares issued included in the table
reflects the estimated impact of all shares issued during the period.
Earnings Per Share

- 2010. ...................................

I 1.17

Revenues
Electric on-system
Electric off-system and other
Gas....................................................
Other
Expenses
Electric fuel and purchased power
Cost of natural gas sold and transported
Operating - electric segment.
Operating -gas segment.
Maintenance and repairs
Depreciation and amortization
Othertaxes..............................................
Interest charges..

.........................................
S 0.62
.................................
0.02
(0.07)
..................................................
0.01
............................. (0.02)
......................... 0.06
................................
(0.12)
................................... 0.02
....................................
(0.07)
................................ (0.08)
(0.05)
......................................... 0.01
m c ................................................
(0.15)
Change in effective income tax rates ............................ 0.00
Dilutive effect of additional shares issued ........................
(OW
Other income and deductions. ................................
0.00
Earnings Per Share - 2011. ...................................
$131
-

Fourth Qunrter Ra&

Earnings for the fourth quarter of 2011 were $8.7 million, or $0.21 per share, as cornpared to
$8.5 million, or $0.20 per share, in the fourth quarter 2010. Electric segment revenues for the quarter
ended Dcccmber 31,2011 increased $1.1 million compared to the same period in 2010 mainly due to rate
increases in 2011. Other regulated operating expenses increased $2.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2011
primarily related to increased operating expenses due to new plant in service, increased pension and
retiree healthcare expenses and a $0.7 million increase in maintenance expenses. These increases were
partially offset by a $2.7 million decrease in depreciation primarily due to a decrease in the amount
recorded for reguIatory amortization.
2011 Activities

Tornado and Dividend Suspension
On May 22,2011, a dcvastating EF-5 tornado hit the Joplin, Missouri area damaging or destroying
of the sccond quarter of 2011, approximately 4,200
customers remained unable to return to service due to damaged or destroyed structures with that number
being reduced to approximately 3,600 customers by the end of the thiid quarter. Approxhately 600
tsrnporary housing facilities were added to our system during the third quarter to shelter some 1 0 4
residents displaced by the tornado. Joplin’s continuing tornado recovery efforts have resulted in
approximately 2,300 customers still unable to return to service in the J o p h area at the end of 2011. As of
December 31, 2011, our system-wide customer count is down by approximately 1,800 as compared to
pre-tornado levels. We estimate that lost customers from the tornado will reduce kilowatt hour sales
approximately lcss than 1% over the near term. Storm restoration costs were initially estimated to be in the
$20 mitlion to $30 million range. As of December 31, 2011, approximately $20.6 m u o n in initial storm
costs have been incurred as well as approximately $5.5 million in new service extensions to customers. T h e
thousands of homes and businesses. At the end
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majority of these costs have been capitalized, We expect to spend an additional $6.5 &ion to rebuild our
destroyed substation, but anticipate insurance proceeds will cover most of this cost. The ongoing loss of
revenue associated with the tornado was mitigated in 2011 by increased usage due to storm recovery
efforts, rate increases that became effective during 2010 and early 2011 and record hot weather during the
month of July. We expect the loss of electric load and corresponding revenues to abate as customers
rebuild. As we continue to add customers back to our system, our customer growth expectations range
from approximatdy 05% to 1.1% over the next several years.

In response to this expected loss of revenues,our b e 1 of retained earnings and other relevant factors,
our Board of Directors suspended our quarterly dividend for the third and fourth quarters of 2011. On
February 2,2012,the Board of Directors re-establishcd the dividend and decIared a quarterly dividend of
$0.25 pcr share on common stock payable on March 15, 2012 to hoIders of record as of March 1,2012.

On June 6,2011, we filed an Accounting Authority Order with the MPSC requesting authorization to
defer expenses associated with the tornado and to allow for recovery of the loss of the fmed cost
component indudcd in our rates resulting horn the Iost sales. On November 15, 2011, a joint settlement
agreement was filed with the MPSC dowing us to defer actual incremental operating and maintenance
expenses associated with the repair, restoration and rebuilding activities resurting from the tornado. The
settlement does not include deferral of the loss of revenues associated with the fixed cost component
included in our rates due to the reduction in customers served by us as a resuIt of the tornado. T h e
settlement was approved by the MfSC on November 30,2011, effective December 7,2011. For additional
information, see “Rate Matters” below.
Environmental Compihce

In July 2011, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) finatized the Cross State Air Pollution Rule
(CSAPR)requiring a reduction in NOx and SO2 levels by 2014. T h e d e was scheduled to take effect
January 1, 2012,but the District of CoIumbia Circuit Court of Appeals issued a last-minute stay in late
December 2011. In the meantime, we are moving forward with our compliance plan, as detailed in Note I1
to the consolidated financial statements, to meet Mercury and Air Todcs Standards (MATS) Rules, which
will assist in meeting final CSAPR requirements. See Note I1 of Totes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” under Item 8 for additional information.

New

Union Agreement

At December 31,2011,we had 746 full-time employees, including 51 employees of EDG. 336 of thc

EDE employees are members of Local 1474 of The hternationd Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
(IBEW). On October 17,2011, the Local 1474 I3EW voted to ratify a new two-year agreement which will
extend through October 31,2013.
Ialan Coal Consewatkm related fo Miworn* River Flooding

The Iatan plant, Iocated dong the Missouri River north of Kansas City and operated by Kansas City
Power & Light (,,KCF&L”), was impacted by flooding in the Midwest during June and July of 2011.
Beginning June 30,201 1 coal deliveries to Iatan were suspended. As a result, in early July it was decided to
begin operating Man Units I and 2 at reduced loads in an effort to conserve cod. Additionally, wc entered
into a short term purchase of power for the month of A ~ w tot address a portion of the lost generation
fiom the Iatan units. We expect that additional h e 1 and purchased power costs incurred as a result of this
event will be recovered in our rates through fuel recovery mechanisms. The Iatan plant returned to normal
operations on October 13, 2011.
Amendment of EDE Mortgage

On June 9,2011,wc amended the Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of The Empire District
Electric Company (EDBMortgage) in order to provide us with additional flexibility to pay dividends to
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our shareholders by permitting the payment of any dividend or distnibution on, or purchase oc shares of its
common stock within 60 days after the reIated date of declaration or notice of such dividend, distribution
or purchase if (i) on the date of declaration or notice, such dividend, distribution or purchase would have
complied with the provisions of the indenture and (ii> as of the Iast day of the calendar month ended
immediately preceding the date of such payment, our ratio of total indebtedness to total capitalization
(after giving pro forma effect to the payment of such dividend, distribution, or purchase) was not more
than 0.625 to 1. The amendment followed the successful completion of a solicitation of consents fiom the
holders of our First Mortgage Bonds outstanding under the EDE Mortgage. We received consents from
holders of 73.91% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding bonds and paid consent fees of
approximately $0.9 milIion. See “Dividends” below.
Fiwncings

On January 28,2011, we filed a $400 d i o n shelf registration statement with the SEC covering our
common stock, unsecured debt securities, preference stock, and hrst mortgage bonds. This shelf
regishation statement became effective on February 7,2011. We have received regulatory approval for the
issuance of securities under this shelf from all four states in our electric service territory, but we may only
issue up to $250 million of such securities in the form of first mortgage bonds. We plan to use proceeds
fiom offerings made pursuant to this shelf to fund capital expenditures, rehancings of existing debt or
general corporate needs during the three-year effective period.
On January 17,2012, we entered into the Third Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement
which amended and restated our Second Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated
January 26, 2010. This agreement extended the termination date of the revolving credit facility from
January 26,2013 to January 17,2017 and reduced the pricing. The agreement also removes the M e r of
credit facility and indudes a swingIine loan facility with a S15 million swingline loan sublimit. The
aggregate amount of the revolving credit commitments remains $150 million,inciusive of the $15 million
mingline loan sublimit. See “Liquidity and Capita1 Resources” berow for additionat information.
Regrrhfmy Muffem
A settlement agreement among the parties to our Missouri rate case filed on September 28,2010was
approved by the MPSC on June I, 2011, reflecting an overall annual incrcase in rates of $18.7 million, or
approxhately 4.7%, effective June 15,2011. Due to rate design changes, this rate increase, however, will
primarily impact our winter season rates which generally run fiom October through May. AIso as part of
the settlement, regulatory amortization expense of $14.5 million annually and construction accounting
terminated on June 15,2011. T h e approved settlement included authorization of a tracker mechanism for
the S W A payment associated with the capacity restrictions to be implemented for our O m k Beach hydro
facility. We agreed to flow the S W A payment, net of tax, back to our customers over a ten year period
using a tracker mechanism resulting in an annual decrease to expenses of approximately $1.4 milIion. The
settIernent agreement also allowed for a tracker mechanism reIated to Plum Point, latan 2 and Iatan
common plant operating expenses. We have recorded a reguIatory asset for the difference between actual
expenses (excluding fuel and fuei related expenses) and the amount of expense included in base rates.

On June 17,2011, we fled an application with the Kansas Corporation Cammission (KCC) seeking a
rate increase of $1.5 d o n , or 6.39%. The rate increase was requested to recover the costs associated with
our investment in the Iatan 1,Iatan 2 and Plum Point generating units and the depreciation and operation
and maintenance costs deferred since the in-servicedates of the units. The June 17,2011 filing was made
under the KCC’s abbreviated rate m e mIes which the KCC authorized in our 2009 Kansas rate case. The
case included a request to recover the Iatan and Plum Point cost deferrals over a 3-year period. A joint
settlement agreement was filed on November 10,2011 and approved by the KCC on December 21,2011,
resulting in an incrcase in m u d revenues of $1.25 million, or approximatcly 5.2%.The new rates became
effective on January 1,2012.
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On June 30, 2011, we filcd a request with the Oklahoma Corporation Commission (OCC) for an
annual increase in base rates for our Oklahoma electric customers in the amount of $0.6 million, or 4.1%
over the base rate and Capital Reliability Rider (CRR) revenues that were currently in effect. A stipulation
and agreement, reached by all parties participating in the m e , was fiIcd on November 17, 2011. This
agreement, which was approved by the OCC on January 4,2012, made rates prcviously collected under the
CRR permanent and will result in a net overall increase of total annual revenues of $0.2 milIion, or
approximately 1.66%. The agreement also rcmovcs he1 and purchase power costs from base rates. Fuel
and purchase power costs wilI be listed a separate line item, identified as the FueI Adjustment Charge,
on customers bills.

On February 2,2011 we entered into a unanimous settlement agreement with the parties involved in
our Arkansas rate case fiIed A u p t 19, 2010. The settlement included a general rate increase of
$7.1 million, or 19%. The APSC approved the settlement on April 12, 2011 with the new rates effective
April 13,2011.
On March 12, 2010, we filed Generation Formula Rate (GFR)tariffs with the E R C which we
propose to be utilized for our wholesde customers, On May 28, 2010, the FERC issued an order that
conditionally approved out GFR filing subject to refund effective June 1,2010. On June 30,2010, three of
our on-system wholesale customers were granted intervention in the GFR rate case. On September 15,
2010, the parties agreed to a settlement in principle and OR May 24,2011, we, the Missouri Public Utility
AlIiancc and the cities of Monett, Mt.Vernon and Lockwood, Missouri filed a Settlement Agreement and
Offer of Settlement with the FERC which was approved on November 3,2011. We refunded approximately
$1.3 million, including interest, in November 2011 as a result of this settlement.
See Note 3 of “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 €or additional
information regarding rate matters.
Litigatbn
A lawsuit has been filed in Jasper County Circuit Court against: us by three of our residential
customers, purporting to act on behalf of all Empire customers. These customers are seeking a refund of
certain amounts paid for service provided by Empire between January 1,2007, and December 13,2007. We
will vigorousIy defend against the claims made against us by these thrcc residential customers. At all times,
we charged the three plaintiffs, and all of our customers, ?he rates approved by and on fiIe with the MPSC.

The rates charged by us during the time period at issue were approved by the MPSC in our 2006 rate
MPSC in that case were appcaIed by the OPC, acting on behalf of the public, and
certain industrial customers. The Missouri Court of Appeals affirmed a11 decisions entcrcd by the MPSC in
our 2006 rate case,
case. The orders of the

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion andyzes s i u c a n t changes in the results of operations for the years 2011,
2010 and 2009.
The following tabIc represents our results of operations by operating segment for the appIicableyears
ended December 31 (in millions):
Electric

...................................................

2011
2010
2009
-

$50.6

$43.2 $39.1

......................................................2.7 2.6 0.9
Other.. ...................................................
1.6 1.6 1.3
Net income ..................................................
$54.9 $47.4 $
413
Gas
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Elecdric Segment
Overview

Our electric segment income for 2011 was $50.6 million as compared to $43.2million for 2010.

Electric operating revenues comprised approximately 90.6% of our total operating revenues during
2011. Electric operating revenues for 2011,2010,and 2009 were comprised of the following:
2011
2010
2009
..................................................
42.4% 42.4% 42.6%
.................................................
30.1
30.3
31.4
...................................................
15.1
14.4 15.2
...........................................
3.7
4.0
4.2
.........................................
4.5
4.7
......................................... 2.6 2.6 3.3
2.7
.........................................
1.6
1.6
1.6

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Wholesale on-system
WhoIesaIe off-system..
Miscellaneous sources*
Other elemic revenues

Primarily other pubIic authorities

The amounts and percentage changes from the prior periods in kilowatt-hour ((‘kwh”) d e s and
electric segment operathg revenues by major customer class for on-system and off-system sales were as
follows:
Customer Class

2011
1,982.7 2,060.4
2010

....................
....................
1,576.3 1,644.9
......................
1,022.8 1,007.0
............. 364.9 355.8
Other@).......................
128.7 126.5
TotaI on-system sales. ........... 5,075.4 5,194.6
Off-system.. ................... 740.0 798.1
Total KWh Sales ................ 5,815.4 5,992.7
Residentid.
Commercial
Industrial
Wholesale on-system

%Changen’

(3.8)%
(4.2)

-2010

2009

2,060.4 1,866.5
1,644.9 1,579.8
1,007.0
355.8
126.5

992.2

(2.3)

332.0
123.4
-5,194.6 4,893.9

(7.3)
(3.0)

798.1
5,992.7

515.9
5,409.8

1.6
2.5

1.8

46 Change[’’

10.4%

4.1
1.5
7.2
2.5

6.1
54.7

10.8

(1) Percentage changes are based on actual k w h s d e s and may not agree to the rounded amounts shown
above.
(2) Other kwh d e s include street lighting, other public authorities and interdepartmental usage.
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Customer Class

2011

2010

.......................... $221.7 $204.9
........................ 157.4 146.3
...........................
78.9
69.7
................... 19.1 19.2
Other(2). ............................
13.9 12.3
Total on-system revenues .............. 491.0 452.4
Off-system.. .........................
23.3 22.9
Total revenues from KWh sales ........... 514.3 475.3
Miscellaneous revenues(3)................ 8.2
7.6
Total electric operating revenues ........... $522.5 $482.9
Water revenues ....................... 1.8
1.8
Total Electric Segment Operating Revenues .. $524.3 $484.7
Residential
Commercial..
Industria1
Wholesale on-system

% Change”’

8.2%

7.6
13.3

(04
12.7
85

1.7
3.2
8.2
8.2
(1-9)

8.2

2010
2009
% Change[’’
--

$204.9 $180.4
146.3 135.8
69.7
66.0
19.2
12.3
452.4
22.9

18.2

11.6
--

475.3
7.6

412.0

13.6%

7.7
5.6
5.8
6.1

14.3

9.8
59.6

426.3

11.5

6.8
-$482.9 $433.1
1.8

1.8
$484.7 $434.9

11.1
11.5
2.3

11.5

(1) Percentage changes are based on actual revenues and may not a g e e to the rounded amounts shown
above.
(2) Other operating revenues include street lighting, other public authorities and interdepartmental

usage.
(3) Miscellaneous revenues include transmission service revenues, Iate payment fees, renewable energy
credit sales, rent, etc.

We have a fuel cost recovery mechanism in all of our jurisdictions, which significantIy reduces the
impact of fluctuating fuel costs on our net income. For this reason, we bdieve electric gross margin,
dthough a non-GAAP measurement, is useful for understanding and analyzing changes in our electric
operating performance fiom one period to the next. We define electric gross margins as dcctric revenues
less fuel and purchased power costs.

The tabIe below represents our electric gross margins for the years ended December 31 (in millions),
which is a non-GAAP presentation. 1% believe this presentation is useful to investors and have included
the anaIysis below as a complement to the financial information we provide in accordance with GAAP.
However, these margins may not be comparable to other companies’ presentations or more useful than the
GAAP information we provide elsewhere in this report.

..............................
.......................
...........................

Electric revenues
Fuel and purchased power
Electric gross margins

Margin as % of total electric revenues.

..............

2011
ZOIO
2009
$522.5 $482.9 $433.1
200.3 199.3 182.0
$3222 $283.6 $251.1
-

61.7% 58.7% 58.0%
The electric gross margin increased during 2011 as compared to 2010 mainly due to the September
2010 Missouri rate increase, the July 2010 Kansas rate increase, the September 2010 and March 2011
Oklahoma rate increases and the April 2011 Arkansas rate increase. T h e electric gross margin increased
during 2010 as compared to 2009 mainly due to the 2010 rate increases as well as favorableweather in 2010
as compared to 2009.
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2012 Compared to 2010

On-System Operating Revenues and Kilowatt-Hour Sales

KWh sales for our on-qstem customers decreased approximately 2.3% during 2011 as compared to
2010 primady due to the loss of customers due to damaged or destroycd structures resulting fiom the
May 22,2011 tornado, although some of the effect has been offset by temporary housing units. Revenues
for our on-system customers increased approximately $38.6 million (8.5%). Rate changes, primarily the
Scptembcr 2010 Missouri rate increase, the July 2010 Kansas rate increase, the September 2010 and March
2011 Oklahoma rate increases and the April 2021 Arkansas rate increase, contributed an estimated
$49.2 million to revenues. We estimate the impact of the tornado, after adjusting for weather, was an
approximate 2% reduction in Idowart hour sales €or 2011. This reduction is reflected in a $7.7 rniilion
reduction in revenues, which includes customer growth in the first quarter of 2011,offset by negative sales
growth (contraction) for the second, third and fourth quarters of 2011, resulting from the loss of customers
due to the loss of residences and businesses. Weather and othcr related factors decreased revenues an
estimated $2.9 mitlion in 2011 as compared to 2010,primarily due to mild weather in the first and fourth
quarters of 2011. Total cooling degree days (the cumulative number of degrees that the average
temperature for each day during that period was above 65’ F)for 2011 were 4.6% more than 2010 and
33.0% more than the 30-year average mainIy due to unseasonably hot weather in June and July of 2011.
Total heating degree days (the sum of the number of degrees that the daily average temperature for each
day during that period was below 65” F)for 2011 were 2.6% less than 2010 and 0.3% less than the 30-year
average.

Residential and commercial kwh sales decreased in 2011 primarily due to the 10sof residences and
businesses in the May 22,2011 tornado. The related revenues increased during 2011 primarily due to the
Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas rate kmeases. Industrial kwh sales increased 1.6% in 2011 as
compared to 2010 when there was a slowdown created by economic uncertainty. Industrid revcnues
increased 13.3% mainly due to the Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas rate increases. On-system
wholesale k w h sdes increased during 2011 as compared to 2010 reflecting the warmer weather in the third
quarter of 2011. Revenues associated with these sales decreased 0.6% primarily due to the portion of
FERC revenues that were subject to refund whiIe we were waiting on approval of the Settlement
Agreement and Offer of Settlement fled with the FERC on May 24,2011. We refunded approximately
$1.3 million of these revenues, including interest, in November 2011 as a result of this settlement.

Off-SystemElectric ~ n s a c t i o n s
In addition to sales to our own customers, we also scll power to other utilities as available, including
through the Southwest Power Po01 (SPP) energy imbalance senices @IS) market. See
Competition”
below. The majority of our off-system salcs margins arc included as a component of the fuel adjustment
clause in our Missouri,Kansas and Oklahoma jurisdictions and our transmission rider in our Arkansas
jurisdiction and generatry adjust the fuel and purchased power expense. As a result, nearly all of the
off-systcmsales margin flows back to the customer and has little effect on net income.
‘I-

Off-system sales decreased during 2011 as compared to 2010 primarily due to limited power available
€or sale during the third quarter of 2011 as the excessive heat required us to use our resources to serve our
own load. Off-system revenues increased 1.7%. Total purchascd power rclated expenses are included in
our discussion of purchased power costs below.
Miscellaneous Revenues
Our miscellaneous revenues were $8.2 miltion during 2011 as compared to $7.6 million during 2010.
These revenues are comprised mainly of transmission revenues, late payment fees and renewable energy
credit sales.
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Operating Revenue Deductions - Fuel and Purchased Power
During 2011, total fuel and purchased power expenses increased approltimateIy $1.0 milIion (0.5%)as
compared to 2010. The table below is a reconciliation of our actud he1 and purchased power expenditures
(netted with the reguhtory adjustments) to the fuel and purchased power expense shown on our
statements of income for 2011 and 2010.
(in millions)

-2011

2010

...............
.......................
.......................
..........................
.......................
..

Actual fuel and purchased power expenditures
$196.5 $200.0
Missouri fuel adjustment recove@
73
3.1
Missouri he1 adjustment deferralel.
(2.7)
(4.5)
Kansas regulatory adjustments@)
(0.6) (0.1)
SWFA amortization(3)..................................
(15)
1.3
0.8
Unrealized (gain)/loss on derivatives
$200.3
$199.3
Total fuel and purchased power expense per income statement
- -

(1) Recovered from customers from prior deferral period.
(2) A negative amount indicates costs have been under recovered kom customers and a positive
amount indicates costs have been over recovered from customers. Missouri amount includes
the deferral of additional costs due to construction accounting, which terminated as of
June 15, 2011, the effective date of rates for our 2010 Missouri rate case.

(3) Missouri ten year amortization of the $26.6 million payment received from the SWPA in
September, 2010.

Summarized in the table below are our 2011 estimated cost and volume changes in the components of
fuel and purchased power expenses when compared to 2010. This table incorporates dl the changes
mentioned above. As shown below, the largest impact on fuel and purchased power costs was increased
coal costs.
2011 vs. 2010

(in millions)

S(4.1)
..............................
................................... 3.0
........................
(4.0)
..................................... 9.5
................................
(7.9)
1.2
............................
3.3
...........................
s 1.0
TOTAL .............................................
=

Natural gas generation volume
Cod generation volume
Purchased power spot purchase voIume
Coal(costpermWh)
Natural gas (cost per mwh)
Purchased power (cost per mWh)
Other (primarily fuel adjustments).
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Operating Revenue Deductions

- Other Than Fuel and Purchased Power

Regulated operating expenses increased approximately $7.4million (105%) during 2011 as compared
in the following accounts:

to 2010 primarily due to changes
(in millions)

.. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . .. , .
.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . ... .. .
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. - . . .
. .. . . . . . . . . , . .. . . . . .. ..
. . . . . . . .. .. . .. .. . . . .. . . . .. .
. . .. .. . .. .. . ... .. - ... .. ..
. .. .. . . .. .. .. .. -.. , .. ... . .... - .
. . . . .. . . .. .. . , ... -.. .. .- . .
. . . . .. . .. . . .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . .
.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . , .. .. . . . .
.. .. .. .. . . . . . . . ... .. . .. ... . .
.. . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. .. .. . . .. . . .
. . . . . . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . .. .. . .. .+ . . . .
.............................................

Employee pension expense ,
.
.. Steam power other operating expense
Transmission and distribution expense . .Regulatory commission expense.
. ..
.- .
Employee health care expense - .
.
.
Injuries and damages expense .
...
Property insurance , . .
..
.. ,
Other power supply expense . .
..
Customer assistance expense
. ..
..
Uncollectible accounts
. ..
.
General labor costs. , .
..
. ,
Professional services , .
,.
..
Other steam power expense(')
...
Other miscellaneous a m u n t s (netted).
..
T O N
+

2011 rs. 2010

S 3.1
2.7

2.4
0.7
05
0.5

0.3
0.2
0.2
0.2

+ .

+

I

(1) Related to Iatan 1 and Iatau 2 construction accounting in accordance with OUT agreement
with the MPSC that allowed defend of certain costs until the plant additions were included
in customer rates. This d e f c d terminated as of June 15,2011,the effective date of rates for
our 7,010Missouri rate case.

Maintenance and repairs expense increased approximatdy$4.3million (11.9%) during 2011 primarily
due to changes in the following accounts:
(in millions)

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .
. .. .. .. . . . .. . . ..
. . . . . . . .. . .
. . . .. .. .
.
.. .
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ..
. . . . .. . . .. . .. . . .. .
..............................................

Distribution maintenance expense .
.. .. ..
..
Maintenance and repairs expense to SLC@
.
,..
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Iatan pIant .
..
.
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Plum Point pIant , .
*
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Riverton plant - coal units. .
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Riverton plant - gas units
latan deferred maintenance expense
. .
..
..
Other miscellaneous accounts (netted)
.
..
..
TOTAL

2011 vs. 2010

$ 2.0

1.8
1.5
0.7
(1.2)
(0.3)

(0.31

0.1
$ 4.3
-

(I) Mainly due to a msformer failure in December 2011.
Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $4.3 million (7.9%) during 2011 as
compared to 2010. This reflects increased depreciation of $6.3 million due to increased plant in service
during 2011 and the effect of ending deferred depreciation related to Iatan 2 as allowed in our regulatory
agreements. This increase was partialIy offset by a decrease in regulatory amorthation expense of
$0.9 million due to the termination of construction accounting as of June 15,2011, the effective date of
rates for our 2010 Missouri rate case.
Other taxes increased approximately $3.0 million due to increased property tax reflecting our
additions to plant in service and increased municipal hnchise taxes.
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2010 Cumpured lo 2009

On-System Operating Revenues and Kilowatt-Hour SaIes

KWh sales for our on-system customers increased approximately 6.1% during 2010 as compared to
2009 with the associated revenues increasing approximateIy $405 &on
(%8%). Weather and other
related factors increased revenues an estimated $24.1 million. Total cooling degree days (the cumulative
number of degrees that the average temperature for each day during that period was above 65" F) for 2010
were 56.5% more than 2009 and 27.2% more than the 30-year average. Total heating degree days (the sum
of the number of degrees that the d d y average temperature for each day during that period was below 65"
F) for 2010 were 2.9% more than 2009 and 2.3% more than the 30-year average. Rate changes, primarily
the September 2010 Missouri rate increase and July 2010 Kansas rate increase (discussed below),
contributed an estimated $14.0 million to revenues, while continued sales growth contributed an estimated
$2.4 million.

Residential and commercial k w h sdes increased in 2010 primarily due to favorable weather during
the ycar. T h e related revenues increased during 2010 primarily due to the Missouri and Kansas rate
increases, as we11 as continued d e s growth. Industrial k W h sales increased 1.5% in 2010 as compared to
2009 when there was a slowdown created by economic uncertainty. Industrid revenues increased 5.6%
mainly due to the 2010 Missouri and Kansas rate increases. On-system wholesale kwh sales and revenues
increased reflecting the increased market demand resdting fiom the favorabIe weather.
Off-System Electric nansactions

Off-systemrcvcnues and related expenses were higher during 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily due
to increased market demand resulting from the favorable weather discussed above. Total purchased power
rclated expenses are incIuded in our discussion of purchased power costs beIow.
Miscellancous Revenues

Our miscellaneous revenues were 57.6 million during 2010 as cornpared to $6.8 million during 2009.
These revenues are comprised mainly of transmission revenues, late payment fees and renewable energy
credit sales.
Operating Revenue Deductions - h e 1 and Purchased Power

During 2010, totaI fuel and purchased power expenses increased approximately $i7.3 million (9.5%)
as compared to 2009. The table below is a reconciIiation of our actual fuel and purchased power
expenditures (netted with the regulatory adjustments) to the fuel and purchased power expense shown on
our statements of income for 2010 and 2009.
(in millions)

2010
2009
-

.............................
$200.0 $182.1
....................................
3.1
1.7
.....................................
(4.5)
(2.0)
.......................................
(0.1)
0.5
....................................
0.8
(0.3)
-............... $1993
$182.0
--

Actual fuel and purchased power expenditures
Missouri fuel adjustment recoveryCI).
Missouri fuel adjustment deferral@)
Kansas regulatory adjustmend2)
Unrealized (gain)/loss on derivatives
'IbtaI fuel and purchased power expense per income statement
(1) Recovered from customers from prior dcferraI period.

(2) A negative amount indicates costs have been under recovered fiom customers and a positive amount
indicates costs have been over recovered fiom customers.
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The ovemlI fuel and purchased power increase primarily reflects the effect of increased market
demand in 2010 resuiting fiom favorable weather conditions.
Summarized in the table below are our 2010 estimated cost and volume changes in the components of
fuel and purchased power expenses when compared to 2009. This tabk incorporates all the changes
mentioned above. As shown below, the largest impact on fuel and purchased power costs was increased
generation by our gas-fired units.
2010 YS 2009

..............................
...................................
........................
.....................................
.................................
............................
............................
...............................................

Natural gas generation volume.
Cod generation volume.
Purchased power spot purchase volume
Coal (cost per mwh).
Natural gas (cost per mWh]
Purchased power (cost per mWh)
Other (including fuel adjustments)
TO
Operating Revenue Deductions

$35.1

7.5
(9.8)

(0.91
(16.9)
3.4

(f4
$17.3
-

- Other Than h e 1 and Purchased Power

Regulated operating expenscs increased approximately$7.0 million (11.1%) during 2010 as compared
to 2009 primarily due to changes in the following accounts:
2010 vs. 2009

(indllrons)

........................ $ 1.9
......................................
1.2
.................................
1.0
.............................
1.0
...............................
1.5
.........................
0.6
.......................................
0.4
...............................
0.3
...............................
0.3
....................................
0.3
...............................
(W
........................
0.4
TOTAL .............................................
$7.0
=

Transmission and distribution expenset')
General labor costs.
Employee pension expense
Employee health care expense..
Customer accounts expensev)
Steam power other operating expense
Property insurance
Injuries and damages expense
Customer assistance expense.
General office expense
Other steam power expense"
Other miscellaneous accounts (netted).

(1) Approximately $1.6 million of this total is for charges incurred for delivering the output from
Plum Point to our system.
(2) MaMy increased banking fees and uncollectible accounts.
(3) Related to Tatan 1 and Iatan 2 operating costs that we were abIe to defer in accordance with
our agreement with the MPSC that allowed deferral of certain costs until the plant additions

were included in customer rates. Construction accounting terminated as of June 15, 2011,
the effective date of rates for our 2010 Missouri rate case.
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Maintenance and repairs expense increased approximately $3.8 milIion (11.8%) during 2010 primarily
due to changes in the following accounts:
(la millions)

. . . . . ... . . .. . . . .. .. .. .
..
. ... ..
. .. .. .. .
. . .. . . . . .
... .. . .. . .
. . . .. .. .. . . .. . . . .
.. . .
. . . . . .. . .
. . .. . .
. . . . . . . .. .
. .. . . .
. ..
. . .. .
. .. . .. .
.. .. .
... .. . . .
. .. .. . . ..
.. . . .

7010 us. 2009

Distribution maintenance
. ..
,
.. - ,
... .. .. .
Transmission maintenance expense..
. . .- .
- . . ..
. .. . . ,
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Riverton plant - coal unitsn’. .
.- .
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Iatan plant .
. .. ,
. . .. ..
Maintenance and repairs expense at: the Plum Point plant
. .. .. .., ,
. .
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Asbury plant ,
. .. .. , ,
.. .
Maintenance and repairs expense at the Riverton plant - gas units.
. . .. .. .
Maintenance and repairs expense to SLCC”)
. . . .. . , , - .. . . . ,
Other miscellaneous accounts (netted)
. .. . . .
. .. . . . . ..

TOTAL .......................................................-...

$ 1.3

0.7
0.9
0.7

0.4
0.3
0.4

(1.1)

0.2
-

$ 3.8
=

(1) Mainly due to continued implementation of our system reliability plan.
(2) Mainly due to the 2010 five-year maintenance outage.

(3) Decrease mainIy due to maintenance outage in 2009.
Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $5.9 million (12.4%) during 2010
reflecting our additions to plant in service and to additional regulatory amortization of $3.1 million. The
remainder is increascd plant in service in 2010, partially offset by the effect of deferred depreciation
related to Iatan 2 as allowed in our regulatory agreements pertaining to our Kansas and Missouri
jurisdictions. This is net of the construction accounting effect of deferring $2.0 million of Iatan 1 and Iatan
2 depreciation expense in 2010 as compared to $0.8million of Iatan 1 depreciatian expense in 2009. Other
taxes increased approximateIy $2.0 million due to increased property tax reflecting our additions to plant in
scmicc and increased municipal franchise taxes.
Gas Segment
Gas Operating Revenues and Sales

The foIIowing tables detail our natural gas sales and revenues for the years ended December 31:
Total Gas Delived to Customers
%Change 2010
2009
46Chnnge

-----2011

(bcf salcs)

2010

.. .. , . , . , . . , . . . . .. . . . . - . . . .. . 2.56 2.68
. .. .. . .. .. .., . , . , . . . ... .. - ... . 2.27 1.26
.. . . .. . .. ... , . . , . .. . .. .. . . . 0.10 0.11
Othc#) . - . . . . . . . , . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . . , 0.03 0.03
Total retail sales..
. . . , .. .. . . , . . . . . . . .. .. 3.96 4.08
Transportation saledl). . , .. .. .. . . . . .. .. .. .. . 4.53 4.83
Bra1 gas operating sales . . .. . , . . . . , . .. . . . . .. . 8.49 8.91
Residential..
Commercial
Industrial(’)

+.

A

m . .
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-

(4.31%

0.3

2.68
1.26

2.69
1.27

(6.2)

0.11 0.22
0.03 0.03
4.08 4.21
4.S3 4.33

(4.7)

8.91

(5.9)

(0.9)
(2.9)

8.54

(0.4)%
(1.0)
(50.5)

11.6
(3.1)
11.5
4.3

Operating Revenucs and Cost of Gas Sold
($

2010
%Change
20102009%Change
--

201

In millions)

.............................$29.0 $32.3
............................
12.5
13.3
............................ 0.7 0.8
............................... 0.3 0.4
......................
$42.5 $46.8
........................
0.4
0.4
.................. 3.5 3.7
................ $46.4 $50.9
......................... 22.8 2G.6
. . $23.6 $24.3

Residential
Commercial
Industrial(').
OtheP)
Total retail revenues
Other revenues..
Bansportation revenuesfl)
Total gas operating revenues
Cost of gas sold
Gas operating revenues over cost of gas in rates
~

(10.1)% $32.3 $36.2
(6.2) 13.3 15.5
(16.0)
0.3
2.1
(5.5)
(9.0)

0.4

0.4
$54.2

7.3

$46.8
0.4

(7.0)

3.7

0.2
2.9

(3.8)

$50.9

$57.3

(14.5)

--

26.6 35.6
(2.5) $24.3 $21.7

(10.9)s
(14.2)

(60.7)
(6.0)
(13.7)
107.3
26.6
(11.2)
(5.2)

11.8

~

(1) Percentage change reflects three industrid customers switching to transportation during 2011.
(2) Other includes other public authorities and interdepmental usage.
201I Compared tu 2010

Operating Revenues and bcf SaIes
Gas retail sales decreased 2.9% during 2011 as compared to 2010 reflecting both cwromer contraction
of 0.9% and customers switching from sdes service retai1 to transportation.We expect gas customer growth
to be flat during the next several years. Residential sales decreased during 2011 despite heating dcgree
days being 1.8% higher in 2011 than 2010. Heating degree days were 0.4% lower in 2011, however, than
the 30-year average. Commercial sales increased slightly during 2011. Industrial sales decreased 5.9%
during 2011 due to customer contraction and the wansfer of the customers between classes mcntioaed
above.
During 2011, gas segment revenues were approximately $46.4 million as compared to $50.9 million in
2010, a decrease of 8.8%. This decrease was largdy driven by a decrease in the PGA that went into cffect
November 2, 2010. Durhg 2011, our PGA revenue (which represcnts the cost of gas recovered fiom our
customers) was approximately $22.8 million as compared to $26.6 million in 2010, a decrease of
approximately $3.8 million (14.5%), representing a decrease in the cost of gas. Our margin (defined as gas
operating revenues less cost of gas in rates) was $0.7 million less in 2011 as compared to 2010.

Our PGA cIause allows us to recover from our customers, subject to routine regulatory review, the
cost of purchased gas supplies, transportation and storage, including costs associated with the use of
financial instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas. Pursuant to the provisions of the PGA

clause, the difference between actual costs incurred and costs recovered through the application of the
PGA are reflccted as a regulatory asset or regulatory Iiability until the baIance is recovered from or
credited to customers.

As of December 31, 2011, we had unrecovered purchased gas costs of $0.2 million recorded as a
current regulatory asset and $1.3 million recorded as a non-current regulatory asset.
Operating Revenue Deductions

Total other operating expenses were $8.3 million during 2011 as compared to $9.5 million in 2010,
primarily due to a $0.6 million decrease in customer accounts expense (mainlyuncollectible accounts), a
30.3 miIIion decrease in rent expense, a $0.2 miUion decrease in employee pension expense and a
$0.2 million decrease in general labor costs.
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Depreciation and amorbtion expense increased approximately $0.5 million (15.2%) during 2011 due
to increased depreciation rates resuIting fiom our 2010 Missouri gas rate case.
Our gas segment had net income of $2.7 million in 2011 as cornpared to $2.6 milIion in 2010.
2010 compared to 2009

Operating Revenues and bcf Sales
Gas retail sales decreased 3.1% during 2010 as compared to 2009 reflecting customer contraction of
0.9%. We betieve this contraction was due to depressed economic conditions. Residential and commercial
sales decreased sIightiy during 2010 despite heating degree days being 1.8% higher in 2010 than 2009.
Heating degree days were 2.2% lower in 2010, however, than the 30-year average. Industrial sales
decreased during 2010 due to customer contraction and the transfer of the customer between classes
mentioned above.

During 2010, gas segment revenues were approximatery $50.9 million as compared to $57.3 million in
2009, a decrease of 11.2%. This decrease was Iargety driven by lower PGAS that went into effect
November 13, 2009 and November 2, 2010. During 2010, our PGA revenue was approximately
$26.6 W o n as compared to $35.6 million in 2009, a decrease of approximately $9.0 million (25.2%),
representing a demcasc in the cost of gar,. The cost of natural gas was lower for 2010 compared to 2009 as
we experienced more than a 20% decrease in the annual price. The overa11 impact resulted in an improved
margin of approximately $2.6 million primarily due to an increase in base rates for our Missouri gas
customers that was effective April I, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, we had unrecovered purchased gas costs of $0.4 million recorded as a
non-current regulatory asset and over recovered purchased gas costs of $1.2million recorded as a current
regulatory liabiIity.
Operating Revenue Deductions

Total other operating expenses were $9.5 million during 2010 as compared to $10.3 million in 2009,
primarily due to a $0.7 million decrease in employee pension expense and a $0.2 million decrease in
customer accounts expense (mainIy uncolIeciibIe accounts) partially offset by a $0.1 m o a increase in
regulatory commission expense.
Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $1.0 milIion (50.5%) during 2010 due
to increased depreciation rates resulting from our 2010 Missouri gas rate case.

Our gas segment had net income of $2.6 miIIion in 2010 as compared to $10.9million in 2009.
CumolidafedCompany
Income Taxes

The folIowing tabIe shows the changes in our consolidated provision for income taxes (in millions) and
our consolidated effective federal and state income tax rates for the applicable years ended December 31:

.. ... .. .. .. , .. .. .. .. , . , . . .
., ... .. .. ... . . . . .

Consolidated provision for income taxes .
. .
Consolidated effective federd and state income tax rates
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2011
2010
2009
-

3.6 $10.9 S 0.4
38.4% 39.2% 32.5%

$

T h e effective tax rate for 2011 is Iowcr than 2010 primarily due to an adjustment made in 2010 as a
resuIt of the Patient Protection and AEordable Care Act, which became law on March 23, 2010. This
legislation included a provision that removed the non-taxable status, for income tax purposes, of Medicare
D subsidies received. Although the elimination of this tax benefit does not take effect until 2013, this
change required us to recognize the full accounting impact in our financial statements in the period in
which the Iegislation was enacted. As a result, in the hrst quarter of 2010,we recorded a one-time non-cash
charge of approximatdy $2.1 million to income taxes to reflect the impact of this change, which increased
our effective tax rate in 2010 and our 2010 provision for income taxes. The effective tax rate for 2010 is
higher than 2009 primariiy due to the new health care legislation.

As part of an agreement reached in our 2009 Missouri electric rate case, effective September 10,2010,
we also agreed to commence an eighteen year amortizationof a regulatory asset related to the tax benefits
of cost of removal. These tax benefits were flowed through to -customers from 1981-2008 and totaled
appro3dmateIy$11.1 million.We had recorded the regulatory asset expecting to recover these benefits fiom
customers in future periods. Based on the agreement, we estimated the portion of the amortization period
where rate recovery wodd no longer be probable for this item and wrote off approximately $1.2million in
the first quarter of 2010. Amortization of the remaining regulatory tax asset began during the third quarter
of 2011.
We received $26.6 million in 2010 h m the SWPA which was deferred for book purposes and
recorded as a noncurrent liability. We originally increased our current tax liability by approximately
$10.0 miIlion recognizing that the $26.6 million payment may be considered taxable income in 2010.
During the first quarter of 2011, we submitted a p r e - f i g agreement with the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) requesting that a determination be made regarding whether or not the payment couid be deferred
under cerrain sections of the Internal Revenue code. The IRS accepted OUT position that the payment be
deferred for tax purposes and recognized over the next twenty years. As such, we reduced the current iax
liability in accordance with t h i s deferral. The S W A payment, net of taxes, is being used to reduce fuel
expense for our customers in all OUT jurisdictions.

We do not expect any significant changes to our unrecognized tax benefits over the next twelve
months. The reserve balance related to unremmed tk benefits as of Decembcr 31,2010was $359,000.
With the nrnning of the statute of limitations on these unreco,Pnized tax benefits on September 15,2011,
there are no unrecognized tau benefits at Dccember 31, 2011. See Note 9 of “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” under Item 8 for additiond information regarding income taxes.
Nonoperating Items

The fobllowing table shows the total alIowancc for funds used during construction (AFUDC) for the
applicable periods ended December 31. AFUDC decreased in 2011 as compared to 2010 and in 2010 as
compared to 2009, reflecting the completion of Iatan 2 and the Plum Point Energy Station in 2010,See
Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8.
($ in rnIIIions1

1011
2010
- 2009
-

. . . .. ... .. .- .. .. .. . $0.3 $ 4.5 $ 6.2
5.7 -7.9
0.2 .. - . .. . ... . . . . . . . . -... . . ... .. .. .. .. . . .. . ... .. .- .. . . . .. .. . $05 $10.2 $14.1

Allowance for equity funds used during construction .
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction. ,
lbtal AmTDC . .
. . .. ..
.

Total interest chargw on long-term and short-term debt for 2011,2010 and 2009 are shown below. The
changes in long-term debt interest for 2011 and 2010 reflect the redemption of $48.3 million aggregate
principal amount of our Senior Notes, 7.05% Series due 2022, which were redeemed on August 27,2010,
and replaced by $50 million principal amount 5.20% first mortgage bonds issued August 25, 2010.The
changes also reflect the redemption of 6.5% hrst mortgage bonds on April 1,2010 and the redemption of
our 8.5% trust preferred securities on June 28,2010,which were replaced by 4.65% first mortgage bonds
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issued Nay 28, 2010. T h e decreases in short-term debt interest for all periods presented primarily reflect
lower levels of borrowing.
Interest Charges
($ In miltlons)
Change
2010

2011 2010 - - 2009
Change
......................
(0.3)%
1.5% $41.9 $42.1
$42.6 $41.9
......................
1.1 (43.9)
0.1
0.6 (86.3) 0.6
................ - 2.1 (100.0) 2.2 4.3 (50.8)
................. (2.1) (3.2) 31.8 (3.2) (1.3) 136.9
0.6 28.2
............................
0.9 0.9 19.6 0.9 ........................
$41.5 $42.3
(2.0) $42.3 $46.8
(9.5)

Long-term debt interest.
Short-term debt interest
+Dustpreferred securities interest
Iatan 1 and 2 carrying charges*
Other interest..
Total interest charges.

Beginning in the second quarter of 2009, we deferred Iatan 1 carrying charges to reflect construction
accounting in accordance with our agreement with the MPSC that allowed deferral of certain costs
until the environmental upgrades to Iatan 1were included in our rate base. We began deferring Iatan
2 carrying charges in the third quarter of 2010. D e f c d ended when the plant was pIaced in rates.
Iatan 1 was pIaced in rates in September 2010. Iatan 2 was placed in rates June 15,2011. See Note 3 of
Wotes to Consolidated Financia1 Statements” under Item 8 for information regarding carrying
charges.
RATE M A r n R S

We continually assess the need for rate relief in all of the jurisdictions we serve and file for such relief
when necessary.
Our rates for retail eIectric and natural gas services (other than specidly negotiated retail rates for
industrial or large commercial customers, which are subject to regulatory review and approval) are
determined on a “cost of senice” basis. Rates are designed to provide, after recovery of alIowable
operating expenses, an opportunity for us to earn a reasonable r e m on “rate base.” “Rate base” is
geeneralIy determined by reference to the original cost (net of accumulated deprcciation and amortization)
of utility pIant in sentice, subject to various adjustments for deferred taxes and other items. Over time, rate
base is increased by additions to utility plant in seivice and reduced by depreciation, amortization and
retirement of utiHty plant or write-offsas ordered by the utility commissions. In general, a request of new
rates is made on the basis of a “rate base” as of a date prior to the date of the request and aIIowablc
operating expenses for a 12month test period ended prior to the date of thc request. Although the current
rate making process providcs recovery of some future changes in rate base and operating costs, it does not
reflect all changes in costs for the period in which new r e t d rates will: be in placc. This results in a lag
(cornrnody referred to as “regulatoryIag”) between the time we incur costs and the time when we can start
recovering the costs through rates.
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The following tabIc sets forth information regarding electric and water rate increases since January 1,
2009:
JnrIsdiction

.. .. .. ..
.. . . .
.. .. .. ,
. ... ., .
. .. .. .. ..
.. . . . , . , .
. . . . . . . . ..
.. .. . , ,
Missouri - Gas . . , . . . . . . . . . .

Missouri - Electric . ..
MssoU~~
- Electric
... Kansas - Elecbic. . .. ..
Kansas - Electric. . . . - .
Oklahoma Electric
Oklahoma Electric
Oklahoma Electric
Arkansas - Electric . . - .

.

I

*

Date
Reuuested

September 28,2010
October 29,2009
June 17,2011
November 4,2009
June 30,2011
January 28,2011
March 25,2010
August 19,2010
June 5,2009

Annuai
hnlrease

Granted

Percent
Increase
Gmnted

Date
Effective

4.70%
June 15,2011
13.40% September 10,2010
s 1,250,000 5.20% January 1,2012
S 2,800,000
12.40%
July 1,2010
$ 240,000
1.66% January 6,2012
$ 1,063,100
932%
March I, 2011
$ 1,456,979
15.70% September 1, 2010
$ 2,104,321
19.00%
April 13,2011
4.37%
ApriI 1,2010
$ 2,600,000
$18,700,000
$46,800,000

See Note 3 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 for additiona1 idormation
regarding ratc matters.

COMPmITIoN
EIechk Segment

SPP-RTO

E n e m Imbalance Services: The Southwest Power Pool (SPP) regional transmission organization
(RTO) energy imbalance sentices market @IS) provides real time energy for most participating members
within the SPP regional footprint. Imbdance energy prices are based on market bids and StatudavaiIability
of dispatchable generation and transmission within the SPP market footprint. In addition to energy
imbalance service, the SPP RTO performs a real time security-constrained economic dispatch of a l l
generationvoluntarily offered into the EIS market to the market participants to also seme the native load.
Dav Ahead Market: The SPP RTO wiIl implement a Day-Ahead Market, with unit commitment and
co-optimized ancillary services market,in March 2014. As part of the Day-Ahead Market,the SPP RTO
WitI create, prior to implementation of such market, a single NERC approved balancing authority to take
over balancing authority responsibilities for its members, including Empire, which is expected to provide
operational and economic benefits for our customers. The Day-Ahead Market would replace the existing
EIS market desmied above.
SPP Renioiral Tmnsmirsion Develoument: On June 17,2010, the FERC approved the new highway/
byway cost allocation method. This is a new transmission cost allocation method to replace the existing
FERC accepted cost allocation method for new transmission faciIities needed to continue to reliably and
economically serve SPP customers, including ours, wcU into the future. Prior to FERC approval, we and
other SPP members had filed a joint protest at the FERC based on our disagreement with the SPP on the
allocation percentages and various other issues. Following the approval, we and other SPP members
requested a rehearing. On October 20,2011, the FERC issued its Order on Rehearing denying our request.
In mid December 2011, we, along with the other SPP member joint protestors, fled a Petition for Review
and Motion for Stay of Procedureswith the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eight Circuit. We believe we are
aggrieved by the FERC‘s orders because the orders authorize the SPP to allocate to us the costs of
transmission projects from which we would receive either no benefits or benefits that are not roughly
cummcnsurate with the allocated costs. Our request for a stay of procedures directly rclates to the SPP’s
efforts to adopt a method satisfactory to us for andyzing the reasonableness of the highwayhpay cost
docation approach and an effective remediation process for imbalanced cost allocations. On
December 16,2011, the Eighth Circuit U.S. Court of Appeals granted our petition and stay request. We
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update filing to the Court regarding the SPP Board‘s actions and progress of the
rcgionaI allocation review process by May 2012. To date, the SPP’s BOD has approved $1.4 billion in
highwayhyay projects to be constructed by 2017 with an additional $1.5 biIlion in transmission projects
expected to receive approval during the first quarter of 2012. As these projects are constructed, we will be
allocated a share of the costs of the projects pursuant to the FERC accepted highwaybyway regional cost
alIocation method.We expect that these operating costs will be material, but that they will be recoverable
in future rates.
are required to make an

Other FERC Activiw

On July 21, 2011, the FERC issued Order No. 1000 (Transmission Planning and Cost Allocation by
Transmission Owning and Operating Public Utilities). Order 1000 requires all public utility tr’ansmissian
providers to (among other things) facilitate non-incumbent transmission developer participation in
regional transmission planning by removing fiom FERC-approved tariffs and agreements any language
creating a federal right of first refusal (ROFR) for an incumbent transmission provider to consmct
transmission facilities selected in a regional transmission plan for cost allocation. As a transmission owning
member of the SPP RTO, this could directIy affect our rights to build transmission facilities within our
service territory. A second kcy element of Order 1000 directed transmission providers to develop policy
and procedures for interregional transmission coordination and interregional cost allocation. Since we are
on the southcastern seam of the SPP, this policy wiU most likely have a direct impact on our customers,
primarily through a potentia1 reduction to our production costs as a resuIt of greater access to lower cost
power from within the SPP, and across this seam and the possible reduction because of the cost sharing for
new transmission projects. We will continuc to participate in the SPP stakeholder processes to understand
the impact of Order 1000 on our abiIity to construct new facilities within our service territory as we1 as its
innuencc on promoting construction of transmission projects odncar our borders with our neighbors.
Compliance filings by the SPP to address the ROFR requirements are currently scheduled to be due
October 11, 2012 and April 13, 2013 for interregionaVseams planning and cost allocation.
See Note 3 of “Notes to Consolidatcd Financial Statements” under Item 8 for additional information
regarding competition.
LTQUIDRY AND CAPIT& RESOURCES

Overview. Our primary sources of Iiquidity are cash provided by operating activities, short-term
borrowings under our commercial paper program (which is supported by our credit facilitics) and
borrowings from our unsecured revolving credit facdity. As needed, we raisc funds from the debt and
equity capital markets to fund our liquidity and capital resource needs.
Our issuance of various securitics, including equity, long-term and short-term debt, is subject to
customary approval or authorization by state and federal regulatory bodies including state public service
commissions and thc SEC. We estimate that internally generated funds (funds provided by operating
activities less dividends paid) will provide the majority of the funds required in 2012 for our budgeted
capital expenditures (as discussed in “Capital Requirements and Investing ActiVitks” below). We believe
the amounts available to us under our credit fadities and the issuance of debt and equity ~ecuritie~,
together with this cash provided by operating activities, will allow us to meet our needs for working capital,
pension contributions, our continuing constructioa expenditures, anticipated debt redemptions, interest
payments on debt obligations, dividend payments and other cash needs through the ncxt several years.

W e will continue to evaluate our need to increase availabIe liquidity based on our view of working
capita1 requirements, including the timing of our construction programs, impacts of the 2011 tornado and
other factors. See Item lA, “Risk Factors” for additional information on items that could impact our
liquidity and capital resource requirements. The following table provides a summary of our operating,
investing and financing activities for the last three years.

46

Summary of Cash Flows
Eiscal Year
2010

2011

(In millions)

_

Cash provided by/(used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities.
Net change in cash andcash equivalents.

......................................
.......................................
......................................
........................

I

_

$134.6

-

2009

-

$129.6
{ 111.0) (154.7)
(34.6)
(20.0)
28.0
$ (5.1) E 4.9 $ 2.9
$! 135.9

(105.1)

Cash flow from Operating Activities

We prepare our statement of cash flows using the indirect method. Under this method, we reconcile
net income to cash flows from operating activities by adjustingnet income for those items that impact net
income but may not result in actual cash receipts or payments during the period. These reconciling items
include depreciation and amortization, pension costs, deferred income taxes, equity AFUDC, changes in
commodity risk management assets and liabilities and changes in the consolidated balance shect for
working capital horn the beginning to the end of the period.
Year-over-year changes in our operating cash flows are attributable primarily to working capital
changes resulting fiom the impact of weather, the timing of customer collections, payments for natural gas
and coal purchases and the effects of deferred fuel recoveries. The increase or decrease in natural gas
prices directly impacts the cost of gas stored in inventory-

2011 comDared io 2010. In 2011, our net cash flows provided from operating activities was
$134.6 million, a decrease of $1.3 million or 1.0% from 2010. This increase was primarily a rcsdt of:

Changes in net income - $7.6 million.
Changes in depreciation and amortization, reflecting increased plant in service and fuel deferral
amortization -$8.7 million

Increased deferrals for income taxes, reflecting positive impacts for acceIerated tax deprcciation
and defemhg taxability of the 2010 SWA payment - $18.2 million.

Lower equity AFUDC - $4.2 million
Changes in receivables due to lower unbillcd revenues, receipt of transmission credits and income
tax refunds collected - $21.6 million.
Changes in accounts payabIe partially due to lower prices for fuel purchases

- $5.9 million.

Changes in pension and other post retirement benefit costs due to the result of $20.2 million in
additional pension contributions compared to 2010 - $(16.7) million.

Increased natural gas purchases and supplies for new and existing generation plants - S(lS.1)
million.

Changes in prepaid expenses and deferred charges mostly reflecting certain regulatory treatment of
fuel charges and carrying costs - ($3.6) million.

Changes reflecting the receipt of S W A minimum flows payment in 2010 - $(26,6) miilion.
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2010 cornnured to 2009. In 2010, our net cash fIows provided from operating activities was
$138.1 million, an increase of 38.5 million or 6.6% from 2009. This increase was primarily a result oE

Changes in net income - $6.1 million.
One-time payment from SWPA for future minimum flow decreases at Ozark Beach hydro plant (see
Note 1 - Other Noncurrent Liabilities of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under
Item 8 ) - $26.6 million
Changes in investment tax credits, inchding the granting of $17.7 mi1Iion of advanced cod
investment tax credits resulting from a revised MOU fiom the IRS, offset by changes in deferred
income taxes - $11.6 million
9

Draw down of the commodity risk management margin accounts through settlement of hedged
positions in 2009 - $(8.5) milion.

Changcs in seasonal levels of inventory, inchding the effect of building cod inventories at PIum
Point and htan 2 - $(6.2) million.

Changes in pension and other post retiremcnt benefit costs primarily due to the resuIt of increased
pension contributions of $7.2 million - $(7.8) million.
Changes in receivables due to seasonaI levels of trade accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and
inmmc taxes receivable, offset by insurance proceeds received from the 3,009State Line generator
faiIure - $(14.2) milIion.

Changes in prepaid cxpenses and deferred charges primady related to changes in deferred fuel
costs and non-cash construction accounting (See Note 3 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” under Item 8) - $(9.9) million.
Capital Requirements and Investing Activities

Our net cash flows used in investing activities decreased $5.9 million from 2010 to 2011.The decrease
was primarily the result of a decrease in new generation construction in 2011.
Our net cash flows used in investing activities decreased $45.5 million fiam 2009 to 2010. The
decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in electric plant additions and replacements, inchding new
generation construction in 2010.

Our capital expenditures totaled approximatdy $101.1 million, $108.2 million, and $148.3 million in
2011, 2010 and 7,009,respectively.
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A breakdown of these capita1 expenditures €or 2011,2010 and 2009 is as follows:
Capital Expenditures
2011
2010
2009

(in miIIions)

---

......................
$ 46.5 $ 38.8 $ 33.7
......................
6.9
16.3
....................................
45
42.7
66.2
...................................................
15.9
0.1
6.4
.......................
13.4
-7.2 22.8
..........................
3.9
5.0
2.1
..............................................
3.9
1.3
1.4
................... 9.2 3.4 (1.4)
................................................
I 97.3 $105.4 $147.5
.............. 3.8 2.8 1.3
...........................
$101.1
$108.2
$148.8
--........................
1.4 3.s 3.8
- (0.1)
5.6
..................................(2.7)
(2.9)
.......................
-..........................................$102.5 $109.2 $155.3
- - =

Distribution and transmission systcm additions
New generation - Plum Point Energy Station
New generation - Iatan 2.
Storms
Additions and replacements - electric plant
Gas segment additions and replacements
Transportation
Other (including retirements and salvage net)(s
Subtotal
Non-regulated capitd expenditures (primariIy fiber optics)
Subtotal capital expenditures incurredc)
Adjusted for capital expenditures payabI@
Insurance proceeds receivable
Capita1 lease, primarily Plum Point unit train
Total cash outlay..

(1) Other includes equity AFUDC of $(0.3) million, $(4S)million and $(62) million for 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively. 2009 also includes proceeds from sate of property of $0.5 million.

(2) Expenditures incurred represent the totd cost for work completed for the projects during the year.
Discussion of capital expenditures throughout this 10-Kis presented on this basis. These capital
expenditures include AFUDC, capital expenditurcs to retire assets and benefits fiorn salvage.
(3)

The amount of expenditures paid/(unpaid) at the end of the year to adjust to actual cash outlay
reflected in the Investing Activities section of the Statement of Cash Flows.

Approximately ZOO%, 75% and 55% of our cash requirements for capital expenditures €or 2011,2010
and 2009, respectively, were satisfied internally fiom operations (funds provided by operating activities less
dividends paid). The remaining amounts of such requirements were satisfied from short-term borrowings
and proceeds fiom our sales of common stock and debt securities discussed below.
Our estimated capital expenditures (excluding AFUDC)for 2012,2013 and 2014 are detailed beIow.
See Item 1, “Business
Consmction Program.” We anticipate that we will spend the foIlowing amounts
over the next three years for the folIowing projects:

-

-

2012
2ou
-

Project

2014

TootaI

...................... $ 63.7 $ 52.1 $ 39.3 $155.1
.......................... 30.1 50.4 35.4 115.9
............................ 15.0 13.3 26.2 54.5
.............................................
38.4 42.9 63.4 144.7
............................................
$147.2 $158.7 $164.3 $470.2
= = - =

Electric dktn‘bution system additions.
Asbury environmental upgrades
Electric transmission facilities
Other
ntal

Our estimated total capital expenditures (excluding AFUDC) for 2015 and 2016 are $286.5 miltion
and $138.4 million, respectively.
We estimate that internally generated funds will provide approximately 76% of the funds required in
2012 for our budgeted capital expenditures. We intend to utilize a combination of short-term debt, the
proceeds of sales of long-term debt and/or common stock (including c o r n o n stock sold under our
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan, our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, our 401(k) PIan and
our ESOP) if needed to hnance additional amounts needed beyond those provided by operating activities
for such capitd expenditures. We will continue to utilize short-term dcbt as needed to support n o m d
operations or other temporary requirements. The estimates herein may be changed because of changes we
make in our construction program, unforeseen construction costs, our ability to obtain financing,
reguhtion and for other reasons. See further discussion under “Financing Activities” beIow.
Financing Actitiities

Our net cash flows used in financing activities increased $14.6million to $34.6 million during 2011 as
compared to $20.0 d i o n in 2010, primarily due to a decrease in proceeds (net of repayments of long-term
debt} received from new issuances of long term debt and equity in 2011 as compared to 2010 and a
$253 million reduction in dividend payments.
Our net cash flows provided by hnancing activities decreased $48.0 million to ($20.0)million during
2010 as compared to 128.0 million in 2009, primariIy due to a decrease in proceeds (net of repayments of
Iong-term debt) received from new issuances of long-term debt and equity as dcscnied below.

On August 25, 2010, we issued $50 rnilIion principal amount of 5.20% first mortgage bonds due
September I, 20010.The net proceeds (after payment of expenses) of approximately $49.1 mitlion were
used to redeem $48.3 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes, 7.05% Series due 2022 on
August 27,2010.
On May 28,2010, we issued $100 million principd amount of 4.65% hrst mortgage bonds due June I,
20020. The net proceeds (after payment of expenses) of approximately 398.8 million,were used to redeem
all 2 million outstanding shares of our 8.5% trust preferred securities, totaling $50 million, on June 28,
2010, and to repay short-term debt which was incurred, in part, io fund the repayment, at maturity, of our
6.5% first mortgage bonds duc 2010.
On March 27,2009, we issued $75 million principal amount of 7% first mortgage bonds due April 1,
2024. The net proceeds (after payment of expenses) of approximately $72.6 million were used to repay
short-term debt incurred, in part, to fund our current construction progam.

On February 25, 2009, we entered into an equity distribution agreement with UBS Securities LLC
(UBS). Under the terns of the agreement, as amended, we could offer and sell shares of our common
stock, par value $1.00 per share, having an aggregate offering amount of up to $120 million from time to
time through UBS, as saIes agent. We successfully compIeted our equity distribution progam during the
second quarter of 2010 and used the net proceeds to repay short-term debt and for general corporate
purposes, including the funding of our construction program. During 2010, we issued and sold 2,870,985
shares of our common stock pursuant to this equity distribution program, at an avcrage price per share of
S18.41, resulting in net proceeds to us of approxhatcly $513 million. Since inception of the program, in
the aggregate, we issued and sold 6,535,216 shares pursuant to the program, at an average price per share
of S18.36,resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately $116.0 &lion.

On January 28,2011,we fled a $400 rnilIion shelf registration statement d t h the SEC covering our
common stock, unsecured debt securities, preference stock, and first mortgage bonds. This shelf
registration statement bccamc effective on February 7,201 1. We have received regulatory approval:for the
issuance of securities under this shelf horn all four states in our electric sentice territory, but we may only
issue up to $250 million of such securities in the form of first mortgage bonds. We plan to use proceeds
from offerings made pursuant to this shelf to fund capital expenditures, refinancing of eXisthg debt or
general corporate needs during the three-year effective period.
On January 27,2012, we entered into the Third Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement
which amended and restated our Second Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated
January 26, 2010. This agreement extended the termination date of the revolving credit facility from
50

January 26,2013 to January 17,2017. The agreement also removes the letter of credit facility and inciudes
a swinghe loan facility with a $15 million swingline loan sublimit. The aggregate amount of the revolving
credit commitments remains $150 million, inclusive of the $15 miltion swingline loan sublimit. In addition,
the pricing and €ees under the facility were amended. Interest on borrowings under the facility accrues at a
rate equal to, at our option, (i) the highest of (A) the b a n k prime commercial rate, (B) the federal funds
effectiverate plus 0.5% or (C)one month LIBOR plus LO%, plus a margin or (E) one month, two month
or three month LIBOR, in each case, plus a margin. Each margin is based on our current credit ratings and
the pricing schedule in the facility. As of the date hereof, and based on our current credit ratings, the
LIBOR margin under the facility decreased from 2.70%to 1.25%.A facility fee. is payable quarterly on the
full amount of the commitments under the facility based on our current credit ratings, which fec is
currently 0.25%.In addition, upon entering into the amended arid restated facility, we paid an upfront fee
to the revoIVing credit banks of $262,500 in the aggregate. There were no orher material changes to the
terms of the facility.
The faciJity is used for working capital, general corporate purposes and to back-up our use of
commercial paper. This facility requires our total indebtedness to be fess than 625% of our total
capitalization at the end of each k a l quarter and our EBITDA (defined as net income plus interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization) to be at least two times our interest charges for the trailing four fiscal
quarters at the end of each fiscai quarter. Failure to maintain these ratios will result in an event of default
under the credit facility and wilI prohibit us from borrowing funds thereunder. As of December 31,2011,
we are in compIiance with these ratios. Our total indebtedness is 50.4% of our total capitalization as of
December 31,2011 and our EBITDA is 5.0 times our interest charges. This credit facility is also subject to
cross-default if we default on in excess of $10 million in the aggregate on our other indebtedness. This
arrangement does not serve io legally restrict the use of our cash in the normal course of operations. There
were no outstanding borrowings under this agreement at December 31, 2011. However, $12.0 million was
used to back up our outstanding commercial paper.

T h e principal amount of alI series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the EDE
Mortgage is Iirnited by terms of the mortgage to $1 billion. Substantidy ali of the property, plant and
equipment of The Empire District Electric Company (but not its subsidiaries) is subject to the lien of the
EDE Mortgage. Restrictions in the EDE mortgage bond indenture could affect our Iiquidity. T h e EDE
Mortgage contains a requirement that for new hrst mortgage bonds to be issued, our net earnings (as
defined in the EDE Mortgage) for any twelve consecutive months within the fifteen months preceding
issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements (as defined in the EDE Mortgage) on all first
mortgage bonds then outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds. Our earnings
for the year ended December 31,2011 would permit us to issue approximately $511.0 million of new first
mortgage bonds based on this test with an assumed interest rate of 6.0%. In addition to the interest
coverage requirement, the EDE Mortgage provides that new bonds must be issued against, among other
things, retired bonds or 60% of net property additions. At December 31,2011, we bad retired bonds and
net property additions which would enabIe the issuance of at Ieast $697.6 million principal amount of
bonds if the annual interat requirements are met. As of Deccmber 31,2011,we are in compliance with all
restrictive covenants of the EDE Mortgage.
The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the EDG
Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to $300 million. Substantially rtll of the property, plant arid
equipment of The Empire District Gas Company is subject to the lien of the EDG Mortgage. T h e EDG
Mortgage contains a requirement that for new 5rst mortgage bonds to be issued, the amount of such new
first mortgage bonds shall not exceed 75% of the cost of property additions acquired after the date of the
Missouri Gas acquisition. The mortgage also contains a limitation on the issuance by EDG of debt
(including first mortgage bonds, but excluding short-term debt incurred in the ordinary course under
working capital facilities) unlcss, after giving effect to such issuance, HDG's ratio of EBITDA (dcfmed as
net income plus interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and certain other non-cash charges) to interest
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charges for the most recent four f i s d quarters is at Ieast 2.0 to 1. As of December 31,2011, this test would
dlow us to issue approximately $10.7 million principal amount of new first mortgage bonds.

Currently, our corporate credit ratings and rhe ratings for our semities are as follows:
63th
Moodfs
-

............................... dr*
.................................
BBB+
...................................... BBB
..................................
F3
...........................................
StabIe

Corporate Credit Rating
First Mortgage Bonds
Senior Notes..
Commercial Paper..
Outlook

*

3aa2
A3

Bad
P-2
Stable

Standard 8r Poor's

BBBBBB-tBBBA-3

StabIe

Not rated,

On March 10,2011, Standard & Poor's revised its outIook on us from stable to positive and affirmed
the corporate credit rating at BBB-, citing greater-than-expected improvement in our financial condition
from the winding down of our heavy construction program, sale of $120 million of common stock in 2010,
rate increases and enhanced cost recovery via new rate riders. On May 27,2011 Standard & Poor's revised
our rating outlook to stable from positive after the May 22,2011 tornado. On Apd 14,2011, and again on
May 26,2011 after the May 22,2011 tornado, Moody's rearmed all of our other ratings. On March 24,
2011, Fitch revised our commercial paper rating horn F2 to F3 and reaffirmed our other ratings. T h e
rating action was not based on a specific action or event on our part, but reflected their tTaditiona1 linkage
oflong-term and short-term Issuer Defadt Ratings.
A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities, Each rating is subject to
revision or withdrawaI at any time by the assigning rating organization. Each security rating agency has its
own rnethodoIog for assigning ratings, and, accordingly, each rating shodd bc considered independently
of aIl other ratings.

CONTRACIWAL OBLIGATIONS
Set forth below is information summarizing our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011.
Other pension and postretirement benefit plans arc funded on an ongoing basis to match their
corresponding costs, per regulatory requirements and have been estimated for 2012-2016 as noted below.
Payments Due By Period
(in millions)

Contractual Obligations"'

Total

Less Than
I Year

1 3 Years 3-5
Ycars
-

Mom Than
SYks

..............
$ 0.6
S11l.G $ 25.0 $ 551.8
.................
40.1
72.5
69.8
- 404.1
.........................
12.0
...................
0.6
1s
1.1
4.6
...............
0.9
1.5
1-4
1.8
..............
69.4
99.8
55.7
47.7
8.3
13.9
10.9
9.0
....................
19.5
36.5
0.1
......
5.0
6.8
5.9
19.5
11.1
27.0
................ - 0.1 0.3 0.3 -2.7
...... - -$167.6 $371.0 $189.7 $1,021.7
- = -

Long-term debt (w/o discount)
$ 689.0
Interest on long-term debt
5865
Short-term debt
12.0
Capital lease obligations
7.4
Operating Iease obIigationd2)
5.6
Electric purchasc obligationso)
272.6
Gas purchase obligations(') .................
42.1
Open purchase orders.
56.1
Postretirement benefit obligation funding.
17.7
Pension benefit funding ...................
57.6
Other long-term liabilitiedq
3.4
TOTAL CONTRACI'UAL OBLIGATIONS
$1,750.0
-

c

I

(I) Some of our contractual obligations have price escaIations based on economic indices, but wc do not
anticipate these escaIations to be signifcant.
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(2) Excludes payments under our Elk River Wind Farm, LLC and Cloud County Wind Farm, LLC
agreements, as payments are contingent upon output of the facilities. Payments under the Elk River
Wind Farm, LLC agreement can run from zero up to a maximum of approximately $16.9 million per
year based on a 20 year average cost and an annual output of 550,000 megawatt hours. Payments
under the Meridian Way Wind Farm agreement can range fiom zero to a maximum of approximately
$14.6 million per year based an a 20-year average cost.
(3) Includes a water usage contract for our SLCC facility, fueI and purchased power contracts and
associated transportation costs, as well as purchased power for 2012 through 2015 for Plum Point.
(4) Represents fuel contracts and associated transportation costs of our gas segment.
( 5 ) Other Iong-term liabilities primarily represent electric facilities charges paid to City Utilities of
Springfield, Missouri of $11,OOO per month over 30 years.

DMDENDS
Holders of our common stock are entitled to dividends if, as, and when declared by the Board of
Directors, out of funds 1egdIy available therefore, subject to the prior rights of holders of any outstanding
cumulative preferred stock and preference stock. Payment of dividends is determined by our Board of
Directors after considering all relevant factors, inciuding the amount of our retained earnings (which is
essentially our accumulated net income Iess dividend payouts). A reduction of our dividend per share,
partially or in whole, could have an adverse effect on our common stock price.
In response to the expected loss of revenues resulting from the May 22,2011 tornado, our IeveI of
retained e a d g s and other relevant factors, our Board of Directors suspended our quarterly dividend for
the K i d and fourth quarters of 2011. On February 2, 2012, the Board of Directors re-established the
dividend and declared a quarterly dividend of $0.25 per share on mmmon stock payable on March 15,2012
to holders of record as of March 1, 2012. As of December 31,2011, our retained earnings balance was
$33.7 million {compared to $5.5 million at December 31,2010)after paying out $26.7 million in dividends
during 2011.

Our diluted earnings per share were $1.31 for the year ended December 31,2011 and were $1.17 and
$l.lS for the years ended December 31,2010 and 2009, respectively. Dividends paid per share were 50.64
for the year ended December 31,2011 and $1.28 for each of the years ended December 31,2010 and 2009.
Under Kansas corporate law, our Board of Directors may only declare and pay dividends out of our
surplus or, if there is no surplus, out of our net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared
or the preceding fiscal year, or both. Our surpIus, under Kansas Iaw, is equal to our rctained earnings plus
accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss), net of income tax. However, Kansas law docs permit,
under certain circumstances, our Board of Directors to transfer amounts from capital in excess of par valuc
to surphs. In addition, Section 305(a) of thc Federal Powcr Act (FPA) prohibits the payment by a utility of
dividends from any funds “properly included in capital account”. There are no additional rules or
regulations issued by the FERC under the FPA clarifying the meaning of this limitation. However, several
decisions by the FERC on specific dividend proposals suaest that any determination would be based on a
fact-intensive analysis of the specific facts and circumstances surrounding the utility and the dividend in
question, with particular focus on the impact of the proposed dividend on the liquidity and financia1
condition of the utility.

In addition, the EDE Mortgage and our Restated Articles contain certain dividend restrictions. T h e
most restrictive of these is contained in the EDE Mortgage, which provides that we may not declare or pay
any dividends (other than dividends payabIe in shares of our common stock) or make any other
distribution on, or purchase (other than with the proceeds of additional common stock hnancing) any
shares of, our common stock if the cumuIative aggregate amount thereof after August 31,1944 (exclusive
of the hrst quarterly dividend of $98,000 paid after said date) would exceed the sum of $10.75 m a o n and
the earned surplus (as defined in the EDE Mortgage) accumulated subsequent to August 31,1944, or the
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date of succession in the event that another corporation succeeds to our rights and liabilities by a merger

or consolidation. On June 9,2011,wc amended the EDE Mortgage in order to provide us with additional
flexiiility to pay dividends to our shareholders by permitting the payment of any dividend or distribution
on, or purchase of, shares of its common stock within 60 days after the related date of declaration or notice
of such dividend, distribution or purchase if (i) on the date of declaration or notice, such dividend,
distribution or purchase would have complied with the provisions of the EDE Mortgage and (ii) as of the
last day of the calendar month ended immediately preceding the date of such payment, our ratio of total
indebtedness to total capitalization (after giving pro forma effect to the payment of such dividend,
distribution, or purchase) was not more than 0.625 to 1.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changes in hancial condition, revenues or expenses,.rcsults of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources, other than operating leases entered into in
the normal course of business.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Set forth below are certain accounting poIicies that are considered by managemcnt to be critical and
that typicdly require difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make

estimates about the effect of matters that are inherentIy uncertain (other accounting policies may a h
rcquirc assumptions that could cause actuaI results to be different than anticipated results). A change in
assumptions or judgments applied in determining the following matters, among others, could have a
materid impact on future financial results.
Pemionr and Other PosirefirernenfBenefits (OPEBJ. We recognize expense related to pension and other
postretirement benefits as earned during thc crnployec's period of service. Related assets and liabilities arc
estabIished based upon the funded status of the plan compared to the accumulated benefit obIigation. Our
pension and OPEB expense or benefit includes amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or
losses. Additional income or expense may be recognized when our unrecognized gains or losses as of the
most recent measurement date exceed 10% of our postretirement benefit obligation or fair vaIue of plan
assets, whichever is greater. For pension benefits and'OPEB bcn'efits, unrecognized net gains or Iosses as
of the measurement date are amortized into actuarial expense over ten years.

We have elcctric rate orders in Missouri,Kansas and Oklahoma that allow us to rccover pension costs
consistent with our GAAP policy noted above. In accordance with the rate orders, we prospectively
calculate the valuc of plan assets using a market reIated value method as allowed by the Accounting
Standard Codification (ASC)guidance on defined benefit plans disclosure. In addition, our rate orders
allow us to defer any pension cost that is different from those allowed recovery in rate cases.

In our agrcement with the MPSC regarding the purchase of Missouri Gas by EDG, we were allowed
to adopt this pension cost rccovery methodology for EDG, as well. Ako, it )vas agreed that the effects of
purchase accounting entries related to pcnsion and other post-retirementbenefits would be recoverable in
future rate praceedings. Thus the fair value adjustment acquisition entries have been recorded as
regulatory assets, as we believe these amounts are probabie of recovery in future rates. T h e regulatory
asset is reduced by an amount equal to the difference between the regulatory costs and the estimated
GAAP costs. The difference between this total and the costs being recovered horn customers is deferred as
a reguIatory asset or liability in accordance with the ASC guidance on regdated operations, and recavered
over a period of 5 years.
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We expect future pension expense or benefits are probable of full recovery in our rates, thus lowering
our sensitivity to accounting risks and uncertainties.
We have rate orders in Missouri, Kansas and Oklahoma that d o w us to defer any OPEB cost that is
different from those d o w e d recovery in rate cases. This treament is similar to treatment af€ordedpension
costs. This includes the use of a market-related vdue of assets, the amortization of unrecognized gains or
losses into expense over ten years and the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities as described in the
immediately preceding paragraph.

Based on the regulatory treatment of pension and OPEB recovery afforded in our jurisdictions, we
record the amount of unfunded defined benefit pension and postretirement plan obligation as regulatory
assets on our balance sheet rather than as reductions of equity through comprehensive income.
Our funding policy is to contribute annually an amount at least equal to the actuarid cost of
postretirement benefits. The actual minimum pension funding requirements will be determined based on
the results of the actuarid valuations and the performance of our pension assets during the current year.
See Note 8 of ‘%Totes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8.

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of our pension accounting policy include: future rate
of return on plan assets, interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations (i.e. discount rates), demographic
assumptions (Le. mortality and retirement rates) and empIoyee compensation trend rates. Factors that
could r d t in additional pension expense andlor funding include: a bwer discount rate than estimated,
higher compensation rate increases, Iowcr return on plan assets, and longer retirement periods.
Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of our OPEB accounting policy and related funding
include: future rate of return on plan assets, interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations (Le. discount
rates), hedthwe cost trend rates, Medicare prescription drug costs and demographic assumptions
(Le. mortality and retirement rates). See Note 1 and Note 8 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” under Item 8 for further information.
Hedging Activities. We engage in hedging activities in an effort to minimize our risk from volatiIe
naturd gas prices. We enter into both physical and financial contracts with counterparties relating to our
future natura1 gas requirements that lock in prices (with respect to a range of predetermined percentages
of our expected future natural gas needs) in an attempt to lessen the volatility in our fuel expenditures and
gain predictability. We recognize that if risk is not timely and adequately balanced or if counterparties fail
to perform contractual obligations, actual results couId differ materially from intended resdts.

All derivative insbumen& are recognized at fair value on the balance sheet with the unrealized losses
or gains from derivatives uscd to hedge our fuel costs in our electric segment recorded in regulatory assets
or liabilities. All gains and losses from derivatives related to the gas segment are also recorded in
reguIatory assets or liabilities, This is in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations, given
that those regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of recovery through our fuel adjustment
mechanisms.

Risks and uncertainties affecting the determination of fair value include: market conditions in the
energy industry, especially the effects of price voIatility, regulatory and global political environments and
requirements, fair value estimations on longer term contracts, the effectiveness of the derivative
instrument in hedging the change in fairvalue of the hedged item, estimating underlying fuel demand and
counterparty ability to perform. If we estimate that we have overhedged forecasted demand, the gah or
loss on the overhedged portion will be recognized immediately as fuel and purchased power expense in our
Consolidated Statement of Income and subject to our fuel adjustment clause. See Note 14 of “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 for detailed information regarding our hedging
information.
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R ~ g t h t m yAssets and Lidilifies. In accordance with thc ASC accounting guidance for regulated
activities, our financia1 statements reflect ratemaking policies prescribed by the regulatory commissions
having jurisdiction over us (Missouri, Kansas, Arkansas, Oklahoma and FERC).

In accordance with accounting guidance for regulated activities,we record a regulatory asset for all or
part of an incurred cost that would o t h e d s e be charged to expense in accordance with the accounting
guidance, which requires that an asset bc recorded if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at
least equal to the capitalized cost will be alIowabk for costs for rate making purposes and the current
available evidence indicates that future revenue will be providcd to permit rccovexy of the cost.
Additiondly, we follow the accounting guidance for regulated activities which says that a liability shouId be
recorded when a regulator has provided current recovery for a cost that is expected to be incurred in the
future. W e foIlow this guidance for incurred costs or credits that are subject to futurc recovery h m or
refund to our customers in accordance with the orders of our regulators.
Historically, all costs of this nature, which are determined by our regulators to have been prudenrly
incurred, have been recoverable through rates in the course of normal ratemaking procedures. Regulatory
assets and 1iabiIities are ratabIy eliminated through a charge or credit, respectivdy, to earnings while being
recovered in revenues and fully recognized if and when it is no longer probable that such amounts will be
recovered through future revenues. We continually assess the recoverability of our regulatory assets.
Although we believe it unIikeIy, should retail electric competition legislation be passed in the states we
serve,we may determine that we no longer meet the criteria set forth in the ASC accounting guidance for
regulated activities with respect to continued recagnition of some or all of the regulatory asscts and
IiabiIities. Any regulatory changes that wodd require us to discontinue application of ASC accounting
guidance for regulated activities based upon competitive or other events may also impact the valuation oE
certain utility plant investments. Impairment of regulatory assets or utility plant investments could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

As of December 31,2011, we have recorded $239.6 million in regulatory assets and $128.4 million as
regulatory liabilities. See Note 3 of “Notes to ConsoIidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 for
detailed information regarding our regulatory assets and 1iabiIitics.

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting policy include: regulatory
environment, external regulatory decisions and requirements, anticipated future reguIatmy decisions and
their impact of dereguhtion and competition on ratemaking process, unexpected disalIowances, possible
champ in accounting standards (including as a result ofadoption of IFRS) and the ability to recover costs.

E d Adjmtmetzt Ciurrsc TypicaI fuel adjustment clauscs permit the distribution to cwtomcrs of
changes in fuel costs, subject to routine regulatory review, without the need for a general rate proceeding.
Fuel adjustment dauses are presentIy appIicabIe to our retail eIectric sales in Missouri, OkIahoma and
Kansas and system wholcsale kifowatt-hour sales under FERC jurisdiction. We have an Energy Cost
Recovery Rider in Arkansas that adjusts for changing fuel and purchased power costs on an annual basis.
The MPSC authorizcd a fuel adjustment clause for our Missouri customers cffective September 1,
2008. The MPSC established a base cost for the recovery of fuel and purchased power expenses used to
supply energy. The fuel adjustment clause permits the distribution to customers of 95% of the changes in
h e 1 and purchased power costs prudentIy incurred above or beIow the base cost. Off-systemsales margins
are also part of the recoveIy of fueI and purchascd power costs. As a result, nearly aU of the off-system
sales margin flows back to the customer.
Unbilled h e m e . At the end of each period we estimate, based on expected usage, the amount of
revenue to record for anergy and natural gas that has been provided to customers but not biIled. Risks and
uncertainties affectingthe appIication of this accounting policy incrude: projecting customer energy usage,
estimating the impact of weather and other factors that affect usage (such as Iinc losses) for the unbilIed
period and estimating 10sof energy during transmission and delivery.
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Contingent LlnbiZities. We are a party to various claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary
coursc of our business, which are primady related to workers’ compensation and public liability. We
regularly assess our insurance deductibles, a n d y e litigation information with our attorneys and evaluate
our 10% experience. Based on our evaluation as of the end of 2011, we believe that we have accrued
liabilities in accordance with ASC accounting guidance sufficient to meet potential 1iabiIities that could
result from these claims. This liabidity at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $4.5 million and $3.4 million,
respectively.

Risks and uncertainties affecting these assumptions indude: changes in estimates on potential
outcomesof Iitigation and potentid litigation yet unidenti6ed in which we might be named as a defendant.
Goodwill. As of December 31, 2011, the consolidated balance sheet included $39.5 million of
goodwill. All of this goodwill was derived from our gas acquisition and recorded in our gas segment,which
is also the reporting unit for goodwilI testing purposes. Accounting guidance requires us to test goodwill
for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or circumstances indicate possible impairment.
Absent an indication of fair value from a potential buyer or a s i d a r specific transaction, a combination of
the market and income approaches is used to estimate the fair value of goodwill.

We use the market approach which estimates fair value of the gas reportin2 unit by comparing certain
financial metria to comparable companies. ComparabIe companies whose securities are actively traded in
the pubIic market are judpental1y selected by management based on operational and economic
similarities. Wc utilizc EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization) multiples
of the comparabIe companies in relation to the EBITDA results of the gas reporting unit to determine an
estimate of fair value.
Wc also utilize a valuation technique under the income approach which estimates the discounted
future cash flows of operations. Our procedures include developing a baseline test and performing
sensitivity analysis to calcdatc a reasonable valuation range, The sensitivities are derived fiom altcring
those assumptions which are subjective ia nature and inherent to a discounted cash flows calculation.
Other qualitative factors and comparisons to industry peers are also used to further support the
assumptions and ultimately the overall evaluation. A key qualitative assumption considered in our
evaluation is the impact of regulation, including rate regulation and cost recovery for the gas reporting
unit. Some of the key quantitative assumptions included in our tests involve: regulatory rate design and
resub; the discount rate; the growth rate; capital spending rates and terminal value calculations. If
negative changes occurred to one or more key assumptions, an impairment charge could result. With the
exception of the capita1 spending rate, the key assumptions noted are significantly determined by market
factors and significant changes in market factors that impact the gas reporting unit would likely be
mitigated by our current and future regulatory rate design to some extent. Other risks and uncertainties
affecting these assumptions include: managemcnt’s identification of impairment indicators, changes in
business, industry, laws, technology and economic conditions. Actual results for the gas reporting unit
indicate a recent decline in gas customer growth and demand, but this was anticipated in our assumptions
for purposes of the discounted cash flow calculation. Our forecasts anticipate the customer contraction will
minimize in the near future and return to positive customer growth within the next few years.

We weight the results of the two approaches discussed above in order to estimate the fair value of the
gas reporting unit. Our annual test performed as of October 31,2011 indicated the estimated fair market
vdue of the gas reporting unit to be $5 million to $8 million higher than its carrying value at that time.
While we believe the assumptions utilized in our analysis were reasonable, adverse devchpments in future
periods could negatively impact goodwill impairment considerations, which could adversely h p a c t
earnings. Specifically, the quantitative assumptions noted previously, such as an increase to the discount
rate or decline in the terminal vaIue caIcuIation could lead to an impairment charge in the future.

Use of Management’s &hatar. Thc preparation of our consoIidated financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)requires management to make
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estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, Gabilities, revenues and expenses,
and d a t e d disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the h a n c i d statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evduate our estimates onan
on-going basis, inchding those related to unbilIed u a t y revenues, collectibility of accounts receivable,
depreciable lives, asset impairment and goodwill evduations, employee benefit obligations, contingent
liabilities, asset retirement obligations, the fair vdue of stock based compensation and tax provisions.
Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTLNI; STANDARDS
See Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 for further information
regarding ReceatIy Issued and Proposed Accounting Standards.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AMI QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our fuel procurement activities invoIve primary market risk exposures, includig commodity price risk
and credit risk Commodity price risk is the potential adverse price impact related to the fuel procurement
for our generating units. Credit risk is the potential adverse financial impact resulting from
non-performanceby a counterparty of its contractual obhgations. AdditionalIy, we arc exposed to intcrcst
rate risk which is the potential adverse h a n d impact d a t e d to changes in interest rates.

Market Risk and Hedging AcfiMa. Prices in the whokale power markets can be extremdy volatiIe.
This volatility impacts our cost of power purchased and our participation in cncrgy trades. If we were
unable to generate an adequate supply of electricity for our customers, we would attempt to purchase
power fiom others. Such supplies are not always available. In addition, congestion on the transmission
system can limit our ability to make purchases fiom (or sell into) thc wholesale markets.

We engage in physical and financial trading activities with the goals of reducing risk from market
fluctuations.In accordance With our established Energy Risk Management Policy, which typically includes
entering into various derivative transactions, we attempt to mitigate our commodity market risk.
Derivatives are utilized to manage our gas commodity market risk and to help manage our exposure
resulting from purchasing most of our natural gas on the volatile spot market for the generation of power
for our native-load customers. See Note 14 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8
for further information.
Cornrnodily Price Risk We are cxposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price and
transportation costs of coal, natural gas, and electricity and employ established policies and procedures to
manage the risks associated with these market fluctuations, inchding utilizing derivatives.

We satisfied 65.0% of our 2011 generation fuel supply need through coal. ApproxhateIy 94% of our
2011 coal supply was Western coal. We have contracts and binding proposals to supply a portion of the fuel
for our coal plants through 2014. These contracts satisfy approximately 87% of our anticipated fuel
requirementsfor 2012,61% for 2013 and 43% for our 2014 requirements for our Asbury and Riverton coal
plants. In order to manage our exposure to fuel prices, future coal supplies will be acquired using a
combination of short-term and long-term contracts.

We are exposed to changes in market prices for natural gas we must purchase to run our combustion
turbine generators. Our natural gas procurement program is designed to manage our costs to avoid voIatile
natural gas prices. We enter into physical fornard and financial derivative contracts with counterparties
relating to our future natural gas requirements that lock in prices (with respect to predetermined
percentages of our expected future natural gas needs) in an attempt to lessen the voIatiIity in our fuel
expenditures and improve predictabfiity. As of Dcccmber 31, 2011, 61%, or 3.9 million Dths’s, of our
anticipated volume of natural gas usagc for o w electric operations for 2012 is hcdgcd. See Note 14 of
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Item 8 for further information.
Based on our expected natural gas purchases for our electric operations for 2012, if average natural
gas prices should increase 10% more in 2012 than the price at December 31, 2011, our natural gas
expenditures wouId increase by approximately $0.7 miIlion based on our December 31, 2011 total hedged
positions for the next twelve months. Howevcr, such an increase would be probable of recovery through
fuel adjustment mechanisms in all of our jurisdictions, which significantly reduces the impact of fluctuating
fuel costs.

We attempt to mitigate a portion of our natura1 gas pricc risk associated with our gas segment using
physical forward purchase agreements,storage and derivative contracts. As of December 31,2011,we have
1.5 million Dths in storage on the three pipelines that serve our customers. mis represents 76% of our
storage capacity. We have an additiond 1.4 d i m Dths hedged through financia1derivativcs and physical
contracts.
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The foUowing table sets forth our long-term hedge strategy of mitigating price volatility for our
customers by hedging a minimum of expected gas usage for the current winter season and the next two
winter seasons by the beginning of the Actual Cost Adjustment ( A M ) year at September 1 and ilustratcs
our hedged position as of December 31,2011 (in thousands). However, due to purchased naturaI gas cost
recovery mechanisms for our retaiI customers, fluctuations in the cost of namrd gas have little effect on
income.
Season
-

hlidmum %
Hedged

Dth Hedged
Fiaaacial

.................

420

Current
5WO
Second .................. Up to 50%
Third ................... Up to20%

Total

700

-

I

.....................

i,120

Dth Hedged
PbysIcal

Dth in Storage

310

310

ActuaI % IIcdgcd

1,436
-

98%

16%

1,436

Credit Risk In order to minimize overall credit risk, we maintain credit policies, including the
evaluation of counterparty financial condition and the use of standardized agreements that facilitate the
netting of cash flows associated with a sin+ counterparty. See Note 14 of “Nota to Consolidated
Financid Statements (Unaudited)” regarding agreements containing credit risk contingent features. In
addition, certain counterparties make available coUateral in the form of cash held as margin deposits as a
result of exceeding agreed-upon credit exposure thresholds or may be required to prepay the transaction.
ConverseIy, we are required to post collated with counterparties at certain thresholds, which is typically
the result of changes in commodity prices. Amounts reported as margin deposit liabilities represent
counterparty funds we hold that result from various trading counterparties exceeding agreed-upon credit
exposure thresholds. Amounts reported as margin deposit assets represent our funds held on deposit for
our NYMEX contracts with our broker and other financial contracts with other counterparties that
resulted fiom us exceeding agreed-upon credit limits establishcdby the counterparties. The following tabIe
depicts our margin deposit assets at December 31,2011 and December 51,2010. There were no margin
deposit liabilities at these dates.
(in miBons)

Margin deposit assets

.....................................

ZOIl 2010
-

$5.8 $3.9

Our exposure to credit risk is conccntrated primady within our fucl procurement process, as we
transact with a smder, less diverse group of counterparties and transactions may involve large notional
volumes and potentially volatile commodity prices. BeIow is a table showing our net credit exposure at
December 31, 2011, reffecting that our counterparties are exposed to Empire for rhe net unrealized
mark-to-market losses for physical forward and financial natural gas contracts carried at fair d u e .
(in mlllions)

Net unrealized mark-to-market losses for physical fonvard natural gas
contracts......
Net unrealized mark-to-marketlosses for financial n a W gas contracts
Net credit exposure

........................................... $13.9
.... 9.8
.......................................... $23.7

The $9.S million net unrealized mark-to-market loss for hnancial natural gas contracts is comprised
entirely of $9.8 million of exposure to counterparties of Empire for unrealized losses. We are holding no
collateral born any counterparty sin= we are below the $10 d i o n mark-to-market collateral threshold in
our agreements. As noted above, as of December 31,2011, we have $5.8 million on deposit for NYMEX
contract exposure to Empire, of which $5.8 mirtion represents our collateral requirement.I€ NYMEX gas
prices decreased 25% fiom their December 31, 2011 levels, our collateral requirement wodd increase
$2.5 million. If these prices increased 25%, our collateraI requirement wodd decrease $2.4 million. Our
other counterparties w o f d not be required to post collateral with Empire.
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W e sell electricity and gas and provide distribution and transmission services to a diverse group of
customers, inchding residential, commercial and industrial customers. Credit risk associated with trade
accounts receivable from energy customers is limited due to the large number of customers. In addition, we
enter into contracts with various companies in the energy industry for purchases of energy-related
commodities, including natural gas in our fuel procurement process.
Interest Rate Risk We are exposed to changes in interest rates as a result of h a a c i n g through our
issuance of commercial paper and other short-term debt. We manage our interest rate exposure by limiting
our variable-rate exposure (applicabfe to commercial paper and borrowings under our unsecured credit
agreement) to a certain percentage of total capitalization, as set by policy, and by monitoring the effects of
market changes in interest rates. See Notes 6 and 7 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
under Item 8 for further information.

If market interest rates average 1% more in 2012 than in 2011, our interest expense would increase,
and income before taxes would decrease by less than $0.2 milIion. This amount has been determined by
considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on our highest month-end commercial paper
balance for 2011. These analyses do not consider the effects of the reduced level of overall economic
activity that could exist in such an environment. In the event of a significant change in interest rates,
management would likely take actions to further mitigate its exposure to the change. However, due to the
uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects, the sensitivity analysis
assumes no changes in our financial structure.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMEWS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of the Empire District Electric Company:
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15
present fairly, in all material respects, the Einancial position of The Empire District Electric Company and
its subsidiaries at December 31,2011 and 2010,and the resufts of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2011 in conformity with accounting principIes
generally accepted in the United States of America. Ln addition, in our opinion, the hnancial statement
schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15 presents faidy, in aII materid respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.
Also in OUT opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31,2011,based on criteria established in Inremul Conrrol -Inrepred
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financia1 statement
schedule, for maintaining effective internd control over h a n d reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over h a n c i d reporting, inchded in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal ControI Over Financial Reporting, Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
hnancid statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonabIe assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements incIuded examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of interna1 control over financid reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits a t o included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonabIe basis for our opinions.
A company’s internd coneol over financial reporting is a process dcsigned to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financiaI statements for
external purposcs in accordance with generalIy accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over hancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refIect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii> provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
pcrmit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of thc company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internd control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. AIso, projcctions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods arc subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
PricewatcrhouseCoopersLLP
St. Louis, Missouri
February 23,2012
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED B W C E SFIEETS
December 31.
2010

2011
(MOO'S)

Assets

Plant and property. at origina1 cost:
Elecrric
Naturalgas
Water
Other
Construction work in progress

..................................................
$2.063.208
............................................... 66.9 18
................................................... 11.540
................................................... 34.984
................................. 24.141

Accumulated depreciation and amortization

.........................

9.337

2.117.452

637.139
1.563. 652

598.363

1,519.089

5.408
4.357

10.525
1.771

42.296
20.326

41.340

............................................
respectiveIy .............................................
Accrued unbilled revenues ....................................
Accounts receivable - othcr ..................................
FucI. materiak and suppIies ...................................
Prepaid expenses and other ...................................
Regulatoryassets ...........................................
.................................................
...............................
...................................................

23. 595
E.445
45. 557

16.269
62. 239
14.629

173.248

7.891
4.974
161.138

231.922

189.404

39.492
9.331
4. 190

39.492
9.257
2. 931
241.084
$1.921.311

7.724

284.935

'Ibtalasse ts

63381
11. 128
32. 264

2.200. 79 1

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ....................................
Restrictedcash
Accounts receivable - trade, net of allowance of $1,138 and $865.

Noncurrent assets and deferred charges:
Regulatoryassets ...........................................
GoodwiI1
Unamortized debt issuance costs
Other

$2.001.142

.................................................$2.021. 835
(Continued)

.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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TEE EMFIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
December 31.
2011
2010
(MOO’S)

Capitalization and liabilities

Common stock, $1par value. 100.000.OM shares authorized. 41.977. 725 and
41.576. 869 shares issued and outstanding. respectively
Capital in excess of par value
Retainedearaiags
TotaI mmmon stockholders’ equity

................
...................................
............................................
............................

S

Long-term debt (net of current portion)
Obligations under capitd Iease .................................
First mortgage bonds and secured debt
Unsecureddebt
Total long-term debt
Totd long-term debt and common stockholders’ equity ..............
Current Iiabdities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt ............................
Short-termdebt
Customer deposits
Intcrestamed
Other current liabiIities
Unrealized loss in fair value of derivath contracts
Taxesaccrued
Regulatory liabilities

...........................
............................................
.......................................

..........................
............................................
..........................................
...........................................
......................................
..................
.............................................
........................................

41.978 $ 41.577
618.304
610.579
33.707
5.468
693.989

657.624

4.739
457. 948
199.572

4.995
488.577
199.500
693.072

692.259
1.386. 248

1.350.696

58.820

59.307
933
12.000
11.428
5.958

881
24.000

11.061
6.004

-

4.769
2,634

578
760
3.935
1.243

97.029

107.282

.

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits:
Regulatory 1iabiIihes
Deferredincome taxes
Unamortized investment tax credits .............................
Pension and other postretirement benefit obligations .................
Unrealized loss h fair value of derivative contracts ..................
Other

... ........................................
.......................................

...................................................

Total capitalization and liabilities

.............................

128.440
263.933
19.226
103.371
5.081
18.507
538.558
$2.021. 835

87.579
212,003
19.597
93.405
3.564
47. 185
463.333
$1.921.311

-

T h e accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financia1statements.
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELIECIWC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended December 31.
2011
2010
m09
(OOO's, except per share amounts)

Operating revenues:
EIectric..

..........................................
$522,506
.............................................
46,430
Water .............................................
1,769
Other ............................................. 6,165

$482,910

$433,133

50,885
1,805
5,676
541,276

57,314

GS..

576,870
Operating revenue deductions:
FueI and purchased power
Cost of natural gas sold and transported
Regulated operating expenses,
Other operating expenses..
Maintenance and repairs
Loss on plant disdowance
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for income taxes
Otherta x e s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

..............................
....................
...........................
.............................
...............................
..............................
...........................
..............................

Operatingincome

497,i68

199,299
26,614

200,256
22,760
85,442
2,098
41,041
150
63,537

......................................

1,764
4,957

182,028
35,601
73,086

79,292
1,950
36,771

1,801

-

33,012

34,071
30.581

58,656
30,470
27,729

51,494
19,571
26,080

479,936

460,7S1

422.673

96,934

80,495

74,495

4,538

6,209

-

Other income and (deductions}:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
294
Interest income ......................................
555
(227)
Provision for other income taxes. .........................
Other - nonaperating expense, net.
(1,283)
(661)

(63)
(1,039)
3,612

Interest charges:
Long-termdebt
Trust preferred securities
Short-termdebt
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction.
Other

42,084
4,250
1,125

(1,147)

41,959
2,090
631
(5,636)
(2,3331

41,302

36,711

38,854

$ 54,971

$ 47,396

41,852
41,887

40,545

...........

176

......................

......................................
...............................
......................................
........
.............................................

Net i n c o m e . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.............................

42,581
I

86
(218)

...
.

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted
'Ibtal earnings per weighted average share of common stock - basic
anddiluted
Dividends declared per share of common stock.

.........................................
$
................ $

217
(311)
(460)

5,655

(7,924)
(681)

$ 41,296

34.924
34,956

40,580

2.31

$

1.17

E

1.18

0.64

$

1.28

S

1.28

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE

DISTRICT ELECllUC COMPANY
CONSODATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREZIENSIVE INCOME
'Ilear Ended Deeembec 31,
2011
2010
2009

............................................
Reclassification adjustments for loss included in net income or
reclassified to regulatory asset or liability .....................
Net change in fair market value of open derivative contracts for period ,
Incometaxes ...........................................
Comprehensive income ....................................
Net income

$ 54,971

-I%.dlolys)
$47,396 $41,296
-

- 5,814 13,568
- (6,362) (9,576)
- 209 (1,521)
$ 54,971 $47,057 - $43,767

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TEE EMPIRE DXSTNCT ELEClXIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATllMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common
Stock

Capital in
eXcess

of Par

ReLaIned
earnings

AcclrmuIated
cornprehendvc
1nEom el (Ioss1

Total

$ (2,132)

$528,872

~~

....... $
...................
...............

Balance at December 31,2008
Net income
StocWstock units issued through:
Public offering
Stock purchase and reinvestment

plans.....................
Dividends declared ..............
Reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income .........
Change in fair value of open
derivative contracts for period . - . .
Income taxes
Balance at December 31,2009 .......
Net income ...................
StocWstock units issued through
Public offering ...............
Stock purchase and reinvestment
prans
Dividends decIared ..............
Reclassification adjustment for losses
included in net income .........
Change in fair value of open
derivative contracts for period
Income taxes ..................
Balance at December 31,2010 .......
Net income ...................
Stocldstack units issued through:
PubIic offering ...............
Stock purchase and reinvestment
plans
Dividends declared ..............
Balance at December 31,2011 ....... $

(WOO’S)

33,982

$483,443

$

13,579
41,296

3,664

60,825

466

7,363

41,296
64,489

13,568

13,568
(9,576)

..................

.....................

(1,521)

38,112

551,631

600,150
47,396

10,065
47,396

2,871

48,325

534

10,623

51,196

11,217
(5 1,9 96)

(51,996)

5,814

5,814

....

.....................

(6,362)
41,577

610,579

401

7,725

41,978

$618,304

209
657,624
54,971

5,468
54,971

(26,732)
$ 33,707

8,126
(26,732)
%

-

$693,989

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
68

TEE EMPIRE DISTRICT EILECI'RIC COME'ANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,
2010
2009

2011

(WVS)

Operating activities:
Net income
$ 54,971 $ 47,396 S 41,296
Adjustments to reconcite net income to cash flows from operating
activities:
71,076
62,247
79,751
Depreciation and amortization including reguhtory items. .......
4,096
Pension and other postretirement benefit costs, net of contributions
(20,379) (3,683)
26,880
15,324
45,051
Deferred income taxes and unamortized i n v a e n t tax credit, net
AUowance for equity funds used during construction
(6,209)
(294) (4,538)
2,147
3,478
2,616
Stock compensation expense
1,187
1,853
10,350
Non cash Ioss on derivatives..
381
Other
(457)
Cash flows impacted by changes in:
2#989
10,342
(11,211)
Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues
4,635
(16,682)
Fuel, materials and supplies
(1385)
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and deferred charges ...... (23,163) (19,606)
(7,4644)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
(6,179) (1?305)
(3181
806
1,522
Interest, taxes accrued and customer deposits
(980)
699
3,172
3,954
Other liabilities and other deferred credits
- 26,564
SWPA minimum flows payment
Accumulated provision - rate refunds
(578)
Net cash provided by operating activities
135,921
129,623
134,608

.........................................

.
.
...........
.............................
...........................
.............................................
............
.............................
....................
................
..................
..........................
.....................
.....................
(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE EMPIRE DZSTlUCT ELECTRIC COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASE FLOWS (Continued)
Year Ended December 31,
20u
2010
2009

Investing activities:
Capital expcnditures - regulated
Capita1 expenditures and other investments - non-regulated
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Restricted cash
Total net cash used in investing activities

.......................
S (99,162) $(106,388) %(154,016)
... (3,375) (Z817) (1,239)
......
544
....................................
(Z586)
(1,771)
................... (105,123) (110,976) (154,711)

Financing activities:
Proceeds from first mortgage bonds, net
Proceeds from issuance o€ notes payable

..................
- 149,635 75,000
2,470
..................
Long-term debt issuance costs .........................
(1,758)
(2,397)
Proceeds horn issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs .
5,884
60,239
70,271
Repayment of first mortgage bonds. .....................
- (50,000) (20,025)
- (50,000)
Redemption of trust preferred securities ..................
Redemption of senior notes ...........................
(48,304)
Net short-term repayments ............................
(51,500)
(lZ,OOO)
(26,500)
Dividends ........................................
(26,732) (51,996) (44,807)
Other ...........................................
(1,754)
(1,356)
(1,058)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............
(20,040)
27,954
(34,602)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaknts ..........
2,866
(5,217)
4,905
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ................
10,525
5,620
2.754
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ....................
$ 5,408 $ 10325 S 5,620
.

I

I

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interestpaid
Income taxes (refunded) paid, net of refund

......................................
...............

2011

2010

2009

$ 41,088

S 43,044

$ 45,730

(14,300)

11,264

3,246

Supplementary nun-cash investing activities:
Change in a m e d additions to property, plant and equipment
not reported above
$ (1,387) $ (3,846) $ (3,833)
Capital lease obligations for purchase of new equipment ......
29
2,696
5946

................................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TEE EMPIRE: DISTRICT ELECIXIC COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED XlWANclAlL STATEMJ3NTS
1. Summary OP Significant Accounting Policies
Genera1

We operate our businesses as three segments: electric, gas and other. The Empire District Electric
Company @DE), a Kansas corporation organized in 1909, is an operating pubk utility engaged in the
generation, purchase, transmission, distribution and sate of electricity in parts of Missouri, Kansas,
Oklahoma and Arkansas. As part of our electric segment, we dso provide water senice to three towns in
Missouri. The Empire District Gas Company (EDG) is our wholly owned subsidiary engaged in the
distribution of natural gas in Missouri. Our other segment consists of our fiber optics business. See
Note 12. Our gross operating revenues in 2011 were derived as follows:

.......................................
..........................................
.........................................

Electric segment sales*
Gas segment sales.
Other segment sales

*

Sales from our electric segment include 0.3%

90.9%
8.0%

1.1%

from the sale of water.

T h e utility portions of our business are subject to regulation by the Missouri Public Service
Commission (MPSC),the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas (KCC),the Corporation
Commission of Oklahoma (OCC),the Arkansas Public Service Commission (APSC) and the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).Our accounting policies are in accordance with the ratemaking
practices of the regulatory authorities and conform to generally accepted accounting principks as applied
to regulated public utilities.
Our electric operations serve approximately 166,000customers as of December 31,2011,and the 2011
electric operating revenues were derived as follows:
% o r revenue

Custamcr

R ~ i d etni a l . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Commercial
Industrial
Wholesaleon-system
Wholesale off-system
Miscellaneous sources, primady pubIic authorities
Other electric revenues

............................................
..............................................
......................................
......................................
................
....................................

42.4%
30.1%
15.1%
3.7%
4.5%

2.6%

1.6%

Our retail electric revenues for 2011 by jurisdiction were as follows:
Jurisdiction

40of revenue

MissOuri.........................~~......~.......~~....
Kansas................................................
Arkansas
Oklahoma

..............................................
.............................................

71

88.8%
5.3%
2.8%

3.1%

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Our gas operations serve a p p r o h a t d y 44,000customers as of December 31,2011, and the 2011 gas
operating rcvenues were derived as folIows:
Customer

% OF menue

Rcsidentiat.............................................
Commercial
Industrial
Other

............................................
..............................................
.................................................

625%
26.9%

15%
9.1%

Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of EDE, EDG, and our other subsidiaries.
The consolidated entity is referred to throughout as “we” or the “Company”. Ail intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Sec Note 12 for additional informa!ioa regarding
our three segments. Ccrtain immaterial reclassifications have been made to prior year information to
conform to thc current year presentation.
Accounting for the Effects of ReguIation

In accordance with the Accounting Standard Codification (ASCI guidance for regulated operations,
our financial statements reflect ratemaking policies prescribed by the reguIatory commissions having
jurisdiction over our regulated generation and other utility operations (the MPSC,the KCC, the OCC,the
APSC and the FERC).
We record a regulatory asset for all or part of an incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to
expense in accordance with the M C guidance for regulated operations which say that an asset should be
recorded if it is probable that future revenuc in an amount at Ieast equal to the capitalized cost will be
aUowabIc for costs for rate making purposes and the current avdable evidence indicates that future
revenue will be provided to permit recovery of the cost. This guidance also says that a Iiability should be
recorded when a regulator has provided current recovery for a cost that is expectad to be incurred in the
future. We follow this guidance for incurred costs or credits that are subject to future recovery from or
refund to our customers in accordance with the orders of our regulators.
Historically, all costs of this nature, which are determined by our regulators to have bcen prudently
incurred, have bcen recoverable through rates in the course of norma1 ratemaking procedurcs. Regulatory
assets and Iiabilities are ratably amortized through a charge or credit, respectively, to earnings whiIc being
recovered in revenues and fully recognized if and when it is no longer probable that such amounts will be
recovered through future revenues. We continually assess the recoverability of our regulatory assets.
Althou& we believe it unlikely, should retail electric competition legislation be passed in the states we
serve, we may determine that we no longer meet the criteria set forth in the ASC guidance for regulated
operations with respect to continued recognition of some or al1 of the regulatory wets and Iiabilities. A n y
reguIatory changes that would require us to discontinue application of this guidance based upon
competitive or other events may also impact the valuation of certain utility plant investments.hpairment
of regulatory assets or utility p I a t investments could have a materia1 adverse effect on our financia1
condition and results of operations. (See Note 3 for further discussion of regulatory assets and liabilities).
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principIes
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affcct the reported amounts of
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICI' ELECIMC COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDAmD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Coatinued)
assets and tiabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Areas
in the financial statements significantry affected by estimates and assumptions include unbilled utility
revenue, coUectibility of accounts receivable, depreciable lives, asset impairment and goodwill impairment
evaluations, employee benefit obligations, contingent liabilities, m e t retirement obligations,the fair value
of stock based compensation, tax provisions and derivatives. Actual amounts could differ horn those
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

For our utility operations,we use cycle billing and a c m e estimated, but unbilled, revenue for services
provided between the last bill date and the period end date. WnbUed revenues represent the estimate of
receivabfes for energy and natural gas services delivered, but not yet billed to customers. The accuracy of
our unbilIed revenue estimate is affected by factors including fluctuations in energy demands, weather, line
losses and changes in the composition of customer classes.
Municipal Franchise Taxes

Municipal franchise taxes are collected for and remitted to their respective entities and are included in
operating revenues and other taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income.Municipal franchise taxes
of $11.0 million, $10.6 million and $10.2 million were recorded for each of the years ended December 31,
2011,2010and 2009, respectively.
Accounts ReceivabIe

Accounts receivable are recorded at the t M e d rates for customer usage, including applicable taxes
and fees and do not bear interest. We review the outstanding accounts receivable monthly, as well as the
bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish an dlowance for doubtful accounts. Account
balances are charged off against the dowance when management determines it is probable the receivable
will not be recovered.
Property, PIant & Equipment

The costs of additions to utility property and replacemcnts for retired property units are capitalized.
Costs include labor, material, an alIocation of general and administrative casts, and an allowance for funds
used during constnrction (AFUDC). The original cost of units retired or disposed of and the costs of
removal are charged to accumulated depreciation, unless the removed property constitutes an operating
unit or system. In this case a gain or loss is recognized upon the disposal of the asset. Maintenance
expenditures and the removal of minor property items are charged to income as incurred. A liability is
creatcd for any additions to electric or gas utility property that are paid for by advances from developers.
For a period of five years the Company refunds, to the devcloper, a pro rata amount of the original cost of
the extension for each new customcr added to thc extension. Nonrefundable payments at thc end of the
five year period are applied as a reduction to the cost of the plant in seMce. The liability as of
December 31,2011 and 2010 was $6.6 milIion and $8.3 million, respectively.
As of December 31,2011 and 2010, we had recorded accrued cost of removal of $68.6 million and
$58.8 million, respectively, for our dectric operating segment. This represents an estimated cost of
dismantling and removing plant h m service upon retirement, accrued as part of our depreciation rates.
Pursuant to our 2005 Missouri rate order, we accrue cost of removal in depreciation rates for mass
property (including transmission, distribution and general plant assets). These accruals are not considered
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantintred)

an asset retirement obligation under the guidance provided on asset retirement obligations within the
ASC. We reclassify the accrued cost of dismantling and removing plant from sewice upon retirement from
accumulated depreciation to a regulatory 1iabiIity. We have a simiIar cost of removal regdatoxy Iiability for
our gas operating segment. This amount at December 31,2011 and 2010 was $5.0 million and $3.9 million,
respectively. These amounts are net of our actuaI cost of removal expenditures.
Asset Retirement Obligation
We record the estimated fair vdue of IegaI obligations associated with the retirement of tangible
long-lived assets in the period in which the liabilities are incurred and capitalize a carrespondingamount as
part of the book value of the related long-lived asset. In subsequent periods, we are required to adjust asset
retirement obligations based on changes in estimated fair value, and the corresponding increases in asset
book vdues are depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Uncertainties as to the probability,
timing or cash flows associated with an asset retirement obligation affect OUT estimate of fair value.

We have idenaed asset retirement obligations associated with the future removaI of certain river
water intake structures and equipment at the Iatan Power Plant, in which we have a 12% ownership. We
also have a liability for future containment of an ash landfill at the Riverton Power Plant, a liability for a
solid waste land fX at the Plum Point Energy Station, and asset retirement obligations associated with the
removal of asbestos located at the Riverton and Asbury Plants. In addition, we have a liability for the
removal and disposal of Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB) contaminants associated with our transformers
and substation equipmcnt. These liabilities have been cstimatcd based upon either third party costs or
historical review of expenditures €or the removal of similar past liabilities. The potentia1 costs of these
future expenditures are based on engineering estimates of third party costs to remove the assets in
satisfaction of the associated obligations. This liability will be accreted over the period up to the estimated
settlement date.
All of our recorded asset retirement obligations have been estimated as of the expected retirement
date, or setdement date, and have been discounted using a credit adjusted risk-free rate ranging from 4.5%
to 5.52% depending on the settlement date. Revisions to these liabilities could occur duc to changes in the
cost estimates, anticipated timing of settIement or fedcral or state regulatory requirements.

The balances at the end of 2010 and 2011 are shown below.
LIabIIity
Balance
(000's)
.~

Asset Retirement Obligation

12BUfO

.... . ...

Liabilities

Liabilities

Recomized

Settled

$3,757

$

-

%-

Cash Flow

(OOO*S)

Asset Retirement ObIigation

. .. .. . . .

Liabilitles
Recocnized

$3,G07

S-

I

LiabilItlcs
Scttlcd

$-

12nU11

Acwtion

Revisions

$287

s-

$3,944

Accretion

Cash H o w
Rdsions

Iiability
BaIance at
12nU10

$150

$ -

$3,757

Lfability

BaIance
ELW09

Wabiltly
Balance a t

Upon adoption of the standards on the retirement of long lived assets and conditionat asset
retirement obligations, we recorded a liability and rcguIatory asset because we expect to recover these costs
of removal in dechic and gas rates either through depreciation accruals or direct expenses. We also defer
the Iiability accretion and depreciation expense as a reguIatory asset. At December 31,2011 and 2010, our
regulatory assets relating to asset retirement obligations totaled $3.6 d i m and $3.4 million, respectively.

AIso as noted previousIy under property, plant and equipment, we reclassify the accrued cost of
dismantling and removing pIant from service upon retirement, which is not considered an asset retirement
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obligation under this guidance, from accumulated depreciation to a regulatory Iiabiity. This balance sheet
reclassification has no impact on resuIts of operations.
Depreciation

Provisions for depreciation are computed at straight-line rates in accordance with GAAP consistent
with rates approved by regulatory authorities. These rates are applied to the various classes of utility assets
OR a composite basis. Provisions for depreciation for our other segment are computed at straight-line rates
over the estimated useful life of the properties (See Note 2 for additiond details regarding depreciation

rates).

In accordance with our previous rate orders, we recorded approximately$6.6 million, $75 million, and
$4.5 million of regulatory amortization during 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. This amortization
included in our rates was granted in the Eixperimental Regulatory Plan approhd by the MPSC on
August 2,2005 and terminated on June 15,2011, as a result of our 2010 Missouri rate case. It provided
additional cash flow to enhance the hnancial support €or our generation expansion plan and was related to
our investment En ratan 2 as well as our Riverton VS4.3A2 combustion turbine (Riverton Unit 12) and
environmental improvement and upgrades at Asbury and Iatan 1. This amortization was included in
depreciation and amortization expense and in accumulated depreciation and amortization on the
consolidated balance sheet.
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

As provided in the FERC regulatory Uniform System of Accounts, utility plant is recorded at original
cost, including an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) when first pIaced in senice. The
AFUDC is a utiIity industry accounting practice whereby the cost of borrowed funds and the cost of equity
funds applicable to our construction program are capitalized as a cost of construction. This accounting
practice offsets the effect on earnings of the cost of financing current construction, and treats such
financing costs in the same manner as construction charges €or labor and materials.
AFUDC does not represent current cash income. Recognition of this item as a cost of utility plant is
in accordance with regulatory rate practice under which such plant costs are permitted as a component of
rate base and the provision for depreciation.

.

In accordance with the methodology prescribed by the FERC, we utilized aggregate rates (on a
before-tax basis) of 5.2% for 2011, 7.5% for 2010 and 7.0% for 2009, compounded semiannually, in
determining AFUDC for all of our projects except Iatan 2. T h e specific Iatan 2 AFUDC rate was a result
of our Experimental Regulatory Plan approved by thc MPSC on August 2,2005, and it terminated on
June 15,2011.In this agreement,we were allowed to receive the regulatory amortization discussed above,
in rates prior to the compIetion of Iatan 2.As a result, the equity portion of our AFUDC rate for the
Iatan 2 project was reduced by 2.5 percentage points (See Note 3 for additional discussion of our
regulatory pIan}.
I
Asset Impairments (excluding goodwill)

We review long-lived assets for impairmentwhenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.To the extent that certain assets may be impaired,
anaIysis is performed based on widiscounted forecasted cash flows to determine the impairment amount.
Nonc of our assets were impaired as of December 31,2011 and 2010.
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Goodwill

As of December 31, 2011, the consolidated balance sheet included $39.5 milIion of goodwil1. All of
this goodwill was derived Born our gas acquisition and recorded h ow gas segment, which is As0 the
reporting unit for goodwill: testing purposes. Accounting guidance requires us to test goodwill for
impairment on an annuat basis or whenever events or circumstances indicate possible impairment. Absent
an indication of fair value from a potential buyer or a similar specific transaction, a combination of the
market and income approaches is used to estimate the fair vaIue of goodwil1.
We use the market approach which estimates fair value of the gas reporting unit by comparing certain
financial metria to comparable companies.Comparable companies whose securities are actively traded in
the public market are judgmentally selected by management based on operational and economic
similarities. We utilize EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization) mdtiples
of the comparabk companies in relation to the EBITDA resuIts of the gas reporting unit to determine an
estimate of fair value.

We also utilize a valuation technique under the income approach which estimates the discounted
future cash flows of operations. Our procedures include developing a baseline test and performing
sensitivity analysis to calculate a reasonable valuation range. The sensitivities are derived from altering
those assumptions which are subjective in nature and inherent to a discounted cash flows calculation.
Other qualitative factors and comparisons to industry peers are dso used to further support the
assumptions and ultimateIy the overall evaluation. A key qualitative assumption considered in our
evaluation is the impact of regulation, including rate regulation and cost recovery for the gas reporthg
unit. Some of the key quantitative assumptions included in our tests invohe: regulatory rate design and
results; the discount rate; the growth rate; capital spending rates and terminal value dculations. I€
negative changes occurred to one or more key assumptions, an impairment charge could result. With the
exception of the capid spending rate, the key assumptions noted are signficantIy determined by market
factors and significant changes in market factors that impact the gas reporting unit wouId likely be
mitigated by our current and future reguIatory rate design to somc extent. Other risks and uncertainties
affecting these assumptions include: management's identification of impairmcnt indicators, changes in
business, industry, laws, technology and economic conditions. Actual results for the gas reporting unit
indicate a recent decline in gas customer growth and demand, but this was anticipated in our assumptions
for purposes of the discounted cash flow calculation. Our forecastsanticipate the customcr contraction will
minimize in the near future and return to positive customer growth within the next few years.

We weight the results of the two approaches discussed above in order to estimate the fair vdue of the
Our annual test performed as of October 31,2011 indicated the estimated fair market
vaIue of the gas reporting unit to be $5-$8 million higher than its carrying value at that time. While we
believe the assumptions utilized in our anaIysis were reasonable, adverse developments in future periods
could ncgatively impact goodwill impairment considerations, wbich could adversely impact earnings.
Specif~calIy,the quantitative assumptions noted previously, such as an increase to the discount rate or
decline in the terrnind value calcdation could lead to an impairment charge in the future.
gas reporting unit.

Fuel and Purchased Povl*er
Eleciric Sement

Fuel and purchased power costs are recorded at the time the fuel is used, or the power purchased.
Thk amount is adjusted to reflect regulatory ueatment for o w Missouri and Kansas fuel adjustment
mechanisms discussed below.
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The MPSC authorized a fuel adjustment clause (FAC) for our Missouri customers effective
September 1, 2008. The MPSC established a base cost €or the recovery of fuel and purchased power
expenses used to supply energy. The FAC permits the distribution to customers of 95% of the changes in
fuel and purchased power costs prudently incurred above or below the base cost. Off-system sdes margins
are also part of the recovery of fuel and purchased power costs. As a result, nearly all of the off-system
sdes margin flows back to the customer. Rates related to the fuel adjustment clause are modified twice a
year subject to the review and approval by the MPSC.In accordance with the ASC guidance for reguIated
operations, 95% of the difference between the actua1 costs of fuel and purchased power and the base cost
of fuel and purchased power recovered from our customers is recorded as an adjustment to fueI and
purchased power expense with a corresponding regulatory asset or regulatory liability. If the actual fuel
and purchased power costs are higher or lower than the base fuel and purchased power costs billed to
customers, 95% of these amounts wilI be recovered or refunded to our customers when the he1 adjustment
clause is modzed.

In our Kansas jurisdiction, the costs of fuel are recovered from customers through a fuel adjustment
clause, based upon estimated fuel costs and purchased power. The adjustments are subject to audit and
hnaI determination by regulators. The difference between the costs of fuel used and the cost of fuel
recovered from our Kansas customexs is recorded as a regulatory asset or a regulatory liability if the actual
costs are higher or lower tIian the costs billed to customers, in accordance with the ASC guidance for
regulated operations. Similar fuel recovery mechanisms are in place for our Oklahoma, Arkansas and the
FERC jurisdictions.
At December 31, 2011, our Missouri and Kansas fuel and purchased power costs were underrecovered by $6.0 million, which is reflected as a regulatory asset.

We receive the renewabIe attributes associated with the power purchased through our purchased
power agreements with Elk River W
indfarm LLC and Cloud County Windfarm, LLC.These renewabIe
attributes are converted into renewable energy credits, which me considered inventory, and recordcd at
zero cost (See Note 11).

We have a Stipulation and Agreement with the MPSC granting us authority to manage our SOz
allowance inventory in accordance with our SOz Allowance Management Policy ( S A M P ) . The SAMP
allows us to exchange banked alIowances for future vintage allowances andlor monetary vaIue and, in
extreme market conditions, to sell SO2allowances outright for monetary value. We have not yet exchanged
or sold any allowances. We classify our allowances as inventory and they are recordcd at cost. We had not
needed to purchase SOz allowances until the addition of the Plum Point plant in 2010, which is not
allocated alIowances from the EPA. The allocated allowances are recorded at zero cost. The allowances are
rcrnoved Born inventory on a FIFO basis. We consider used alfowanccs to be a part of fuel expense (See
Note 11).
Gns Semient

Fuel expense for our gas segment is recognized when the natural gas is delivered to our customers,
based on the current cost recovery allowed h rata. A Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) clause allows
EDG to recover fiom our customers,subject to audit and final determination by regulators, the cost of
purchased gas supplies and related carrying costs associated with the Company's use of natural gas
financial instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas. This PGA dame allows us to make rare
changes periodically (up to four times) throughout the year in response to weather conditions and supply
demands, rather than in one possibly extreme change per year.
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We calcdate the PGA factor based on our best estimate o€ our annuat gas costs and volumes
purchased for resale. The calculated factor is reviewed by the MPSC staff and approved by the M P S C .
PGA factor dements considered include cost of gas supply, storage costs, hedging contracts, revenue and
refunds, prior period adjustments and transportation costs.
Pursuant to the provisions of the PGA clause, the difference between actual costs innured and costs
recovered through the application of the PGA (including costs, cost reductions and Carrying costs
associated with the use of financial instruments), are reflected as a regulatory asset or liability. The bdance
is amortized as amounts are reflected in customer bilIings.
Derivatives

We utilize derivatives to help manage our natural gas commodity market risk resulting h n
purchasing natural gas, to be used ;I$ fuel in our electric business or sold in our natural gas business, on the
volatile spot market and to manage certain interest rate exposure.
Electric Segment

Pursuant to the ASC guidance on accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities,
derivatives are required to be recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. On the date a derivative
contract is entered into, the derivative is designated as (I) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the
variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (“cash-flow” hedge);
or (2) an instrument that is held for non-hedging purposes (a “non-hedging” instrument). We record the
mark-to-rnarketgains or Iosses on derivatives used to hedge our fuel costs as regulatory assets or Iiabilities.
l%s is in accordance with the ASC guidance on regdated operations, given that those regulatory assets
and liabilities are prababk of recovery through our fuel adjustment mechanism. Unrealized gains and
Iosses from cash flow hedges existing prior to the impIementation of our fuel adjustment clause were
recorded through comprehensive income through September 30, 2010. At December 31, 2010 the
remaining hedges, that were entercd into prior to the fuel adjustment clausc, were de-designated. Given
that upon settlement, the realized gain or loss would be recorded as fuel expense and be subject to the he1
adjustment clause, we redassified the unrealized loss on these hedges from comprehensive income to a
regulatory asset.

We also enter into ked-price forward physical contracts for the purchase of natural gas, cod and
purchased power. These contmcts, if they meet the dehition of a derivative, are not subject to derivative
accounting because they are considered to be normal purchase normal sales (NPNS) transactions. If these
transactions don’t qualify for NPNS treatment, they would be marked to market for each reporting period
through regulatory assets or liabilities.
Gas Sepmenr

Financial hedges €or our natural gas business are recorded at fair vaIue on our balance sheet. Because
we have a commission approved natural gas cost recovery mechanism (FGA), we record the
mark-to-market gaidoss on naturd gas financial hedges each reporting period to a regulatory asset/
liability account. Tf~cregulatory zlssetniabifity account tracks the difference between revenucs biIled to
customers for n a t u d gas costs and actuat natural gas expense which is trued up at the end of August each
year and included in the Actual Cost Adjustment (ACA) factor to be billed to customers during the next
year. This is consistent with the ASC guidance on regulated operations, in that we will be recovering our
costs after the annual true up period (subject to a prudency review by the MPSC).
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Cash flows ffom hedges for both electric and gas segments are classified within cash flows from
operations.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

We recognize expense related to pension and other postretirement benefits as earned during the
employee’s period of service. Related assets and liabilities are establishedbased upon the funded stam of
the plan compared to the projected benefit obligation. Our pension and OPEB expense or benefit includes
amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or losses. Additional income or expense may be
recognized when our unrecognized gains or losses as of the most recent measurement date exceed 10% of
our postretirement benefit obligation or fair value of plan assets, whichever is greater. For pension benefits
and OPEB benefits, unrecognized net gains or losses as of the measurement date are amortized into
actuarial expense over ten years.
Pensions

We have mtc orders with Missouri, Kansas and Okhhoma that allow us to recover pension costs
consistent with our GAAP policy noted above. In accordance with the rate orders, we prospectivdy
calculated the value of plan assets using a market-related value method as dowed by the ASC guidance on
pension benefits. As a result, we are dowed to record the Missouri, Kansas and-Oklahomaportion of any
costs above or below the amount included in rates as a regulatory asset or liability, respectively.

In the Company’s agreement with the MPSC regarding the purchase of Missouri Gas by EDG, the
Company was allowed to adopt this pension cost recovery methodology for EDG as well. Also, it was
agreed that the effects of purchase accounting entries related to pension and other postretirement benefits
would be recoverable in future rate proceedings. Thus the fair value adjustment acquisition entries have
been rccorded as regulatory assets, as these amounts are probabble of recovery in future rates. The
regulatory asset is reduced by an amount equal to the difference between the regulatory costs and the
estimated GAAP costs. The difference between this total and the costs being recovered from customers is
deferred as a regulatory asset or liability in accordance with the ASC guidance on regdated operations,
and recovered over a period of five years.
Other Postrdremettt Ben&

IOPEB)

In our 2006 Missouri rate case, the MPSC approved regulatory treatment for our OPEB costs s i d a r
the treatment described above for pension costs. In our 2010 Kansas rate case, the KCC also approved
regulatory treatment for our OPEB costs. This includes the use of a market-related value of assets, the
amortization of unrecognized gains or losses into actuarial expense over tcn years and the recognition of
regulatory assets and liabilities as described above.
to

In accordance with the guidance provided in the ASC on the Medicarc Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO)
and net cost recognized for OPEB reflccts the effects of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement
and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act). The Act provides for a federal subsidy, beginning in 2006, of
28% of prescription drug costs between $250 and $5,000 for each Medicare-efigible retiree who does not
join Medicare Part D,to companies whose plans provide prescription drug benefits to their retirees that
are “actum*dy equivalent” to the prescription drug benefits provided under Medicare. Equivalency must
be certified a n n u d y by the Federal Government. Our plan provides prescription drug benefits that are
“actuarially equivalent” to the prescription drug benefits provided under Medicare and have been certified
as such.
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Additional guidance in the ASC on empIoyers’ accounting for defined benefit pension and other
postretirement plans requires an employer to recognize the over funded or under funded status of a
defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its
statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the
changes occur through comprehensive income of a business entity. The guidance aIso requires an empIoyer
to measure the funded status of a pIan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position, with
limited exceptions. Pension and other poswtirement employee benefits tracking mechanisms are utiIized
to aUow for future rate recovery of the obligations. We record these as regulatory assets on the balance
sheet rather than as reductions of equity through comprehensive income (See Note 8).
Unamortized Debt Discaunt, Premium and Expense

Discount, premium and expense associated with long-term debt are amortized over the Iives of the
reIated issues. Costs, incIuding gains and losses, reIated to refunded long-term debt are amortized over the
lives of the related new debt issues, in accordance with regulatory rate practices.
Liability Insurance

We are prhari1y self-insuredfor workers’ compensation claims, genera1 liabilities, benefits paid under
employee healthcare proprams and long-term disability benefits. Accruals are primady based on the
estimated undiscounted cost of claims. We self-insure up to certain limits that vary by segment and type of
risk. Periodically, we evaluate the IeveI of insurance coverage over the self insured limits and adjust
insurance levels based on risk tolerance and premium expense. We carry excess liability insurance for
workers’compensation and public liability claims for our electric segment. In order to provide for the cost
of losscs not covered by insurance, an dowance for injuries and damages is maintained based on our loss
experience. Our gas segment is covercd by cxccss liability insurance for pubIic liability claims, and workers’
compensation claims are covered by a guaranteed cost poIicy (See Note 11).
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities are comprised of accruals and other accounting estimates not sufficiently
Iarge enough to merit individual disclosure. At December 31, 2011, the baIance of other noncurrent
liabilities is primarily comprised of accruals for self insurance, customer advances for construction and
asset retirement obligations.

Cash 8r Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and temporary investments purchased with an initial
maturity of three months or less. It also includes checks and electronic funds transfers that have been
issucd but have not cleared the bank, which are also reflected in current accrued liabdities and were
$26.6 d l i o n and $14.5 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Reswicreci Cash

As part of our Plum Point ownership agreement, we are required to have funds available in an escrow
account which guarantees payment of certain operating and construction costs. The cash is heId at a
financid institution and restricted as to withdrawal or use. We expect the restrictions on these funds
d a t e d to construction costs, approximately $2.5 milIion and $0 at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, to expire during 2012. The amounts rcstricted for operating costs, $1.8 million at
December 31,2011 and 2010, may increase or decrease based on an annual review.
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FueI, Materials and Supplies

Fuel, materials and supplics consist primarily of coal, natural gas in storage and materials and
supplics, which arc reported at average cost. These bdances are as follows (in thousands):
2011
20x0
............................... $27,431 $17,b448
................................
6,346
4,470
...............................
28,462
23,439
-TOTAL..........................................=
$62,239 $45,557
=

E I e h c fuel inventory
Natural gas inventory
Materials and supplies

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax consequenccs of transactions that have
been treated differently for financial reporting and tax return purposes, measured using statutory tax rates
(See Note 9).
Investment tax credits utilized in prior years were deferred and are being amortized over the useful
lives of the properties to which they relate. Remaining unamortized invesbnent tax credits are being
amortized over their lives of up to approximately 52 years.
A December 2009 award fiom an arbitration panel ordered KCPetL to renegotiate with the IRS a
previous $125 million advanced coal investment tax credit granted to our Iatan 2 plant, The IRS executed a
rcvised memorandum of understanding (MOU) on September 7, 2010, which granted us our share,
$17.7 million, of advanced coal investment tax credits in accordance with the arbitrationpanel’s order. We
utilized less than $0.2 million of these credits when preparing our 2010 tax return as utilization of the
credits was limited by alternative minimum tax ru1e.s. 1% expect to use the remaining credits over the 2012
and 2013 tax years. The tax credit will have no significant income statement impact as the credits will flow
to our customers as we amortize the tax credits over the life of the plant.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In 2006, thc FASB issued guidance which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with the ASC guidance on accounting for
income taxes. JVe file consolidated income tax returns in the U.S. federal and state jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, we arc no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2007. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, our balance sheet induded
approximately zero and $0.4 million, respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits which wouId af€ect our
effective tax rate if recognized. We do not expcct any material changes to unrecognized tax bcnefits within
the next twelve months. We recognize interest accrued and penaltiw related to unrecognized tax benefits
in other expenses.
Computations of Earnings Per Share

The ASC guidance on earnings per share requires d u d presentation of basic and diIuted earnings per
share. Basic earnings per share docs not include potentially dihtivc securities and is computed by dividing
net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share
assumes the issuance of common shares pursuant to the Company’s stock-based compensation pIans at the
beginning of each respective period, or at the date of grant or award if later. Shares attributable to stock
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options and performance-based restricted stock are excIuded fiom the calculation of diluted earnings per
share if the effect would be antiddutive.
2010

2011

2009

Weighted Average Number Of Shares

Basic ..............................
41$5 1,759 40,544,802 34,923,526
Dilutive Securities:
Performance-based restricted stock awards ,
18,222
14,991
20,513
Dividend equivalents
9,585
12,558
12,122
EmpIoyee stock purchase plan
3,815
7,170
103
Stock options
3,240
Time-based restricted stock awards.
807
Total dilutive securities. .............
35.669
34.719
32.738
Diluted weighted average number of shares
41,887,428 40,579,521 34,956,264
Antidihtive Shares
74,800
117,178

.................
..........
......................
......

....................

..

-

Potentially dilutive shares are not expected to have a material impact unless signifcant appreciation of
the Company's stock price occurs.
Stock-Based Compensation

We have several stock-based compensation plans, which are described in more detaiI in Note 4. In
accordance with the ASC guidance on stock-bascd compensation, we recognize compensation expense
over the requisite senice period of all stock-based compensation awards based upon the fair-value of the
award as of the date of issuance (See Note 4).
Reclassifications

The Company has revised its previously reported 2010 cash and cash equivalents numbers in its
balance sheet from $14.5 million to $10.5 million to correct for certain immaterial errors arising from an
incorrect classification of certain other assets as cash. AccordingIy, certain amounts (Operating Cash flows
revised €ram $138.1 million to $135.9 milIion and investing cash flows revised €rom [Sl09.2]million to
[$Ill.O] miIlion) in the statement of cash flows that were affected by the immaterial classification errors
have been revised. Such revisions, in the opinion of management, are not material to the prior period
financial statements.
Recently Issued and Proposcd Accounting Standards
Fair Y,ltre: in May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)amended the guidance
governing fair value measurements and disclosure requirements.The revised guidance is intended to result
in common fair value measurement and disclosurc rcquirements in U.S. GeneralIy Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP)and International Financial Reporting Standards. T h e revised guidance changes the
wording used to describe same of the requirements in U.S. G M . Additionally, some of the revisions
clarify the FASB's intent for the appkation QE the guidance. The revised guidance wiI1 be applicable for
interim and annuaI periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The application of this standard will not
have a material impact on our results of opcrations, financial position or liquidity.

Ofher Corwrehensive Income: In June 2011, the FASB amended the guidance governing the
prcsentation of other comprehensive income. Undcr the revised guidance, itcms of net income and other
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comprehensive income may be presented in one single statement, or in two separate, but consecutive,
statements. The statements are required to be presented with equal prominence as the other primary
financial statements. In December 2011, the FASB amended this guidance to defer provisions of the
guidance that required the presentation of reclassihation adjustments by component in both the
statement where net income is presented and the statement where other comprehensive income is
presented. The deferral has been made to allow the FASB to redeliberate this requirement. All other
requirements of the revised guidance will be applicable for interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. The application of this standard will not have a material impacr on our results of
operations, financial position or liquidity.
Goodwill I m ~ a h m t : In September 2011, the FASB amended the guidance governing goodwill
impairment testing. Under the revised guidance an entity will be permitted to complete a qualitative
analysis to determine if further impairment testing is necessary. The standard is effective for interim and
annual goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15,.2011. Early
adoption is permitted. The application of this standard will not have a materia1 impact on our resuIts of
operations, hnancial position or liquidity.

Balunce Sheer URsetfinn: In December 2011, the FASB amended the guidance governing the
offsetting, or netting, of assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. Under the revised guidance, an entity
would be required to disclose both the gross and net information about instruments and transactions that
are eligible for ofhet on the balance sheet, as we11 as instruments or transactions subject to a master
netting agreement. This standard is effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2013. T h e
application of this standard will not have a material impact on our results of operations, &ancial position
or liquidity.
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2

Property. Plant and Equipment

Our total property. pIant and equipment are summarized below (in thousands) .
December 31.
2011
2010

EIectric plant
Production
Transmission
Distribution
Generalcl)
EIectricpIant
Less accumulated depreciation and amortizationc)
Electric plant nct of depreciation and amortization
Construction work in progress
Net electric p h t
Gasplant
Less accurnulatcd depreciation and amortization
Gas pIant net of accumulated depreciation
Construction work in progress
Net gas pIant
WaterpIant
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Water plant net of depreciation and amortization
Construction work in progress
NetwaterpIant
Other
Fiber
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Non-regulated net of depreciation and amortization
Construction work in progress
Net nowregulated property
TOTAL NET P I A N T AND PROPEKTY

...............................................$1.023.154
..............................................
232,390
.............................................. 719.731
................................................
87.933
............................................. 2.063.208
.................. 610.084
.................. 1.453.124
.................................
23.494
..........................................
1.476.6I 8
..................................................
66.918
....................
10.851
........................
56.067
.................................
79
............................................. 56.146
................................................ 11.540
.................... 4. 158
................... 7.382
126
.................................
............................................ 7.508
34.984
...................................................
....................
12.046
................. 22.938
442
.................................
................................... 23. 380
.......................... $1.563. 652

$1.015.040

220.514
682.175
83.413
-~
2.001.142
575.061
1.426.081
9.214

1.435.295
63.58 1
8.994
54.587
6

54.593
11.128
3.855

7.273
40

7.313
32.264

10.453
21.811

77
21. 888

$1319.089

(1) Includes intangible property oE $22.1 and $20.1 million as of December 31. 2011 and 2010.
respectively. prhady d a t e d to capitalized software and investments in facdity upgrades owned by
other utilities Accumulated amortization related to this property in 2011 and 2010 was $9.9 and
$9.2 million respectively

.

.

(2) Indudes regulatory amortization of $37.3 million and $30.7 miIIion as of December 30. 2011 and 2010.

respectiveIy. resuIting fiom our regulatory plan (See Note 3 for additional discussion of our regulatory
plan)

.
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The table below summarizes the total provision for depreciation and the depreciation rates for
continuing operations, both capitalized and expensed, for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):
2011

Provision for depreciation
Regdated - Electric and Water.
Regulated - Gas..
Non-Regulated
T O W
horlizatiod’).
TOTAL

..............
........................
............................
..................................
...........................
..................................

2010

2009

$54,628
3,485

549,254 $44,973
3,046
2,072
1,807
1,641
1,443
59,920 53,941
48,488
7,445
8.347
5,159

-

$67,365 $62,288 =
$53,647

(1) Includes $6.6 million, $7.5 million, and $4.5 million of regulatov amortization for 2011,2010
and 2009,respectively. This was granted by the MPSC effective January 1,2007and updated
August 23, 2008, and September 10, 2010. Thii regulatory amortization terminated as of
June 15,2011as a result or our 2010 Missouri rate case.
2011
2010
2009

Annual depreciation rates
Electric andwater

..........................
...................................
Non-Regulated.. ...........................
TOTALCOMPANY ..........................
Gas..

2.7%

2.8%

2.9%

5.5%
5.4%

5.1%
5.3%

5.0%

2.9%

2.9%

3.0%

3.7%

The tabk below sets forth the average depreciation rate for each cIass of assets for each period
presented
2011

Annual Weighted Average Depreciation Rate
Electric fixed assets:
Production plant..

..........................
..........................
Distribution plant. ..........................
General plant.. ............................
Water .....................................
G a s . . . . . . . . . . . . ...........................
Non-regulated ...............................
Transmission plant

3.

2010

2009

2.1%
23%
3.6%

2.0%
2.4%

2.4%

3.6%

3.6%

6.1%

6.2%
2.7%
5.1%
5.3%

6.1%

2.7%
55%

5.4%

2.2%

2.7%
3.7%
5.0%

Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities and Other Deferred Credits

The Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC) approved a joint settlement agreement allowing us
to defer actual incremental operating and maintenance expenses associated with the repair, restoration
and rebuilding activities resulting from the tornado which hit our senice territory on May 22, 2011. In
addition, depreciation reIated to the capital expenditures will be deferred and a carrying charge will bo
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accrued. These amounts, which were approximateIy $1.6 million as of December 31, 2011, have been
recorded as a regulatory asset.
Construction accounting, as approvcd by the MPSC in our 2005 regulatory plan, permitted the
deferral of charges for depreciation, operations and maintenance and carrying costs related to the
operation of Iatan 1 and Tatan 2 until they were uItimately included in our rates. Consmction accounting
was also applied to Plum Point consmction costs incurred subsequent to February 28,2010. A
I of these
deferrals began at the plants' respectivc in-sentice dates, and ended when recovery began in rates. All of
these deferrals are being amortized over the lie of the plants beginning on June 15, 2011, the effective
date of rates for our recently completed Missouri rate m e . As of December 31, 2011 these deferrals
totaled $17.1 million and were recorded as regulatory assets. The regdatory plan also required us to
continue to defer the he1 and purchased power expense impacts of Iatan 2, which were approximately
$8.3 miIlion as of December 31, 2011 and are recorded in Non-Current Regulatory Liabiilities. Through
December 31, 2011,$6.6 million in regulatory plan amortization had been recognized.

As part of a stipuIated agreement in our 2009 Kansas rate casc, approved by the KCC on June 25,
2010, we also defered depreciation and operating and maintenance expense on both PIum Point and Iatan
2 from their respective in-service dates until the effective date for rates from the next Kansas case, which
was January 1,2012. These deferrals v
dl be recovered over a 4 year period.
Changes to regulatory assets and liabilities regarding their rate base inclusion or amortizable lives
since December 31, 2010 are as follows: As a result of our recently completed Missouri rate case, a
tracking mechanism has been created to flow the 2010 SWFA payment, net of associated taxes, back to our
customers {see Note 9).T h e Missouri, Kansas and Oklahomajurisdictional portions of the payment will be
amortized over tea years and reflected as a reduction to fuel expense, while the Arkansas jurisdictional
portion of the 2010 SWPA payment will be amortized on a straight-he basis over a 50 year period. A
tracking mechanism was also created by Missouri reIated to the PIum Point, Iatan 2 and Iatan common
plant operating expenses. The Missouri tracker is to exclude consurnables and SO2 allowances which are
rccovered through the fuel adjustment clause. A reglatory asset or liability will be rcwrded for the
difference between the Missouri jurisdictional portion of actual expenses and the annual recovery
allowance with a corresponding chargc or credit to regulated operating expense.

THE E M P N DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY
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The following table sets forth the componentsof our regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities on our
consolidated baIance sheet (in thousands).
Dccernber 31.
2010

2011

Regulatorg Assets:
Under recovered purchased gas costs .
gas segment .
current
Under recovered electric fuel and purchased power costs .
current

.

........... $ 211
........ 75 13
ReguIatory assets, current?) ....................................
7.724
Pension and other postretirement benefits@)..........................
121.058
Income taxes ................................................
49.631
Deferred construction accounting casts@) ............................
17.095
Unamortized Ioss on reacquired debt ...............................
11.610
Unsettled derivative losses - electric segment ........................
7.839
System reliability -vegetation management .........................
6.569
Storm costs'4' ................................................
5.303
Asset retirement obligation ...................................... 3.571
Customer program ........................................... 3.408
Unamortized Ioss on interest rate derivative ..........................
1.462
Other .....................................................
1.420
Under recovered purchased gas costs - gas segment ...................
1.281
Deferred operating and maintenance expense ........................
952
Asbury five-year maintenance ....................................
492
Under recovered electric fuel and purchased power costs ................
231
Regulatory assets, long-term ...................................
231. 922
T O X REGUIATORY ASSETS ...............................
$239. 646

Regulatory Liabilities
Over recovered purchased gas costs
Regulatory liabilities. current(1)

- gas segment - current ............ $ .................................
Costsofremoval ............................................. 73,562
S W A payment for Ozark Beach Iost generation ......................
25.074
Income taxes ................................................
12.337
Deferred construction accounting costs - fuel ........................
8.304
Unamortized gain on interest rate derivative .........................
3.711
Pension and other postretirement bencfits[Q..........................
2. 939
Over recovered eIectric fuel and purchased power costs .................
2. 513
Other .....................................................
Regulatory liabilities, long-tern .................................
128.440
TOTAL REGULATORY LL4BEKE-S ...........................
$128.440

$

.
4. 974

4.974
92.192
50. 18s
10.521

13.099
3. 166
3.338
7.733
3.412
2. 119
1.776
473
439

-

948

.

189.404
$194.378
$ 21.4 3

1.243
G2.756

I

-

12.715
3.126
3.881
4.604
409
88
87.579
$

88.822

(I) Reflects over and under recovered costs expected to be returned or recovered as applicable. within the
next 12 months in Missouri rates.
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(2) Primwily reff ects regulatory assets resulting from the unfunded portion of our pension and OPEB
liabilities and regulatory accounting for EDG acquisition costs. Approximately $0.5 million in pension
and other postretirement benefit costs have been recognized since January 1, 2011 to reflect the
amortization of the regulatory assets that were recorded at the time of the EDG acquisition of the
Aquila, Inc. gas properties.
(3) Balances as oP December 31,2011
Iatan I..
Iatan2
Plum Point..
lbtaI......................

DeFerred CarryIng Charga

Deferred O&M

Dcpredatioo

$2,728

33,891

1,363
4,271

2,728

65

239

158

BaIances ns of December 31,1011

D c f e d Carrying Charges

DeFenrd O%M

Depreciation

Total

$2,779

1,3SS
1,643
70

1,682
1,111

$ 5,849

....................
......................
.................

....................
....................
.................
Total ......................

latan 1 . .
latan 2..
Plum Point..

$

$1,770

s

33

1,652

45

Total

5,743
S 10,890
$ 462
$17,095
=
$

$ 4,524
$ 148

$10,521

(4) Reflects ice storm costs incurred in 2007 and costs incurred as a resuIt of the May 2011 tornado.

(5) Includes the effect of costs incurred that are more or less than those allowed in rates for the Missouri
(EDE and EDG) and Kansas @DE) portion of pension and other postretirement benefit costs. Since
January I, 2011, regulatory liabilities and corresponding expenses have been reduced by
approximately $0.5 million as a result of ratemaking treatment.

Unamortized Iosscs on debt and losses on interest rate derivatives are not incIuded in rate base, but
are included in our capital structure for rate base purposes. The remainder of our regulatory assets are not
incIudcd in rate base, generally bccause they are not cash items or they are earning carrying costs.
However,as of December 31,2011, the costs of all of our reguIatory assets are currently being recovered
except for approximately$113.5 million of pension and other postretirement costs primarily related to the
unfunded liabilities for future pension and OPEB costs. The amount and timing of recovery of this item
will be based OR the changing funded status of the pension and OPEB plans in future periods.

The regulatory income tax assets and liabilities are gencralIy amortized over the average depreciable
life of the related assets, The loss on reacquired debt and the loss and gain on interest rate derivatives are
amortized over the life of t h e related new debt issue, which currcntly ranges from 2 to 30 years. The
unrecovered fuel costs are generally recovered within a year following their recognition. Severe storm costs
and the Asbury five-ycar maintenance costs are recovered over five years. Pension and other
postretirement benefit tracking mcchanisms are rccovered over a five year period. T h e cost of removal
reguIatory riability is amortized ;is removal costs arc incurred.

RATE MATTERS
We continually assess the need for rate relief in a11 of the jurisdictions we serve and file for such relief
when necessary.
Our rates for retai1 electric and natura1 gas services (other than specidly negotiated retail rates for
industrial or large commercial customm, which are subject to regulatory review and approval) are
determined an a “cost of service” basis. Rates are designed to provide, after recovery of allowabIe
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